STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES
BUREAU OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5000 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5000
Kathleen A. Dunn Fax: 603-271-5068 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Associate Commissioner

May 27, 2015
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

1. Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care
Services, to amend an agreement, with the Office of Public Guardian (Vendor #166528), 2 Pillsbury
Street, Suite 400, Concord, New Hampshire 03301, to provide public guardianship services by
increasing the price limitation by $1,103,319.00 from $4,936,607.00 to an amount not to exceed
$6,039,926.00 and extending the completion date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016, effective
July 1, 2015, or date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. This agreement was
originally approved by Governor and Council on June 9, 2010 (Item #106), and subsequently
amended on June 8, 2011 (Item #126), June 20, 2012 (Item #80), June 19, 2013 (Item #112) and
June 18, 2014 (Item #96). 9% Federal Funds, 91% General Funds.

05-95-92-920010-7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS:BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUARDIANSHIP
SVCS

) Current Increase Revised
Fiscal 0 .s/0bject Class Title Modified  (Decrease)  Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2011 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $ 878,656.80 $ 0.00 $ 878,656.80
2012  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $ 912,797.29 $ 0.00 $ 912,797.29
2013  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $ 951,472.18 $ 0.00 $ 951,472.18
2014  102-500731  Contracts for Program Services $ 990,361.73 § 0.00 $ 990,361.73
2015  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $1,003,319.00 $ 0.00 $1,003,319.00

2016  102-500731  Contracts for Program Services $ 0 $1,003,319.00 $1.003,319.00
Sub-total $4,736,607.00 $1,003,319.00 $5,739,926.00
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05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS:ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal Current Increase Revised
Year Class/Object Class Title Modified {Decrease) Modified
ear =2a» Nodined Modified

—— Budget Amount Budget
2014 102-500734  Contracts for Program Services $ 100,000.00 $ 0.00 $ 100,000.00
2015 102-500734  Contracts for Program Services $ 100,000.00 $ 0.00 $ 100,000.00
2016  102-500734  Contracts for Program Services $ 0.00 $ 100,000.00 $ 100,000.00
Sub-total $ 200,000.00 $ 100,000.00 $ 300,000.00

Total $4,936,607.00 $1,103,319.00 $6,039,926.00

2. Contingent upon the approval of Requested Action #1, further authorize the Department of Health
and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, to make an advanced payment
of $160,112.99 to the vendor from the available State Fiscal Year 2016 funding for this agreement,
effective July |, 2015, or the date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later,
through June 30, 2016.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of Requested Action #1 is to extend an agreement with the Office of Public
Guardian to provide guardianship and protection services, on a statewide basis, to persons with mental
illness or developmental impairments, and to also provide those services to incapacitated adults who
are abused, neglected or exploitated, whose incapacities leave them at risk of substantial harm
because of their inability to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their
personal affairs. These services are needed to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard
incapacitated persons who are abused, neglected or exploitated, in state institutions as well as in
community mental health and developmental service programs. The agreement also carries out the
requirements of RSA 135-C: 60, RSA 171-A: 10, Il and RSA 161-F:52.

The Office of Public Guardian pursuant to RSA 547-B: 6 has been designated by the New
Hampshire Supreme Court as an approved organization for the purpose of providing guardianship and
protection services pursuant to RSA 464-A. This agreement will provide for guardianship services for
up to 752 cases during the agreement period. The emphasis in providing such services will be to
ensure that the guardianships maintained and sought will be limited in accordance with the standards
embodied in RSA 464-A. This agreement also includes a line item for mentoring services and training.
Mentoring services are provided to family members who are willing to serve as guardian but who
require a period of support. Providing this support will obviate need for a public guardian in these
cases and will thereby save the State from paying the cost of a permanent public guardianship.

The purpose of Requested Action #2 is to provide the advanced payment that allows the Office
of Public Guardian to meet its operating obligations while providing services during the initial two
months of this agreement period (State Fiscal Year 2016).
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Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, the Division of
Community Based Care Services would be out of compliance with the requirements of RSA 135-C: 60,
RSA 171-A: 10, Il, and RSA 161-F:52 and persons with mental illness, developmental impairments and
incapacitated aduits who are abused, neglected or exploitated, whose incapacities leave them at risk of
substantial harm because of their inability to provide for their own food, shelter, heaith care, safety, or
to manage their personal affairs would be harmed.

This agreement was competively bid using a public notice posted on the Department of Health
and Human Services website on February 22, 2010, as RFP Number 11-DCBCS-GPS-01, the Division
of Community Based Care Services requested proposals for providing public guardianship services to
persons with mental illness or developmental impairments. A further application for funding was issued
to the Office of Public Guardian on March 22, 2013, to incorporate services for incapacitated adults who
are abused, neglected or exploitated.

As referenced in the Governor and Executive Council letter that originally approved this
agreement, both the Request for Proposal and original agreement included the option for five (5)
renewals of one year each at the Department’s discretion. Each subsequent amendment and Governor
and Executive Council letter also included the renewal provision. This Request represents the fifth and
final year to renew the original agreement. Because the Office of Public Guardian has continually well-
performed its contractual responsibilities, the Department is exercising this option.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 9% Federal Funds from the Administration of Families, Department of Health
and Human Services, Social Services Block Grant, CFDA #93.667, Federal Award ldentification
Number 1601NHSOSRY75, and 91% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds shall not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen A. Dunn
Associate Commissioner

Approved by: ‘B&&\h\ / ‘

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Guardianship Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #5 to Public Guardianship Services Contract

This 5" Amendment to the Public Guardianship Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment 5”) dated this 19th day of May, 2015, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Office of Public Guardian (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-
profit corporation with a place of business at 10 White Street, Concord, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 9, 2010 (Item #106), and amended and approved on June 8, 2011
(Item #126), June 20, 2012 (Item #80), June 19, 2013 (Item #112), and on June 18, 2014 (item
#96), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may
amend the Contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to extend the term of the agreement and
increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these services;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows to:
Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7 to read June 30, 2016

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8 to read $6,039,926

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9 to read Eric Borrin

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9558

Delete Exhibit A and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1

Delete Exhibit B and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #1

Delete Exhibit C and replace with Exhibit C Amendment #1

Delete Exhibit C-1 and replace with Exhibit C-1 Amendment #1

Delete Exhibit G and replace with Exhibit G Amendment #1

10. Delete Exhibit | and replace with Exhibit | Amendment #1

© ® N OO A WDN
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Amendment #5 Contractor Initials: l
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Guardianship Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Kathleen A. Dunn
Associate Commissioner

Office of Public Guardian

5.22. 05 (2%_ ? QJA,.M

Date NA 25 P i
TIT@ ,ZDTQB MPQZQJCBN

Acknowledgement: ~
State of ?\SA’A) m%lie. , County of Meriimael— on I\/}M D 215 | before the
undersigned officér, personally appeared the person identified abév?), or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Mgddde—

Name and Title of Ngtary or Justice of the Peace

MARY K. RAULSTON, Notary Public
My Commission Expires July 13, 2016

CA/DHHS/100213 J
Amendment #5 Contractor Initials: PP
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Guardianship Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

\y [u/ 15 \/W
e | / %?Ir;e;v [‘%ﬁ;{)\ﬂ%)

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-~

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #5 Contractor Initials: R?J

Page 3 of 3 Date: EZ |§



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A— Amendment 1

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide guardianship and protection services to
safeguard the liberty and well-being of persons who because of functional
limitations, have suffered, are suffering, or are likely to suffer substantial harm due
to an inability to provide for personal needs for food, clothing, shelter, health care,
safety or an inability to manage their property or financial affairs. Guardianship and
protection services under this Agreement are to be provided to persons at risk of
harm to person or estate whom the state has a responsibility to safeguard pursuant
to RSA 135-C: 60, RSA 161-F:52 and RSA 171-A: 10, Il

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide guardianship and protection services to the
persons enumerated in paragraph 1.4. of Exhibit A. Guardianship services shall
include those actions that are necessary to carry out the duties prescribed by RSA
464-A and RSA 547-B, including appointments as guardian, co-guardian,
conservator, or temporary guardian of the person and/or estate of a ward.
Protection services shall include those actions that are necessary to carry out the
duties as duly designated representative or protective payee, client representative,
attorney in fact, or other similar agent, as prescribed by applicable law, rule, or
agreement.

1.2.1. The program shall have a sufficient number of staff to adequately carry out,
for all clients, all the duties required by statue, the letters of authority, and
the standards set forth in this document.

1.2.2. Upon employment professional program staff shall attend and successfully
complete 20 or more hours of orientation training and, complete 10 or more
hours of annual continuing education for each subsequent year of
employment. The Contractor shall report the number of professional
continuing education hours obtained by each guardian by August 1, 2015.

1.3. The Contractor may provide technical assistance to private guardians or training to
agency staff providing direct services whose wards are clients of the Department of
Health and Human Services ("the Department"). In order to receive such technical
assistance from the Contractor private guardians must receive prior approval from
the Office of Client and Legal Services for a specified number of consultation hours.

1.4. The Contractor shall not accept or agree to provide services to any person under
this Agreement without the prior approval of the State through the Office of Client
and Legal Services or the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services Adult Protective
Services Administrator or designee of the Department. The Contractor may provide
services to all persons approved for services by the State and shall not deny
services to such persons. If the Contractor believes guardianship and protection
services to be inappropriate, the Contractor shall refer the client to the New
Hampshire Disabilities Rights Center, Inc., the New Hampshire Legal Assistance or
other attorney so that an administrative appeal or other appropriate legal action can
be taken on behalf of the client. Referrals of persons for guardianship and
protection services from the Glencliff Home for the Elderly, the New Hampshire

Exhibit A — Amendment 1 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials RPJ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A — Amendment 1

Hospital, and community agencies in the mental health system, developmental
services system, and the adult and elderly system shall be made by the Contractor
through the Office of Client and Legal Services, which shall review each referral to
ensure compliance with the principles contained in RSA 464-A and paragraph 1.5.
below.

1.4.1. If the Contractor provides services to persons who have not been screened
and approved by the Office of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of
Elderly & Adult Services, reimbursement for such services will not be
provided for under this Agreement.

1.4.1.1. In instances not within the control of the Contractor where
guardianship appointments are made without approval granted
from the Office of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of Elderly
& Adult Services, the Contractor may receive reimbursement for
guardianship services when the Contractor can provide
documentation satisfactory to the Department that such
circumstances occurred and the Contractor made reasonable
efforts to decline such appointments. The Contractor shalil
include documentation of reasonable efforts made to decline
such appointments with its Quarterly Payment Computation and
Authorization reports. If the documentation provided by the
Contractor is satisfactory to the Department, the Department may
make payments to the Contractor for appointments made without
approval as long as the wards appointed to the Contractor are
persons for whom the State has responsibility to safeguard
pursuant to RSA 135-C: 60, RSA 171-A:10, Il and RSA 161-F:52.

1.5. In providing guardianship and protection services to persons under this Agreement,
the Contractor shall adhere to the "Ethics and Standards for Guardians" as
developed by the National Guardianship Association and shown in Exhibit D The
Department acknowledges that the Standards on monthly visits with wards is a
guideline and that quarterly visits or more frequently as required in individual
circumstances is the accepted practice of the Contractor.

1.5.1. In the instance of a ward who is out of the State of New Hampshire for an
extended period of time and it would not be feasible for the guardian to see
the ward face to face on the basis outline in sub-paragraph 1.5 above,
guardian shall attempt to have a video conference with the ward on the
above-noted basis. If the technology for a video conference is not available,
the guardian shall at least have telephone contact with the ward on the
above-noted basis.

1.5.2. In the instance of a ward who is aggressive to the point of physical harm to
the guardian, the face to face visits required in sub-paragraph 1.5 above
may be suspended until an alternative plan can be developed for the
guardian to meet with the ward while maintaining personal safety.

1.6. In any action brought in Circuit Court-Probate Division to limit or otherwise reduce
the scope of a guardianship over a person served under this Agreement, the State
agrees to appear with the Contractor where the State agrees that it is necessary to
present the State's position on the action proposed.

Exhibit A -~ Amendment 1 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials P'PJ

CU/DHHS/103114 Page 2 of 5 pate 52295



New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibit A— Amendment 1

1.7. The Contractor agrees that no "direct services" shall be provided to persons under
this Agreement. Direct services include psychotherapy, case management,
transportation, financial aid, or other social services available through state or other
governmental or nonprofit agencies.

1.8. The State agrees that the case management function regarding all referrals
involving Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services clients will be supported by the BEAS
Adult Protection Social Workers and the Contractor agrees to work closely with the
BEAS APS Social Workers for a period of months, to be determined by the level of
need following a referral.

1.9. The State recognizes that the Contractor has responsibilities as an independent
decision-maker acting in a fiduciary capacity with respect to the persons to be
served under this Agreement and the decisions to be made on behalf of such
persons shall not be directed or influenced by the State by any action taken under
this Agreement.

1.10. The Contractor may elect to subcontract for such services as may be necessary to
carry out guardianship and protection services under this Agreement with prior
notification and approval of the State through the Office of Client and Legal
Services or Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services of the Department.

1.11. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the Contractor from providing guardianship
and protection services to persons other than those who are referred pursuant to
this Agreement. However, the Contractor agrees that pursuant to RSA 547-B:7, no
funds provided under this Agreement shall be expended for such persons.
Furthermore, the Contractor agrees to maintain sufficient records, which shall be
subject to the Department’s examination and be included as part of the Audit of
Records required in paragraph 1.2. of the Special Provisions, to document that the
funds received under this Agreement are expended in accordance with this
paragraph.

1.12. If staff at any institution or developmental services or mental health or elderly and
adult agency within the jurisdiction of the Department brings a complaint to the
Department in reference to the services provided by the Contractor under this
Agreement, the Department may refer the complaint to the Contractor and the
Contractor shall investigate the circumstances pertaining to the complaint and shall
respond in writing within thirty (30) days to the Division concerning the results of the
investigation. The Contractor shall provide on a quarterly basis, a report of all
written complaints filed against the Contractor and shall explain how each such
complaint was resolved.

1.13. The Contractor recognizes the inherent value of the opinions of the wards they
serve. If staff at any institution or developmental services or mental health or elderly
and adult agency within the jurisdiction of the Department or any entity providing
funding to the Department distributes a survey, questionnaire or similar instrument
designed to gauge consumer satisfaction of wards in reference to the services
received by the ward including the services provided by the Contractor under this
Agreement, the Contractor agrees to allow their wards to participate in such
measures of consumer satisfaction unless the Contractor indicates in writing to the
Department the reasons why a particular ward should not be allowed to so
participate.

Exhibit A — Amendment 1 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials BPJ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A— Amendment 1

2. Description of Guardianship Services

2.1. The following is a general listing of functions to be provided by the Contractor for
individuals so named by the Circuit Court Probate Division as wards of the
Contractor. This listing and description is not intended to restate existing rules and
regulations already in place, but rather its purpose is to clarify the relationship of the
Contractor with respect to its wards who need and are receiving services in the
developmental services, mental health, and/or elderly and adult systems. The
functions to be performed include:

2.1.1. Making decisions regarding the residential and day placement of the ward,
utilizing the standards of least restrictive environment and the best interests
of the individual ward.

2.1.2. Insuring that all legally necessary steps are taken to enable the individual
ward to receive comprehensive evaluations and comprehensive treatment
and services.

2.1.3. Advocating for and requesting appropriate services for the individual ward
utilizing the individual service/treatment planning process following
established Department standards and law.

2.1.4. Being available to give or withhold consent to proposed medical care.

2.1.5. Being available to give or withhold consent, where such is legally necessary,
to proposed professional care, counsel, treatment or service including, but
not limited to behavioral programs, significant changes in individual
service/treatment plans, and other clinically or legally significant treatment or
services.

2.1.6. Insuring that the ward's civil rights are protected within the context of the
decision the guardian is making on behalf of the ward and refraining from
unwarranted intrusion into the life of the ward.

2.1.7. Assuming responsibility for any and all other duties as are stated in RSA
464-A or as are required by the Circuit Court Probate Division.

2.1.8. If guardian of the estate, being available to make all decisions as required by
RSA 464-A:26

2.2. All of the responsibilities referenced in 2.I. above are contingent upon the actual
authority granted in each individual court order specifying the extent and scope of
guardianship for each individual.

2.3. In order to perform the functions specified in 2.1., a guardian must be kept aware of
the facts or circumstances which may impact upon the decision. In order to make
informed decisions on behalf of their wards, the public guardians should continually
maintain significant and appropriate contact with each ward so to assure that their
efforts best reflect the personal preferences, values, and desires of the ward to the
fullest extent possible. The guardians must seek out information so that they are
fully aware of all risks and benefits of any proposed course of action, as well as any
alternatives that may exist. Guardians of the person shall maintain regular contact
with their wards in order to comply with the "Ethics and Standards for Guardians”
shown in Exhibit D.

Exhibit A -~ Amendment 1 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials RPJ

CU/DHHS/103114 Page 4 of 5 Date 522115



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A— Amendment 1

2.4. Each public guardian has an obligation to become as familiar as possible with his or
her ward. Beyond the personal visits with the ward and other important and
significant people in the ward's life, this obligation can also be met through close
interaction with the ward's case manager and others who share a responsibility for
providing for the needs of the individual.

3. Guardianship and Protection Services

3.1. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement,
it will provide guardianship services as prescribed in sections 1.1., 1.2., 2., and Exhibit
D.

3.2. The Contractor is obligated to accept all protection services cases referred to the
Contractor by the Office of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of Elderly & Adult
Services. The Department shall make every attempt to obtain a Release of
Information from the proposed client with the Contractor except where prohibited
from doing so by law. Also, to the extent possible, the Contractor shall be involved in
the screening process for protection cases. If the Contractor believes that the
appointment of a protective payee or representative payee is inappropriate, the
Contractor may refer the client to the New Hampshire Disabilities Rights Center, Inc.,
New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney so that an administrative appeal
or other appropriate legal action can be taken on behalf of the client.

3.3. For persons referred to Contractor by the Office of Client and Legal Services
pursuant to RSA 136-C:60 and RSA 171-A:10, Il the Contractor agrees to serve the
current total of 689 persons receiving guardianship and protection services, plus 6
pending cases, plus any new persons referred in accordance with paragraph 1.4.
above. However, the Contractor shall not be obligated to accept more than 710
cases during the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. The Department
shall provide the Contractor with letters of approval for each new case assigned to
the Contractor by the Office of Client and Legal Services.

3.4. For persons referred to Contractor by the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services
pursuant to RSA 161-F:52, the Contractor agrees to provide guardianship and
protection services for no more than forty-two (42) individuals at any point in time
during the contract period. While the Department shall provide the Contractor with
letters of approval for each new case assigned to the Contractor by the Bureau of
Elderly & Adult Services, the Contractor may not bill for services until the Contractor
is actually appointed as guardian by the Circuit Court-Probate Division.

3.5. The commencement date of this Agreement, as amended by Amendment #5, shall
be the Effective Date, that is, July 1, 2015, or date of Governor and Executive
Council approval, whichever is later. The Contractor shall not be paid for any
services, which may be provided prior to the Effective Date.

Exhibit A -~ Amendment 1 - Scope of Services Contractor Initials EP-J
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Exhibit B Amendment #1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Subject to the availability of State funds, and in consideration for the satisfactory completion
of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State shall pay the Contractor a
per diem per case rate approved by the Office of Client and Legal Services for all BBH &
BDS clients and the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services for all BEAS clients. However,
regardless of the number of persons served by the Contractor during the period of July 1,
2010 through June 30, 2016, the State shall pay the Contractor a minimum amount of
$5,783,229.15. The total of all payments authorized or actually made hereunder shall not
exceed the amount of $6,039,926.00, the price limitation set forth in block 1.8. of the
General Provisions.

1.1. For the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, funding is available as follows:
$100,000 — 9% Federal Funds from the Administration of Families, Department of Health and
Human Services, Social Services Block Grant, CFDA #93.667, Federal Award Identification
Number 1601NHSOSR75; and $1,003,319.00 — 91% General Funds.

1.2. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of services to persons served under this
Agreement shall be $3.86 for up to 710 clients whose guardianship services are requested by the
Bureaus of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services. The State shall reimburse
Contractor separately for services provided as guardian over the person and guardian over the
estate.

1.3. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of technical assistance to private guardians shall
be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of $1,500.00.

1.4. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training to area agency, mental health and
elderly and adult agency staff and probate court personnel shall be $60.00, not to exceed the
amount of $1,500.00.

1.5. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the person services or
the provision of guardianship over the estate services to persons served under this Agreement
shall be $6.29 for up to 42 clients whose guardianship services are requested by the Bureau of
Elderly & Adult Services. The State shall reimburse Contractor separately for services provided
as guardian over the person and guardian over the estate.

1.6. For clients referred for guardianship services by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services, the
actual cost paid by Contractor for expenses incurred in the performance of Contractors duties
under this Agreement, including, but not limited, to filing fees, bond costs and appraisal fees
where no other source of reimbursement exists, not to exceed $5,000.00.

2. Payment to the Contractor for the provision of services to clients whose guardianship
services are requested by the Bureaus of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services
will be made on a monthly basis subject to the following conditions:

2.1. The State shall at the beginning of the agreement period make a payment of
$160,112.99 the estimated fee for service payment due to the Contractor for providing
services for a period of two months. Adjustments for underpayments or overpayments
will be made at the end of the first quarter of the program period. This initial payment is
the amount the State has determined is necessary to initiate the services.

2.2. A monthly payment equal to $80,056.50 will be made to the Contractor at the beginning
of September and continuing through the end of the Agreement or until the maximum
Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials R?J
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #1

amount of the contract has been reached. The per diem rate will be extended to the
last day of the month following the month in which the client dies or for whom the
guardianship/protection service is terminated.

2.3. The fee for quarterly adjustments shall be calculated by:

2.3.1. multiplying the per diem rate times the total number of days of service provided
during the quarter to each eligible client under this Agreement, and by

2.3.2. adding to this amount any reimbursement due for the quarter to the Contractor
for clients referenced in paragraph 2.2. and the reimbursement due for the
provision of technical assistance to private guardians referenced in paragraph
1.3. of Exhibit A.

2.4, Beginning in October, 2010, and at the end of each quarter thereafter, the Contractor
agrees to submit, by the fifth day of the following month, to the Division a standard form
entitled "Quarterly Payment Computation and Authorization, Office of Public Guardian".
At the end of each month there shall be a list of clients or an updated list of clients for
whom the Contractor is providing for services. The list of clients shall indicate the name,
address and date of death for those clients who have died during the month.

2.4.1. The "Quarterly Payment Computation and Authorization, Office of Public
Guardian” form shall serve as a voucher detailing how reimbursement due for the
quarter in which services were performed was calculated. The form shall
contain:

2.4.1.1. ldentification of the service period;
2.4.1.2. Contract number and period;

2.4.1.3. Statistics which document the number of clients on the Contractor's
caseload during the service period. The statistics shall be recorded
and shall specify the number of persons served by type of services,
the names of cases added or closed during the quarter. Orders for
new guardianship appointments shall be attached to the statistics as
soon as they become available. Persons added during the service
period for whom prior approval has not been obtained, but for whom
the Contractor is seeking reimbursement, must be formally authorized
to receive services before they are calculated into the authorized
payment due for the service period. A brief explanation shall be
provided for any client for whom services have been terminated,

2.4.1.4. Cumulative to date revenues received; and

2.4.1.5. Calculation of the total authorized payment due for the service quarter
in accordance with 2.3. above;

2.4.2. The first "Quarterly Payment Computation and Authorization, Office of Public
Guardian" report shall be submitted by no later than October 5, 2015 and the
final report by July 10, 2016. Failure to submit such reports shall constitute an
Event of Default.

2.5. On a quarterly basis, the State shall ensure that the total payments for services under
this Agreement are not less than the prorated minimum contract amounts. The State
shall make any payments necessary under this provision by the 15th day of the month
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following the end of the quarter and specifically as provided in subparagraphs
2.5.1-2.5.3. below.

2.5.1. The Contractor shall notify the State in its October 2015 "Quarterly Payment and
Computation Report, Office of Public Guardian" in the event that payment for
services for the months of July 2010 through September 2015 is less than
$5,008,271.00, whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for the
difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and $5,008,271.00.

2.5.2. The Contractor shall notify the State in its January 2016 "Quarterly Payment and
Computation Report, Office of Public Guardian” in the event that payment for
services for the months of July 2010 through December 2015 is less than
$5,272,378.00, whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for the
difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and $5,272,378.00.

2.5.3. The Contractor shall notify the State in its April 2016 "Quarterly Payment and
Computation Report, Office of Public Guardian” in the event that payment for
services for the months of July 2010 through March 2016 is less than
$5,536,485.00, whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for the
difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and $5,536,485.00.

2.6. By August 15, 2010, the Contractor shall submit an annual Quality Assurance Plan for
the approval of the Office of Client and Legal Services. The Contractor shall in a timely
fashion modify or amend the plan based on the Department’s response to the plan.
The Contractor shall submit a plan acceptable to the Office of Client and Legal Services
by no later than October 31, 2010. Failure to submit an acceptable Quality Assurance
Plan shall constitute an Event of Default. Payments will not continue until receipt of the
plan.

2.6.1. The Contractor agrees to include a representative, to be named by the Office of
Client and Legal Services, to participate in the design and implementation of the
Contractors Quality Assurance Plan.

2.6.2. The Contractor will submit, on a monthly basis a report on Quality Assurance
activities no later than the 5th day of the following month.

2.7. The quarterly service payment due shall not be made until and unless the "Quarterly
Computation and Authorization, Office of Public Guardian™ form for the service quarter
has been received by the Department.

2.8. The Contractor also agrees that full payment for the final quarter of the program period
shall not be made by the Department until and unless the Contractor submits the
"Quarterly Payment Computation and Authorization, Office of Public Guardian™ form for
the final quarter of the program period and "Summary Report of Quality Assurance
Activities" of activities for the agreement period.

3. Payment to the Contractor for the provision of services to clients whose guardianship
services are requested by the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services will be made on a monthly
basis subject to the following conditions:

3.1. The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis in accordance with procedures
and instructions established by the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services and provided to
the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit with the monthly invoice a list of clients
served during the month for which the invoice is being submitted. The Bureau of Elderly
& Adult Services shall pay the Contractor by multiplying the per diem rate times the total
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number of days for each service provided during the month to each eligible client under
this Agreement.

3.2. Invoices shall be due by the 15th of the month following the month in which services are
provided.

3.3. The Contractor shall review the BEAS cases monthly and move individuals to a different
funding mechanism, if possible, to allow more openings for additional referrals. In all
cases where alternate funding becomes available, the Contractor shall transfer the ward
from BEAS funded slot within sixty (60) days.

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
federal or state law, rule, or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.
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Special Provisions

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

3. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

3.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;

3.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

3.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

4. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period, or for a longer
period where noted below:

4.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period. Said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department,
between the Effective Date and a date six years after the Completion Date of this Agreement,
and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such
as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations
of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.1.1.Access to Records. Between the Effective Date and a date six years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Contractor's normal business hours, and as often as the State
shall reasonably demand, the Contractor shall make available to the State its fiscal records
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related to this Agreement and any books, records, documents, papers or reports maintained
by the Contractor which relate to such fiscal matters. The term "Contractor” includes all
persons, natural or fictional, which are controlled by, under common ownership with, or an
affiliate of, the entity identified as the Contractor in block 1.3 of the General Provisions of
this Agreement.

4.2, Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

4.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

5. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 90 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

5.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

5.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or
federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

6. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants
contained in the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

7. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

7.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify
the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

7.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of
this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

8. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price IimitatioB_
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10.

11.

12.

13.

hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to
laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the
facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be
required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, the Contractor
will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and conditions of each
such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all rules,
orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire
protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, bylaws and
regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP.
Nonprofit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established
at 41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013
(Pub. L.112-239) and FAR 3.908.

Exhibit C Amendment #1 Contractor Initials RPJ
Page 3 of 5 Date G-22- S



New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibit C Amendment #1

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the
workforce, of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described
in section 3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions. When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor
shall do the following:

14.1.Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating the
function

14.2.Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

14.3.Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

14.4.Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed.

14.5.DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shalt
take corrective action.

Data -- Access by State: Between the Effective Date and a date six years after the Completion Date,
at any time during the Contractor's normal business hours, and as often as the State shall reasonably
demand, the Contractor shall make available to the State all data for examination, duplication,
publication, translation, or for any other purpose. Nothing in this subparagraph shall require the
Contractor to make available data which would violate any statue, other provisions of this Agreement,
or agreements with unrelated third parties. The term "Contractor” includes all persons, natural or
fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership with, or an affiliate of, the entity
identified as the Contractor in block 1.3. of the General Provisions of this Agreement.

Time Study: The parties agree to pilot different reporting indicators. The Contractor agrees to
perform a time study for all State funded clients. The time study shall be performed in accordance
with procedures established by the State. The Contractor shall provide the State with “Quarterly
Statistical Reporting” forms within thirty days after the end of each quarter. The parties further
acknowledge that said forms may undergo changes to refine the data collected and may be modified
by mutual agreement.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Agreement to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Agreement. The State may terminate this Agreement and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments-Individual Services: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in

this Agreement or in any other document, agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and

agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor

for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement and no

payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided prior to
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20.

21.

22,

23.

the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the federal
regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Retroactive Payments-Contractor Services: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in
this Agreement or in any other document, agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and
agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor
for any costs incurred for any purposes prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services or the Agreement shall include the following
statement: “The preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed under an Agreement with
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
or in whole by the (State of New Hampshire and/or United States Department of Health and Human
Services.)"

Criminal Background Check: The Contractor shall conduct criminal background checks if a
potential applicant for employment or volunteer, funded under this contract, may have client contact in
the client’s place of residence.

Adult Protective Service Registry: The Contractor shall meet the requirements of RSA 161-F: 49
Registry, VII, which requires the submission of the name of a prospective employee who may have
client contact, for review against the State Adult Protective Service Registry, effective July 1, 2007.

Complaint Resolution Policy: The Contractor shall develop a written policy with regard to the
intake, investigation, resolution, and reporting of complaints received from wards, families of wards,
or providers of services to wards. Said policy shall be available for distribution to interested parties as
needed.
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Additional Special Provisions

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this
Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any
subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or
availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in
excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification
of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such
funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify
services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction,
termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the
State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to
terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data
requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and
shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

10.6 In the event of termination under paragraph 10. of the General Provisions, the approval of such
a Termination Report by the State shall entitle the Contractor to receive that portion of the
Contract Price earned to and including the date of termination. The Contractor's obligation to
continue to provide services under this Agreement shall cease upon termination by the State.

10.7 In the event of termination under paragraph 10. of the General Provisions, the approval of a
Termination Report by the State shall in no event relieve the Contractor from any and all liability
for damages sustained or incurred by the State as a result of the Contractor's breach of its
obligations hereunder.
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37 Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in
amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence with additional
general liability umbrella coverage of not less than $1,000,000, and professional malpractice
insurance covering all professional and/or licensed personnel engaged in the performance of
the services hereunder.

4. Subparagraph 14.1. of the General Provisions of this contract, is amended by adding the following
subparagraph 14.1.3:

14.1.3 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall maintain a fidelity bond, covering the
activities of all employees or agents with authority to control or have access to any funds
provided under this Agreement in an amount equal to at least twenty-five (25) percent of the
minimum contract amount specified in paragraph 1 of Exhibit B.

5. The Division reserves the right to annually renew the Contract up to five times, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor
and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

o
Contractor Name: O ¥Fce ol PubltC. Goardian

5.2 .5 2@\‘6 vL&v__

D N
ate T:, Reeco. P Joria
TREASURE -

Exhibit G- Amendment #1 J
Contractor Initials @

Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations
and Whistleblower protections

8127114
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | - Amendment #1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501,

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials Em

Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement 'S
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | Amendment #1

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
l For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
ll. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials PR)
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit| Amendment #1

(3)

3/12014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit I Amendment #1 Contractor Initials Bm
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement o
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | Amendment #1

3/2014

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524,

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials RRJ
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement u
Page 4 of 6 pate_522°1S



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | Amendment #1

(4)

(8)

(6)

3/2014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials _P*PL
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

R Orat. of Heaphin @ Homon Sw. béc'\cc o ?ob\t‘c Goordvon
The State / of the ontractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Slg of Authorlzed Representatlve

_éi‘&iaa_/fm__ _Eeé@: P e
Narhe of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

~

Aacocste Commussioner TREasueer_

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
b)2)is 5.22. 2015
Date Date
3/2014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials ‘2’?‘3
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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State of Nefw Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed July 14, 1983. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto

set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 28" day of April, A.D. 2015

oy Sidln

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
, i) LSHAN 'FO% , do hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of GIQCC O( ?\)b\\ C G)DCLIO{ ((U’]

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on N\wj iy ‘20l5:

—r
RESOLVED: That the Lreaaurey”

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the o?Q"c‘jay of Mq,j , 201 5.

@C)&?\éf J O\'DI A is the duly elected | reasspre A

of the Agency. ? %p

~ Slsan Fox, OPG Board of Directors President

STATE OF _\l0 MW Ay

County of 4 N ) I'\ [1(,4(/
Iad
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 522 day of /V , 20 2 0,

By SuHAN ‘:DY'

{Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) /l W
a/i Ly QSM/

(Notar ic Y Nistice of the Peace)
INOTARY SEAL
MARY K. RAULSTON, Notary Public
My Commission Expires July 13, 2016
Commission Expires:
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July t, 2005

Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



Client#: 63457

ACORD..

OFFIC1

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY}

04/24/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Davis Towle Morrill & Everett
115 Airport Road

P O Box 1260

Concord, NH 03302-1260

CONTACT
NAME:

PHONE ey 603 225-6611

FAX Noj: 603-225-7935

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

NAIC #

INSURER A : Covington Specialty Insurance |

INSURED

Office of Public Guardian, Inc.
2 Pillsbury Street, Suite #400

Concord, NH 03301

INSURER B : TOrus Specialty Insurance Co.

INSURER ¢ : Wesco Insurance Company

INSURERD :

INSURERE :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

ADDLISUBR]

POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR [WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) [(MM/IDD/YYYY) LIMITS
A [ GENERAL LIABILITY VBA31626800 01/05/2015{01/05/2016] EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PAMARE L GRENIED, o) | 550,000
—I CLAIMS-MADE I:] OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $
X{ BI/PD Ded:250 PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY |8
GENERAL AGGREGATE 51,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | §
POLICY TR LocC 8
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY %c;r\gggéignsmel.e LIMIT s
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED ;
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
B UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR 83731E52ALI 01/05/2015|01/05/2016] EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 51,000,000
DED 1 ] RETENTION $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
c AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY vIn WWC3096299 08/30/2014(08/30/2015 X ITORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE L. EACH ACCIDE 0,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A EL. EACH ACCIDENT $500,
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E£.L. DISEASE - Pouicy LimiT | $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

** Workers Comp information **

Voluntary Compensation ; Other States Coverage
Proprietors/Partners/Executive Officers/Members Excluded: Robert Wells, Roger Jobin, Michael Fuerot

3A States: NH

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

DHHS - Bureau of Community Based

Care Services

BBH, DEAS, BDAS, 105 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ATl

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of1
#S181033/M181032

&7 TR 7 ©1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SML




OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

MISSION / PURPOSE

OUR PURPOSE

The Office of Public Guardian is a private non-profit corporation organized in 1979 to provide
guardianship and advocacy services to citizens of New Hampshire.

The Office of Public Guardian provides services throughout the state to approximately 950 legally
incapacitated adults, including those with developmental disabilities, mental illness, dementia and
traumatic brain injury. Our professional staff provides depth of experience and a wide array of services
to clients on a fee for services basis and to qualified indigent clients through a contract with the State of
New Hampshire.

OUR MISSION

Our goal is to protect the legal and human rights and civil liberties of each individual we serve. Our
professional guardians exercise the highest ethical standards in decision-making on behalf of our clients.
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éVACHON CLUKAY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

608 Chestnut Street » Manchester, New Hampshire 03104

& CoMPANY PC (603) 622-7070 » Fax: (603) 622-1452 + www.vachonclukay.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Office of Public Guardian, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (a
non-profit entity) which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and
the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the

financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Office of Public Guardian, Inc. as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters

We were not engaged to audit the statement of financial position of the agency funds of the
Office of Public Guardian, Inc. Those funds, which are more fully described in Note 8 to the financial
statements, were approximately $17,454,858 at June 30, 2014 and $16,889,980 at June 30, 2013, as

represented by management,

uﬁu%g%&

Manchester, New Hampshire
November 26, 2014



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible
receivables of $20,000 and $12,000 in 2014 and 2013, respectively
Contracts receivable
Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Condominium Unit
Office furniture and equipment
Computer equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

OTHER ASSETS:
Restricted cash
Investments-restricted
Software, net of accumulated amortization of $135,393 in 2014 and $130,477 in 2013
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS - NET

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities:
Accrued payroll
Accrued vacation
Other

Current pottion of long-term debt

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Mortgage notes payable, less current portion of $22,729 in 2014 and $21,478 in 2013
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See notes o financial statements

2014 2013
$ 337,384 § 304,344
82,342 76,156
25,433 35,117
19,406 15,752
464,565 431,369
1,094,479 1,046,034
110,910 71,410
81,486 58,019
1,286,875 1,175,463
296,846 254,128
990,029 921,335
5,199 5,117
121,300 108,125
6,374 11,290
132,873 124,532
$1,587,467 $1,477,236
$ 206,063 $ 26,393
37,345 27,694
122,482 134,015
24,889 18,524
22,729 21,478
233,508 228,104
628,046 650,169
628,046 650,169
599,414 485,721
26,499 13,242
100,000 100,000
725913 598,963
$1,587,467 $1,477,230




OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:
REVENUES:
Fees and grants from governmental agencies $ 1,260,679 $1,221,964
Other fees 1,346,711 1,149,068
Interest income 167 199
Other income 7,663
Gain or loss on disposal of assets (1,412)
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES 2,615,220 2,369,819
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS: 5,850 5,791
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 2,621,070 2,375,610
EXPENSES:
Salaries, wages and temporary labor 1,632,462 1,464,332
Employee benefits 307,131 337,051
Payroll taxes 130,573 121,585
Travel 51,021 50,597
Depreciation 42,718 36,685
Interest expense 40,285 41,514
Office expense 41,599 42,254
Condominium fees 37,756 37,414
Telephone 32,784 33,029
Other 25,070 14,932
Computer support and maintenance 31,003 32,341
Professional fees 23,665 15,561
Postage 19,087 17,883
Repairs and maintcnance 31,035 15,822
Bad debt 11,550 11,142
Staff development 21,806 11,804
General insurance 7,816 9,677
Journals and publications , 7,502 5,884
Settlements - 5,000
Utilities 4,890 4,427
Printing 2,508 1,596
Amortization 5,116 3,390
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,507,377 2,313,920
INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 113,693 61,690
CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS:
Realized and unrealized gains on investments 17,115 10,972
Dividend income 1,992 1,832
Net assets released from temporary restrictions (5,850) (5,791)
INCREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 13,257 7,013
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 126,950 68,703
NET ASSETS, July 1 598,963 530,260
NET ASSETS, June 30 $ 725913 $ 598,963

See notes to financial statements



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received from clients and third party payers

Cash received from governmental agencies
Interest income from operations

Cash paid to employees

Cash paid to suppliers

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property, plant and cquipment
Purchase of software
Cash paid for investments
Realized gains on investments
Cash received from dividends
Proceeds from sale of investments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Payments on mortgage debt
Net Cash Used for Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash
Cash, Beginning of Year
Cash, End of Year

Reconciliation of Increase in Net Assets to Net

Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Increase in net assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets {o
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation

Amortization

Realized gains on sales of investments
Unrealized gains on invesuments
Investment related income

Loss on disposal of asscts

Bad debts
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Contracts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Supplemental Data:
Book value of assets scrapped
Interest paid

See notes to financial statements

o
N

|

$1,328,975

2013

$1,188,504

1,278,026 1,221,119
167 199
(1,634,344)  (1,435,663)
(813,350) (800,686)
159,474 173,473
(114,412) (33,577)

- (8,481)
(20,217) (22,128)
4,997 1,036
1,992 1,832
22,160 18,611
(105,480) (42,707)
(20,872) (44,644)
(20,872) (44,644)
33,122 86,122
309,461 223,339
$ 342,583  $ 309461
$ 126950 $ 68,703
42,718 36,685
5,116 3,390
(4,997) (1,036)
(12,118) (9,936)
(1,992) (1,832)

- 1,412
11,550 11,142
(17,736) 39,436
9,684 (844)
(3,854) (391)
(330) 14,999
4,483 11,745

$ 159,474 $ 173473
$ - $ 1412
$ 40285 § 41,514




OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

NOTE 1--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Entity and Purpose

The Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (the Entity) was incorporated as a non-profit organization on July 14,
1983. The Entity was established (o provide guardianship, co-guardianship and conservatorship services
for individuals found to be legally incapacitated pursuant to New Hampshire State law (RSA 464-A) and
other applicable statutes. Protective services other than guardianship may include but are not limited to,
power of attorney, client representative, or services as a representative or protective payee.

The accounting policies of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit organizations, except as indicated
hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entitics included within the FASI3 Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of
net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted.

Contributions

Contributions received by the Entity are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions.

Basis of Accounting
‘The financial statcments have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues from program services are recorded when carned. Other miscellaneous revenues are recorded
upon receipt.

Pervasiveness of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Significant estimates include depreciation expense and the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Recognition of Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in unrestricted
net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other
time and donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets,

Property, Equipment, and Intangibles

Property and equipment are stated at cost. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements and to charge operations currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of
related assets. The provision for depreciation is determined by the straight line method at rates intended
to depreciate or amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years
Intangibles 3
Equipment 5-10
Furniture 5-10
Buildings 40

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. For the year ended June 30, 2014 and
2013, the Entity reserved $20,000 and $12,000, respectively, as an allowance for uncollectible
receivables. Management estimated these allowances by evaluating the probability of collection on a per
account basis.

Accrued Vacation

Full time employees accrue Paid Time Off (PTO) during their first year of employment at a rate of 9.38
hours per completed month of service. Afler the first year of service employees are credited with 150 to
262.5 hours of PTO for that year on January 1st, based on each employee’s years of service. Employees
may carry over 37.5 to 150 hours of unused PTO into each calendar year based on their years of service.
Any accrued, but unused PTO is payable to the employee upon separation from employment and has
been recorded as a liability at year end.

Income Tuxes

The Entity has received a determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies
for tax-exempt status under Section 501(¢)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code for its exempt function
income. In addition, the Entity is not subject to state income taxes.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an interpretation on Income Taxes which
fundamentally changes the way that the Entity will be required to treat its uncertain tax positions for
financial accounting purposes. 1t prescribes rules regarding how the Entity should recognize, measure
and disclose in its financial statements tax positions that were taken or will be taken on the Entity’s tax
return that are reflected in measuring current or deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Differences
between tax positions taken in a tax return and amounts recognized in the financial statements will
generally result in an increase in a liability for income taxes payable, or a reduction in a deferred tax
asset or an increasc in a deferred tax liability. The Entity did not have any unrecognized tax benefits and
determined the impact of this new interpretation was not material to the financial statements. During the
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FFor the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, no new additional unrecognized tax benefits were identified. Tax
years ended June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014 are open for possible examination by the Internal Revenue
Service.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of reporting cash flows, the Entity considers all highly liquid investments with an initial
maturity of 90 days or less as cash equivalents,

Investments

The Board of Directors of the Entity has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds
Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this
interpretation, the Entity classifies the original value of the gift as permanently restricted net assets. The
remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as temporarily restricted net
assets until approved for expenditure when it is reclassified to unrestricted net assets. The Entity
appropriates amounts for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by
SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, the Entity considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) duration and
preservation of the endowment funds; (2) the purposes of the Entity and the endowment fund; (3) general
economic conditions; (4) effect of inflation and deflation; (5) the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (6) other resources of the Entity; and (7) the investment policy of the
Entity.

The Entity has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of income of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of those endowment assets over the long term. Endowment assets include
those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Entity must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified
periods. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in
a manner that is intended to achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as
well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable levels of risk. The
Lntity expects its endowment assets, over time, to produce an average return of approximately 10%
annually. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount,

To satisty its long-term rate of return objectives, the Entity relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation and current yield. The Entity targets a
diversified asset allocation which includes equity and debt securities. This is intended to result in a
consistent inflation-protection rate of return that has sufficient liquidity to make an annual distribution of
approximately $5,000, while growing the fund if possible.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor or SPMIFA requires the Entity to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration.

The following tabulation summarizes the relationship between carrying values and market values of
investment assets for the years ending June 30, 2014 and 2013:



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

For the Year Ended June 30,2014
Temporarily  Permanently

Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets, as

of July 1,2013 $ 13242 $ 100,000 $ 113,242
Investment return:

Investment income 6,989 6,989

Net appreciation 12,118 12,118
Total investment return 32,349 100,000 132,349
Appropriation of endowment

assets for expenditure (5,850) (5,850)
Endowment net assets, as

of June 30, 2014 § 26,499 $ 100,000 $ 126,499

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
Temporarily  Permanently

Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets, as

of July 1,2012 $ 6,229 $ 100,000 $ 106,229
Investment return:

Investiment income 2,868 2,868

Net appreciation 9,936 9,936
Total investment return 19,033 100,000 119,033
Appropriation of endowment

assets for expenditure (5,791) (5,791)
Endowment net assets, as

of June 30, 2013 $ 13242 $ 100,000 $ 113,242

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity has adopted the FASB Accounting Standards Codification standard, Fair Value
Measurements, which establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the Fair Value Measurements are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation mecthodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Plan has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:
* Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

e Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
» Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

9
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e Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used
need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs at the closing
price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Bond and Equity Murual Funds: Valued at the net asset value (“NAV™) of shares held by the plan at year
end.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.

The Entity’s investments, comprised of mutual funds, were reported at fair value by Level 1 inputs in the
amounts of $121,300 and $108,125 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

The Entity’s investments as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are stated at fair value. Shares of the separate
investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices, which represent the net value of shares held by
the Entity at year-end.

Purchases and sales of securities arc recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded on the
accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, investments have a market value of $121,300 and $108,125, cost basis of
$97,489 and $96,432, realized gains of $4,997 and $1,036, unrealized gains of $12,118 and $9,936,
investment returns of $1,992 and $1,832, and endowment expenditures of 35,850 and $5,791,
respectively.

NOTE 2--ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE
The Entity's primary source of support are fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire and
were $1,094,677 and $1,021,530 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The grant

agreements have been renewed for the next fiscal year. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms

10
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of the contract and is received on a cost reimbursement basis. Other support originates as charges for
private services, fees from regional non-profit agencies, interest, and other income. The Contract has
been renewed for the year ended June 20, 2015.

NOTE 3--DONOR-DESIGNATED ENDOWMENTS

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Entity held $100,000 and $100,000 in permanently restricted funds,
respectively as a result of a prior endowment gift.

NOTE 4--LINE OF CREDIT

The Entity has a demand line of credit of $50,000 at the bank’s variable interest rate (3.25% at June 30,
2014). As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding balance of the linc of credit is $-0-.

NOTE 5--MORTGAGE NOTE PAYABLE

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, mortgage notes payable consist of the following:

2014 2013
$786,000 mortgage note payable, bank, secured by
property, payable in monthly installments of interest
and principal reduction of $5,096 through October 14,
2015 with interest at 6% per annum. A final balloon
payment of $625,258 is due October 12, 2015, $ 650,775 % 671,647
l.ess current portion 22,729 21,478

$ 628,046 § 650,169

Debt service requirements are as follows;

Year Amount
2015 $ 22,729
2016 628,046

It is the intention of the Entity to re-finance its mortgage before the final payment due date.
NOTE 6--RETIREMENT PLAN

The Entity has a tax deferred annuity plan under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for all full-
time employees. An employee becomes eligible to participate at the commencement of employment and
is vested when an initial contribution is made. Employer contributions are made on each participant's
behall at 5% of gross wages each year. For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Entity
contributed $62,752 and $57,033 respectively, to the plan.
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NOTE 7--FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The Organization generally reports on the natural classification of expenses. Functional expense
allocations are based on the estimated allocation to direct programming costs to specific programs and
supporting services (Management and General Expenses). The summary of functional expenses is

reported as follows based on direct and allocated costs for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Functional Expenses

2014 2013
Program expenses $ 1,856,851 $ 1,847,811
Management and General Expenses 650,526 466,109

§ 2,507,377 § 2,313,920

NOTE 8--AGENCY FUNDS

The Entity maintains guardian accounts on behalf of the wards of the State. These funds amounted to
approximately $17,454,858 and $16,889,980 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The assets and
related obligation have not been reflected on the Statements of Financial Position at June 30, 2014 and
2013.

NOTE 9--SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 26, 2014, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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EDUCATION:

PROFESSIONAL
EXPERIENCE:

CERTIFICATIONS:

MEMBERSHIPS:

LINDA MALLON, ESQUIRE

Franklin Pierce Law Center, Concord, New Hampshire

Juris Doctor, 1982
Admission to New Hampshire Bar, 1982

Trinity College, Hartford, Connecticut
B.A., American Studies, 1977

OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

Concord, New Hampshire

Executive Director, 1998-Present

Deputy Director, 1985-1998

Public Guardian, 1984-1985

Responsible for directing a non-profit organization certified by the NH Supreme Court to
provide public guardianship throughout the State of NH to qualified indigent citizens
receiving services through the Department of Health and Human Services and Department of
Corrections

Responsible for overseeing the provision of private guardianship and other fiduciary services
to individuals statewide

Provide supervision, consultation and training to twenty-six staff members including
attorneys, medical professionals and social workers

Develop organizational policies and procedures

Provide education, training and other consultative services on a state, regional and national
basis

NEW ENGLAND NON-PROFIT

HOUSING CORPORATION

Concord, New Hampshire
Staff Attorney, 1982-1984

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

INSTITUTIONAL LAW PROJECT

Concord, New Hampshire
Law Clerk, 1981-1982
Statewide program concerned with matters affecting the rights of institutionalized and

disabled persons in the areas of mental health, developmental disabilities, juvenile and prison law.

Focus on pursuing remedies which enabled these individuals to live in the least restrictive,

most integrated community setting possible.

Center for Guardianship Certification

Certified Master Guardian
Certified Proctor for CGC exams

National Guardianship Association

Ethics Committee; First Responder
Nominating Committee

New Hampshire Bar Association
Elder Law, Estate Planning and Probate Section

Probate Court Task Force on Professional Guardians
Long Term Care Ombudsman Advisory Committee
Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee
Foundation for Healthy Communities

Healthcare Decisions Coalition



Education:

Professional
Experience:

7/09 — Present:

2/01 — Present

2000 ~ 2001

Darcy G. Johnson
Office of Public Guardian
2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400
Concord, NH 03301

diohnson@opgnh.org
(603) 224-8041

Syracuse University
Syracuse, NY
B.S. Business Administration

Chaplaincy Institute of Maine
Portland, ME
Ordained interfaith Chaplain:

Andover Newton Theological School
Newton Center, MA
Currently enrolled: CAGS Ethics and Social Justice

Assaociate Director
Office of Public Guardian
2 Pillsbury Street

Suite 400

Concord, NH 03301

Responsibilities include assisting with palicies and

procedures; assessing and streamlining documentation
requirements; supporting effective use of resources; assessing and
supporting technology; assist with contract compliance.

Public Guardian

Responsibilities include advocacy, strong documentation and
communication skills, working with service providers, medical
professionals, families, NH State benefit providers, NH Probate Courts.

Associate Director
Chesco, Inc.

12 Wilson Street
Keene, NH 03431

Provided residential services to individuals with developmental
disabilities. Supervised staff providing care to individuals in their homes



Darcy G. Johnson
Office of Public Guardian
2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400
Concord, NH 03301

djohnson@opgnh.org
(603) 224-8041

1997 - 2000 Community Network Coordinator
Monadnock Partnership
Monadnock Developmental Services
121 Railroad Street
Keene, NH 03431

Coordinated a pilot project to join individuals representing a variety of
social services in the Monadnock Region. Held trainings to assist in
serving individuals with multiple needs.

1995 - 1997 Executive Director
Spring Hill of Ashby, Inc.
Ashby, MA

Hired to reorganize organization after bankruptcy. Restructured
services, debt and income. Supervised one hundred volunteers.
Managed workshop schedule and trainings. Directed database
conversion.

Trainings National Certified Guardian
and Certifications: Center for Guardianship Certification
October, 2002 to Present

Attendance at the National Guardianship Conference
including topics on eldercare, ethics, Probate court
issues, and guardianship best practices.

2001 to Present

Antioch New England, Keene, NH
Post graduate coursework in Psychology

Smith College, Northampton, MA
Post graduate coursework in Social Work

Cambridge College, Springfield, MA
Post Graduate course in Psychopharmacology

Spring Hill Institute
Two year certification: Body-centered Psychotherapy

The Four Winds Society
Certification in Energy Medicine

Hospice Volunteer Training
Women's Crisis Domestic Violence Crisis Volunteer Training



ANDREA L. SISSON, CPA
Office of Public Guardian
2 Pillsbury St., Suite 400
Concord, NH 03301
(603) 224-8041

SUMMARY:

e 18 years of experience with local CPA firms working with a wide range of clients
including small service businesses, non-profit organizations and multi-million dollar
manufacturing companies.

Co-founded and managed local payroll service bureau.
Proficient in various types of tax return preparation, all areas of accounting, bookkeeping
and payroll.

¢ Designed and implemented customized bookkeeping systems for clients.

e Hired, trained and supervised staff at various levels.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Office of Public Guardian Concord, New Hampshire
Business Manager 10/2007-Present
e Responsible for all financial aspects of the organization including daily
accounting work, preparation of financial statements, preparation of payroll for 27
person staff, creation of budgets
e Responsible for supervision of all administrative staff and oversight of all
administrative functions of the entity
e Assist in the development of organizational policies and procedures as a member
of the management team

Peter C. Brankman and Company, P.C. Concord, New Hampshire
Senior Staff Accountant/Manager 10/2004 —- 10/2007
e Managed individual tax portion of practice (400-500 returns); controlled work
flow, supervised staff, prepared returns in a fast-paced deadline driven
environment.
e Designed and implemented paperless individual tax processing system.
e Perform compilations, reviews and audits of various for profit and non-profit
client financial statements.
Designed and implemented bookkeeping systems for clients.
Trained and supervised staff on all types of engagements.



D’Agnese, Robinson and Company/Stephen C. Robinson and Company, /McLarney
and Company (Same firm various owners) Concord, New Hampshire
Staff Accountant/Senior Staff Accountant/Manager 9/1989 — 6/2004

o Assisted and advised clients with various accounting and management functions.
Installed and set up accounting software packages; train client personnel.
Managed all bookkeeping clients.
Designed and implemented accounting and internal control procedures.
Managed work flow through busy tax seasons
Hired, trained and supervised staff.

EDUCATION:
¢ BS in Accounting, Bentley College May 1989



PROFESSIONAL
EXPERIENCE:

2/08 to present

8/04 to 2/08

10/01 to 8/04

CYNTHIA ANN FLANAGAN
Office of Public Guardian
2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400
Concord, NH 03301
(603) 224-8041

OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400, Concord, NH 03301

Director of Estate Services

Responsible for overseeing the daily operations of a 6 person

estate department which manages the finances of OPG clients; this
includes serving in the capacity of guardian of the estate, Social Security
Representative Payee, and Trustee to include Special Needs Trusts.
Duties include: Supervises 5 full time staff, participates in intake review,
assigns new cases, monitors all court submissions from the Estate
Department including inventories, accountings and petitions, coordinates
annual review of ward’s investment assets, maintains knowledge of
current public benefit rules and keeps abreast of changes as they arise,
maintains caseload which results in continued interactions with wards,
guardians and multiple benefit agencies.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER OF GREATER MANCHESTER
CSS, 1555 Elm Street, Manchester, NH 03101

Client Benefit Specialist/Practice Assistant

Assesses and assists clients without benefits in applying for appropriate
financial/medical assistance. Liaison to both the Manchester District
Office and the Medicaid Disability Determination Unit. Assists clients in
completing Medicaid applications and redeterminations. Well versed in all
aspects of Medicaid including the In/Out program. Complete working
knowledge of Medicare Part D, able to assist clients in enrollment.
Completes fee assessments according to the agency’s policy for clients
who are over income or denied benefits. Monitors client accounts
receivable and initiates collections. Supervises two full time employees.

Business Office, 401 Cypress Street, Manchester, NH 03103

Billing Specialist

Performs the following tasks in relation to client billing: Supports the
front desk with all billing related issues, collects client copays/fees,
balances cash drawer, obtains third party verification/authorizations and
sets client self-pay fees (according to Center policy). Sends out claims,
posts payments and works denials for assigned third party payor.
Monitors aging of this fund source and takes action on past due claims
(seeks payment, write-off, etc.). Provides customer service to clients with
questions regarding their bill.



8/94 to 10/01

EDUCATION:

Gemini Program, 9 Blodget Street, Manchester, NH 03104
Adminstrative Secretary

Performs a wide range of administrative and clerical duties to support
the administration and clinical services of the The Gemini Program and
The Center’s Substance Abuse Services. Tasks include but are not
limited to: Meeting coordination, taking and transcribing meeting
minutes, quality assurance (including participation on two QI Teams),
calculation of resident rents, spreadsheets, committee membership, staff
scheduling, development of policies and procedures and purchasing.

Emergency Services, 401 Cypress Street, Manchester, NH 03103
Secretary

Provided secretarial support to a busy emergency services department
including word processing, transcription, customer service, maintaining
clinical records, scheduling appointments and all other clerical tasks.

Attended, New Hampshire College, Manchester, NH
Attended, UNH Manchester, Manchester, NH



E-Mail:
Phone:

Tracy M. Culberson, Esq.

Experience

2015 - Current Office of Public Guardian

Staff Attorney / National Certified Guardian

¢ Provide legal counsel as necessary to assist in the provision of guardianship
services to incapacitated clients throughout New Hampshire.
» Provide guardianship services to incapacitated adults

2011 —Current  Culberson Legal Services of New Hampshire, PLLC

Owner / Solo Practitioner
» Legal services to include probate litigation, elder law and estate planning, and
Nursing Home Abuse Litigation

2006-2011 Office of the New Hampshire Attorney General, Concord NH
Assistant Attormey General
= Head of the Elder Abuse and Financial Exploitation Unit

= Prosecuted cases of homicide, abuse, neglect, and financial exploitation of
elderly and incapacitated adults in Superior, District, and Probate Courts
throughout the State of New Hampshire. Notable prosecutions include:

* Trained medical professionals, first responders, judges, court personnel,
emergency service providers, and adult protection workers in identifying signs
and symptoms of elder abuse, neglect, self-neglect and exploitation, mandatory
reporting, investigation techniques and evidence preservation.

» Drafted and filed State’s response to defendant’s appeal to Supreme Court.
= Chaimman of the Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee.

2005-2006 Office of the Hillsborough County Attorney, Manchester NH

Assistant County Attomey

s Represented the State and Hillsborough County in Juvenile, District and
Superior Courts.

= Prosecution of misdemeanor and felony-level crimes.

= Presentation of felony cases to the grand jury for indictment.

Co-Director of Communities Against Senior Exploitation (CASE) Partnership.

1992-2005 Goffstown Police Department, Goffstown NH
Police Officer / Prosecutor
s Certified New Hampshire Police Officer

= Instructed and trained police officers in the areas of juvenile law, criminal and
motor vehicle law enforcement and adjudication, search and seizure, use of
force, constitutional law, and the laws of arrest.

» Drafted, reviewed, and executed search and arrest wamants.

* Training and experience In the investigation of felonies and serious
misdemeanors to include homicide, sexual assault, child neglect and abuse,
robbery, burglary, arson, fraud, intemet crimes and financial exploitation.



Education

Certifications and
Professional
Organization
Memberships

Continuing Legal
Education

2005-2007 Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH
Adjunct Faculty
= |nstructor within the Department of Criminal Justice.

Specific instruction in courses to include “Criminal Adjudication”, “The
Constitution and the Criminal Justice Protocol® and “Domestic Violence and
Juvenile Justice”.

2005-Current New Hampshire Police Standards and Training Council, Concord NH
Guest Lecturer

» Instructor for in-service training of police officers attending "Basic Police
Prosecutor” Course.

s Lectured on topics to include “The Rules of Evidence”, “Case Preparation and
Analysis® and “Elder Abuse and Financial Exploitation Investigation”.

= Facilitator of mock DWI trials.

2004 Massachusetts School of Law North Andover, MA
= Juris Doctor Degree

1992 Saint Anselm College Goffstown, NH
s Bachelor of Arts Degree

= Completion of requirements for Criminal Justice in 1992

Completion of requirements for English in 1998

2008-Current — Chair of Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee

2006-Current — Co-Chairperson of Law Enforcement Sub-Committee of the Eider
Abuse Advisory Council

2006-Current — Panel Member of Long-Term Care Safety Net Committee

2004 — Member of the Massachusetts Bar Association BA-159542
2004 — Member of the New Hampshire Bar Association BA-16430
2005 - Justice of the Peace — New Hampshire

s 1992 - Certified New Hampshire Police Officer

= Tral Advocacy | — National District Attomney’s Association: Trial Advocacy Il —-
National District Attormey’s Association: Prosecuting Cases of Elder Abuse —
National District Attomey's Association: Advanced Cross Examination: Nuts and
Bolts of Criminal Law: Access to Public Records: New Hampshire Bar
Association Practical Skills Course: Communities Against Senior Exploitation
(CASE) Partnership: NH Attomey General's Child Abuse and Domestic Violence
Conference.



Other
= Board of Directors: Honor Flight New England
= Board of Directors for Suncook Youth Soccer

= Conversational French; Percussionist.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES
BUREAU OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commisaiorier 105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-6000 1-800-852-3346 Ext. 6000
Nancy L. Rollins Fax: 603-271-60568 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Associate Commissioner

May 17,2010

His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch APPROVED BY

and the Honorable Executive Council ' . { '
State House ‘ DATE — 6 q‘[ 1 o
{oncord, New Hampshire 03301 PAGE ‘ 3

ITeM # , [@J

Requested Action

L Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services
(DCBCS) to enter into a agreement with the Office of Public Guardian, 10 ‘White St,, Concord, NH 03301,
vendor code 166528, to provide public guardianship services in an amount not to exceed '$878,656:80 for the
penod eﬁ'ectwe July 1, 2010 or date of Govemor and Bxecutxve Comml Val, wh:chever is later,

$95:92:920010-7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND :
HS:BEHA VIORAL HEALTH-DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUARD

Clasg Title Act e
Contracts for Program Servxces 9210‘7002

Total ~ $878,656.80

2 Authorize an advance payment up to a maximum of $140,218.98 of the contract price limitation.
Explanation

TheOffice of Public Guardidn shall provide guardianship and protection, on a statewide basis, to mentally ifl and
~ developmentally impaired persons whose incapacities leave them at risk of substantial harm because of their
mablhty to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs. These
services are needed to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard incapacitated persons in the state
instintions as well as in community mental health and developmental service programs. It also carries out the
requirements of RSA 135-C: 60, and RSA 171-A: 10, II. The Office of Public Goerdian pursuant to RSA 547-B:

6 has been designated as an approved organization for the purpose of providing guardianship and protection
services pursuant to RSA 464-A. This:contract will provide for guardianship services for up to 688 cases during
the contract period.

The emphasis in providing such services will be to ensure that the guardianships maintained and sought will be
{imited in accordance with the standards embodied in RSA 464-A.

The advance payment‘will allow the Office of Public Guardian to meet its operating obligations while providing
services during the initial two months of this contract.



His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
- and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 2

Using a public notice posted on the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) website on February 22,
2010, as RFP Number 11-DCBCS-GPS-01, DCBCS requested proposals for providing public guardianship
services in the State. Five renewals of one year each-are possible at the Department’s discretion. The Office of
Public Guardian responded by submitting a proposal to provide public guardianship services to people with a
mental illness, or a developmental disability who are eligible for State-funded services. The Office of Public
Guardian was one of two agencies to apply to provide public guardianship services.

A competitive review process was utilized to evaluate all proposals submitted by the deadline. Participants in the
review process included DHHS staff from the Bureau of Behavioral Health, the Bureau of Developmental
Services, and the Office of Client and Legal Services. This process involved an assessment of the proposal
submitted including an evaluation of scope of work; bidder background and experience, and the cost proposal.
Both proposals submitted for fiscal year 2011 scored over the required minimum.

Based on a favorable review:of the above by the review team and becaise the Office of Public Guardian has in
previous contracts amply demonstrated its ability to provide high-level public guardianship services to clients and
the community served, DCBCS requests. this contract be funded to allow the Office of Public Guardian to
continue providing services.

The contract for fiscal year 2010 was in the amount of $823;275.57 and served up to 669 cases. This proposed
contract will serve up 10,688 cases, which ineludes the- current caseload of 655, plus 14 current pending cases,
plus an additional 19 cases. Based upon_ptmous xperience, it is anticipated that there will be a need for this
agency to assumhe these additional cases from the Bifeau of Behaviornl Health, or the Bureau. of Developmental
Services this fiscal yedr. These additional slots ‘will be filled over the course of the yedr. Hence, over the yéar
there will always be a cerfaii number of vacant slots: “The maxirmim contract amount includes a one and drie<half
(1 ) percent reduétion to:reflect this vacaney iate; .

This contract inclidesa hne it for mentoring services and training. Mentormg services are provided to family
members who are willing to servé as guardian but who require a period of support. Providing this support will
obviate need for & publi¢ gudrdian in these cases and will thereby save the State from paying the cost of a
permanent public guardianship.

Area served: statewi'de.
Source of funds: 100% General Funds.
Your favorable consideratipn of this request will be greatly appreciated.
Respectfully submitted,

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

Approved by: &&Q\ A—/’7

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

KRN

Contracts FY! 1/Guardianship/Office of Public Guardian
Enclosures

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is {o join communities and families
in providing opporiunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: public guardianship services
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name

1.2 State Agency Address
105 Pleasant St

Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301

1.4  Contractor Address

1.3  Contractor Name
2 Pillsbury St., Suite 400, Concord, NH 03301

Office of Public Guardian

1.5 - Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 010-092-7002-096-0415
224-8041 6/30/11 $878,656.80
1 1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Teleplione Number
271-5144

Nancy L. Rollins

1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Roaer . jébm,_r urex

onﬂghg before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he exec%quthls';d%oument in the capacity indicated in block
1.12. \\\ \ \‘rJ\ L.

1.13.1 ignature of Nom%buc orJ ustxce of the Peace

[Seal]

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Andrea. - Sioomt <74

\\\'\,\\‘\ il IH_II///,,/
\ Y

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

i

Nancy L. Rollins, Associate Commissjoner

1.16  Approval by the N.H. Department of Admmlstratlon, Division of Personnel (if appltcable)

By: {)\2 ( A Director, On:

1.17 A prx))/al by the Attorney Genetal (Form, Substance and Execution)

o (A M o failso

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executlve Councll

By:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perforim, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7. .

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and wil take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of*
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in 2 combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement. .
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her suecessor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: E
Date: 5 2 3 Z/D



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or 2ll, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

.9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State. '

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and .including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or meinbers shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and einployees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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Contractor Initials: '
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
{(“Workers® Compensation™),

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers® Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21, HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference. :

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: ?'P
Date: 5! :l/D



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Robert A. Welis . do hereby certify that:
1. I am the duly elected Clerk of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (the “Corporation™)
2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Dlrectors of

the Corporation duly held on Morch 23, 201D

RESOLVED: That this corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through the
Department of Health and Human Services, concerning the following matter:

Guardianship Program

RESOLVED: That the Treasurer hereby is authorized on behalf of this corporation to enter into said contract
with the State of New Hampshire and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications hereto as may be necessary, desirable or appropriate.

g resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and effect as of

3. The foregqipg e I
Moy '57 201D

4. Roger Jobin is the duly elected Treasurer of this Corporation.

o,

Clerk
State of New Hampshire
County of Merrimack
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this | Sed day of
M na/ ,2010
§$Q ‘b,\‘s‘\ 4 OA 4, ¢_
S 7 commsSion z
.-? : EXPIR‘ES“ . :
DEUEMBER ‘U = - [
RPN O J 7 - i —
: & Notary Public/Justiee-ofthe Peace
My Commission Expires: A, / I / | A

~
23 Contractor Initials:_RPS
Date: 4



Exhibit A

Scope of Work

Provisions Applicable to All Services:

1.1. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide guardianship and protection services to safeguard the
liberty and well-being of persons who because of functional limitations, have suffered, are suffering, or are
likely to suffer substantial harm due to an inability to provide for personal needs for food, clothing,
shelter, health care, safety or an inability to manage their property or financial affairs. Guardianship and
protection services under this Agreement are to be provided to persons at risk of harm to person or estate
whom the state has a responsibility to safeguard pursuant to RSA 135-C: 60, and RSA 171-A: 10, I1.

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide guardianship and protection services to the persons enumerated in
paragraph 1.4.of Exhibit A. Guardianship services shall include those actions that are necessary to carry
out the duties prescribed by RSA 464-A and RSA 547-B, including appointments as guardian, co-guardian,
conservator, or temporary guardian of the person and/or estate of a ward. Protection services shall include
those actions that are necessary to carry out the duties as duly designated representative or protective
payee, client representative, attorney in fact, or other similar agent, as prescribed by applicable law, rule,
or agreement.

1.2.1. The program shall have a sufficient number of staff to adequately carry out, for all clients, all
the duties required by statue, the letters of authority, and the standards set forth in this document.

1.2.2. Upon employment professional program staff shall attend and successfully complete 20 or more
hours of orientation training and, complete 10 or more hours of annual continuing education for each
subsequent year of employment. The Contractor shall report the number of professional continuing
education hours obtained by each guardian by August 1, 2011.

1.3. The Contractor may provide technical assistance to private guardians or training to agency staff
providing direct services whose wards are clients of the Department of Health and Human Services ("the
Department"). In order to receive such technical assistance from the Contractor private guardians must
receive prior approval from the Office of Client and Legal Services for a specified number of consultation

hours.

1.4. The Contractor shall not accept or agree to provide services to any person under this Agreement
without the prior approval of the State through the Office of Client and Legal Services of the Department.
The Contractor may provide services to all persons approved for services by the State and shall not deny
services to such persons. If the Contractor believes guardianship and protection services to be
inappropriate, the Contractor shall refer the client to the New Hampshire Disabilities Rights Center, Inc.,
the New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney so that an administrative appeal or other
appropriate legal action can be taken on behalf of the client. Referrals of persons for guardianship and
protection services from the Glencliff Home For The Elderly, the New Hampshire Hospital, and
community agencies in the mental health system, developmental services system, and the adult and elderly
system shall be made by the Contractor through the Office of Client and Legal Services, which shall |
review each referral to ensure compliance with the principles contained in RSA 464-A and paragraph 1.5.

below.

1'4.1. If the Contractor provides services to persons who have not been screened and approved by the
Office of Client and Legal Services, reimbursement for such services will not be provided for under
this Agreement.

R
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1.4.1.1. In instances not within the control of the Contractor where guardianship appointments are
made without approval granted from the Office of Client and Legal Services, the Contractor may
receive reimbursement for guardianship services when the Contractor can provide documentation
satisfactory to the Department that such circumstances occurred and the Contractor made
reasonable efforts to decline such appointments. The Contractor shall include documentation of
reasonable efforts made to decline such appointments with its Quarterly Payment Computation
and Authorization reports. If the documentation provided by the Contractor is satisfactory to the
Department, the Department may make payments to the Contractor for appointments made
without approval as long as the wards appointed to the Contractor are persons for whom the State
has responsibility to safeguard pursuant to RSA 135-C: 60, and RSA 171-A:10, I1.

1.5. In providing guardianship and protection services to persons under this Agreement, the Contractor
shall adhere to the "Ethics and Standards for Guardians" as developed by the National Guardianship
Association and shown in Exhibit D The Department acknowledges that the Standards on monthly visits
with wards is a guideline and that quarterly visits or more frequently as required in individual
circumstances is the accepted practice of the Contractor.

1.6. In any action brought in Probate Court to limit or otherwise reduce the scope of a guardianship over a
person served under this Agreement, the State agrees to appear with the Contractor where the State agrees
that it is necessary to present the State's position on the action proposed.

1.7. The Contractor agrees that no "direct services" shall be provided to persons under this Agreement.
Direct services include psychotherapy, case management, transportation, financial aid, or other social
services available through state or other governmental or nonprofit agencies.

1.8. The State recognizes that the Contractor has responsibilities as an independent decision-maker acting
in a fiduciary capacity with respect to the persons to be served under this Agreement and the decisions to
be made on behalf of such persons shall not be directed or influenced by the State by any action taken

under this Agreement.

1.9. The Contractor may elect to subcontract for such services as may be necessary to carry out
guardianship and protection services under this Agreement with prior notification and approval of the
State through the Office of Client and Legal Services of the Department.

1.10. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the Contractor from providing guardianship and protection
services to persons other than those who are referred pursuant to this Agreement. However, the
Contractor agrees that pursuant to RSA 547-B:7, no. funds provided under this Agreement shall be
expended forsuch persons. Furthermore, the Contractor agrees to maintain sufficient records, which shall
be subject to the Departiment’s examination and be included as part of the Audit of Records required in
paragraph 1.2 of the Specis] Provisions, to document that the funds received under this Agreement are
expended in accordance with this paragraph.

1.11. If staff at any institution or developmental services or mental health or elderly and adult agency
within the jurisdiction of the Department brings a complaint to the Department in reference to the services
provided by the Contractor under this Agreement, the Department may refer the complaint to the
Contractor and the Contractor shall investigate the circumstances pertaining to the complaint and shall
respond in writing within thirty (30) days to the Division concerning the results of the investigation. The
Contractor shall provide on a quarterly basis, a report of all written complaints filed against the
.Contractor and shall explain how each such complaint was resolved.

1.12 The Contractor recognizes the inherent value of the opinions of the wards they serve. If staff at any
institution or developmental services or mental health or elderly and adult agency within the jurisdiction
‘of the Department or any entity providing funding to the Department distributes a survey, questionnaire or
similar instrument designed to gauge consumer satisfaction of wards in reference to-the services received
by the ward including the services provided by the Contractor under this Agreement, the Contractor
agrees to allow their wards to participate in such measures of consumer satisfaction unless the Contractor
indicates in writing to the Department the reasons why a particular ward should not be allowed to so

participate.
.
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2.  Description of Guardianship Services:

2.1. The following is a general listing of functions to be provided by the Contractor for individuals so
named by the probate court as wards of the Contractor. This listing and description is not intended to
restate existing rules and regulations already in place, but rather its purpose is to clarify the relationship of
the Contractor with respect to its wards who need and are receiving services in the developmental services,
mental health, and/or elderly and adult systems. The functions to be performed include:

2.1.1. Making decisions regarding the residential and day placement of the ward, utilizing the
standards of least restrictive environment and the best interests of the individual ward.

2.1.2. Insuring that all legally necessary steps are taken to enable the individual ward to receive
comprehensive evaluations and comprehensive treatment and services.

2.1.3. Advocating for and requesting appropriate services for the individual ward utilizing the
individual service/treatment planning process following established Department standards and law.

2.1.4. Being available to give or withhold consent to proposed medical care.

2.1.5. Being available to give or withhold consent, where such is legally necessary, to proposed
professional care, counsel, treatment or service including, but not limited to behavioral programs,
significant changes in individual service/treatment plans, and other clinically or legally significant
treatment or services.

2.1.6. Insuring that the ward's civil rights are protected within the context of the decision the guardian
is making on behalf of the ward and refraining from unwarranted intrusion into the life of the ward.

2.1.7. Assuming responsibility for any and all other duties as are stated in RSA 464-A or as are
required by the probate court.

2.2. All of the responsibilities referenced in 2.1. above are contingent upon the actual authority granted in
each individual court order specifying the extent and scope of guardianship for each individual.

2.3. In order to perform the functions specified in 2.1., a guardian must be kept aware of the facts or
circumstances which may impact upon the decision. In order to make informed decisions on behalf of
their wards, the public guardians should continually maintain significant and appropriate contact with
each ward so to assure that their efforts best reflect the personal preferences, values, and desires of the
ward to the fullest extent possible. The guardians must seek out information so that they are fully aware
of all risks and benefits of any proposed course of action, as well as any alternatives that may exist.
Guardians of the person shall maintain regular contact with their wards in order to comply with the
“Ethics and Standards for Guardians" shown in Exhibit D.

2.4. Each public guardian has an obligation to become as familiar as possible with his or her ward.
Beyond the personal visits with the ward and other important and significant people in the ward's life, this
obligation can also be met through close interaction with the ward's case manager and others who share a
responsibility for providing for the needs of the individual. :

3. Guardianship and Protection Services:

3.1. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will provide
guardianship services as prescribed in sections L1, 1.2, 2., and Exhibit D.

3.2. The Contractor is obligated to accept all protection services cases referred to the Contractor by the
Office of Client and Legal Services. The Department shall make every attempt to obtain a Release of
Information from the proposed client with the Contractor except where prohibited from doing so by law.
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Also, to the extent possible, the Contractor shall be involved in the screening process for protection cases.
If the Contractor believes that the appointment of a protective payee or representative payee is
inappropriate, the Contractor may refer the client to the New Hampshire Disabilities Rights Center, Inc.,
New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney so that an administrative appeal or other appropriate
legal action can be taken on behalf of the client.

3.3. The Contractor agrees to serve the current total of 655 persons receiving guardianship and protection
services, plus 14 pending cases, plus any new persons referred in accordance with paragraph 1.4, above.
However, the Contractor shall not be obligated to accept more than 688 cases during the contract period.
While the Department shall provide the Contractor with letters of approval for each new case assigned to
the Contractor, the Contractor may not bill for services until the Contractor is actually appointed as

guardian by a probate court.

3.4. The commencement date of this agreement shall be the Effective Date, that is, July 1, 2010, or date of
Governor and Council of the State of New Hampshire approval, whichever is later. The Contractor shall
not be paid for any services, which may be provided prior to the Effective Date.

s
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Exhibit B

Methods of Payment

1. Subject to the availability of State funds, and in consideration for the satisfactory completion of the services
to be performed under this Agreement, the State shall pay the Contractor a per diem per case rate approved by
the Office of Client and Legal Services. However, regardless of the number of persons served -by the
Contractor during the program period, specified in paragraphs 3.1. and 3.2, of the General Provisions of this
Agreement, the State shall pay the Contractor a minimum amount of $841,313.88 during the program period.
The total of all payments authorized or actually made hereunder shall not exceed the amount of $878,656.80,
the price limitation set forth in block 1.8. of the General Provisions.

1.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of services to persons served under this Agreement
shall be:

$3.53 for up to 688 clients whose guardianship services are requested by the Bureaus of Behavioral
Health and Developmental Services.

1.2. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of technical assistance to private guardians shall be
$60.00, not to exceed the amount of $4,000.00.

1.3. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training to area agency, mental health and elderly
and adult agency staff and probate court personnel shall be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of

$1,500.00. . :
2. Payment to the Contractor will be made on a monthly basis subject to the following conditions:

2.1. The State shall at the beginning of the Agreement period make a payment of $140,218.98 the
estimated fee for service payment due to the Contractor for providing services for a period of two months.
Adjustments for underpayments or overpayments will be made at the end of the first quarter of the
program period. This initial payment is the amount the State has determined is necessary to initiate the
services. '

22. A monthly payment equal to $70,109.49 will be made to the Contractor at the beginning of
September and continuing through the end of the agreement or until the maximum amount of the contract
has been reached. Adjustments for underpayments or overpayments will be made at the end of the first
quarter of the program period and continue at the end of subsequent quarters through June 30, 2011. The
per diem rate will be extended to the last day of the month following the month in which the client dies or
for whom the guardianship/protection service is terminated. :

2.3. The fee for quarterly adjustments shall be calculated by:

a. multiplying the per diem rate times the total number of days of service provided during the
quarter to each eligible client under this Agreement, and by

'b. adding to this amount any reimbursement due for the quarter to the Contractor for clients
referenced in paragraph 2.2. and the reimbursement due for the provision of technical assistance to
private guardians referenced in paragraph 1.3. of Exhibit A.

2.4. Beginning in October, 2010, and at the end of each quarter thereafter, the Contractor agrees to
submit, by the fifth day of the following month, to the Division a standard form entitled "Quarterly
Payment Computation and Authorization, Office of Public Guardian”. At the end of each month there
shall be a list of clients or an updated list of clients for whom the Contractor is providing for services.

P4}
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The list of clients shall indicate the name, address and date of death for those clients who have died
during the month.

The "Quarterly Payment Computation and Authorization, Office of Public Guardian" form shall serve
as a voucher detailing how reimbursement due for the quarter in which services were performed was
calculated. The form shall contain:

a. Identification of the service period;
b. Contract number and period;

¢. Statistics which document the number of clients on the Contractor's caseload during the
service period. The statistics shall be recorded and shall specify the number of persons
served by type of services, the names of cases added or closed during the quarter. Orders for
new guardianship appointments shall be attached to the statistics as soon as they become
available. Persons added during the service period for whom prior approval has not been
obtained, but for whom the Contractor is seeking reimbursement, must be formally
authorized to receive services before they are calculated into the authorized payment due for
the service period. A brief explanation shall be provided for any client for whom services
have been terminated.

d. Cumulative to date revenues received;

e. Calculation of the total authorized payment due for the service quarter in accordance with
2.3. above; '

The first "Quarterly Payment Computation and Authorization, Office of Public Guardian"
report shall be submitted by no later than October 5, 2010 and the final report by July 10,
2011. Failure to submit such reports shall constitute an Event of Default.

2.5. On a quarterly basis, the State shall ensure that the total payments for services under this Agreement
are not less than the prorated minimum contract amounts. The State shall make any payments necessary
under this provision by the 15th day of the month following the end of the quarter and specifically as
provided in subparagraphs 2.5.1-2.5.3. below.

2.5.1. The Contractor shall notify the State in its October "Quarterly Payment and Computation
Report, Office of Public Guardian” in the event that payment for services for the months of July
through September is less than $210,328.47, whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for
the difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and $210,328.47.

2.5.2. The Contractor shall notify the State in its January "Quarterly Payment and Computation
Report, Office of Public Guardian" in the event that payment for services for the months of July
through December is less than $420,656.94, whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for
the difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and $420,656.94.

2.5.3. The Contractor shall notify the State in its April "Quarterly Payment and Computation Report,
Office of Public Guardian™ in the event that payment for services for the months of July through
March is less than $630,985.41, whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for the
difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and $630,985.41.

2.6. By August 15, 2010, the Contractor shall submit an annual Quality Assurance Plan for the approval
of the Office of Client and Legal Services. The Contractor shall in a timely fashion modify or amend the
- plan based on the Department’s response to the plan. The Contractor shall submit a plan acceptable to the
Office of Client and Legal Services by no later than October 31, 2010. Failure to submit an acceptable
Quality Assurance Plan shall constitute an Event of Default. Payments will not continue until receipt of

the plan.
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a. The Contractor agrees to include a representative, to be named by the Office of Client and
Legal Services, to participate in the design and implementation of the Contractors Quality
Assurance Plan.

b. The Contractor will submit, on a monthly basis a report on Quality Assurance activities no
later than the 5th day of the following month.

2.7. The quarterly service payment due shall not be made until and unless the "Quarterly Computation and
Authorization, Office of Public Guardian" form for the service quarter has been received by the

Department.

2.8. The Contractor also agrees that full payment for the final quarter of the program period shall not be
made by the Department until and unless the Contractor submits the "Quarterly Payment Computation and
Authorization, Office of Public Guardian" form for the final quarter of the program period and "Summary
Report of Quality Assurance Activities" of activities for the agreement period.

3. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement
may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any federal or state law, rule, or
regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been satisfactorily completed
in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4. This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund, as follows:

NH General Fund: $878,656.80
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Exhibit C

Special Provisions

1. RECORDS AND ACCOUNTS

1.1. Access to Records. Between the Effective Date and a date six years after the Completion Date, at any
time during the Contractor's normal business hours, and as often as the State shall reasonably demand, the
Contractor shall make available to the State its fiscal records related to this Agreement and any books,
records, documents, papers or reports maintained by the Contractor which relate to such fiscal matters.
The term "Contractor" includes all persons, natural or fictional, which are controlled by, under common
ownership with, or an affiliate of, the entity identified as the Contractor in block 1.3 of the General

Provisions of this Agreement.

1.2. Audit of Records. The Contractor agrees to submit to the Department within ninety (90) days of the
end of the Contractor's fiscal year an audited financial statement following guidelines as established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants as published in a guidebook entitled "Audits of
Voluntary Health and Welfare Organizations." The audit shall be prepared by an independent certified
public accountant and provide an itemized accounting of all revenues and expenditures related to the
provision of service to clients under this Agreement. All fiscal records related to this Agreement must be
kept on the accrual method of accounting and in accordance with generally accepted accountmg principles
as promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

2, TERMINATION

2.1. In the event of termination under paragraph 10. of the General Provisions, the approval of such a
Termination Report by the State shall entitle the Contractor to receive that portion of the Contract Price
earned to and including the date of termination. The Contractor's obligation to continue to provide
services under this Agreement shall cease upon termination by the State.

2.2, In the event of termination under paragraph 10. of the General Provisions, the approval of a
Termination Report by the State shall in no event relieve the Contractor from any and all liability for
damages sustained or incurred by the State as a result of the Contractor's breach of its obligations

hereunder.

2.3. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the State may terminate this Agreement
without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.

3. INSURANCE AND BOND

3.1. The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following

insurance:

3.1.1. statutory workers' compensation and cmployeeé liability insurance for all-employees engaged in
the performance of the Services; and

—

L
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3.1.2. comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than $2,000,000 for bodily injury or death in any one incident, and $500,000
for property damage in any one incident; and

3.1.3. professional malpractice insurance covering all professional and/or licensed personnel engaged
in the performance of the services hereunder.

3.2. During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall maintain a fidelity bond, covering the
activities of all employees or agents with authority to control or have access to any funds provided under
this Agreement in an amount equal to at least twenty-five (25) percent of the minimum contract amount
specified in paragraph 1 of Exhibit B.

4. DATA: ACCESS BY STATE

Between the Effective Date and a date six years after the Completion Date, at any time during the
Contractor's normal business hours, and as often as.the State shall reasonably demand, the Contractor shall
make available to the State all data for examination, duplication, publication, translation, or for any other
purpose. Nothing in this subparagraph shall require the Contractor to make available data which would
violate any statue, other provisions of this Agreement, or agreements with unrelated third parties. The
term "Contractor" includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, or an affiliate of, the entity identified as the Contractor in block 1.3. of the General
Provisions of this Agreement.

5. TIME STUDY

The parties agree to pilot different reporting indicators. The Contractor agrees to perform a time study for
all State funded clients. The time study shall be performed in accordance with procedures established by
the State. The Contractor shall provide the State with “Quarterly Statistical Reporting™ forms within thirty
days after the end of each quarter. The parties further acknowledge that said forms may undergo changes
to refine the data collected and may be modified by mutual agreement. '

R
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EXHIBITC-1

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1) Gratuities or Kickbacks

The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Agreement to accept or make a payment, gratuity or offer of
employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to influence the performance of
the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Agreement. The State may terminate this Agreement and any
sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind
were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

2) Retroactive Payments-Individual Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document, agreement or
understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments will be made
hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of
this Agreement and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the federal
regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

3) Retroactive Payments-Contractor Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document, agreement or
understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments will be made
hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any costs incurred for any purposes prior to the Effective Date of the

Agreement.

4) Audit Requirement

On or before the date set forth in Section 1.7 of these General Provisions, the Contractor shall deliver to the
State, at the address set forth in Section 1.2 of these General Provisions, an independent audit performed by a
Certified Public Accountant, of the Contractor, including the funds received under this Agreement.

The following requirement shall apply if the Contractor is a State or Local Government or an Institution of
Higher Education or Other Non-Profit Organization: If the federal funds expended under this or any other
Agreement from any and all sources exceeds $500,000 in the aggregate in a one year fiscal period the required
audit shall be performed in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations for fiscal years ending on or after December 31, 2003,

5) Credits

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or resulting from the
performance of the services or the Agreement shall include the following statement: “The preparation of this
(report, document, etc.) was financed under an Agreement with the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part or in whole by the (State of New Hampshire and/or
United States Department of Health and Human Services.)”

6) Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters
tractor Initials: iZj :

2 Co
1 ’ Daic':g ZE (3



If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor shall comply with the
provisions of Section 319 of the Public Law 101-121, Limitation on use of appropriated funds to influence
certain Federal contracting and financial transactions; with the provisions of Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR
Subpart A, B, C, D, and E Section 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters, and
shall complete and submit to the State the appropriate certificates of compliance upon approval of the Agreement

by the Governor and Council.

7) Criminal Background Check

The Contractor shall conduct criminal background checks if a potential applicant for employment or volunteer,
funded under this contract, may have client contact in the client’s place of residence.

8) Aduit Protective Service Registry

~ The Contractor shall meet the requirements of RSA 161-F: 49 Registry, VII, which requires the submission of the
name of a prospective employee who may have client contact, for review against the State Adult Protective

Service Registry, effective July 1, 2007,

9) Complaint Resolution Policy
The Contractor shall develop a written policy with regard to the intake, investigation, resolution, and reporting of

complaints received from wards, families of wards, or providers of services to wards. Said policy shall be
available for distribution to interested parties as needed.
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EXHIBIT D
ETHICS AND STANDARDS FOR GUARDIANS

The Model Code

Decision-making: General Principles

RULE1. A GUARDIAN SHALL EXERCISE EXTREME CARE AND DILIGENCE WHEN

RULE 2.

MAKING DECISIONS ON BEHALF OF A WARD. ALL DECISIONS SHALL BE MADE
IN A MANNER WHICH PROTECTS THE CIVIL RIGHTS AND LIBERTIES OF THE
WARD AND MAXIMIZES INDEPENDENCE AND SELF-RELIANCE.

1.1. The guardian shall make all reasonable efforts to ascertain the preferences of the ward, both
past and current, regarding all decisions which the guardian is empowered to make.

1.2. The guardian shall make decisions in accordance with the ascertainable preferences of the
ward, past or current, in all instances except those in which a guardian is reasonably certain that
substantial harm will result from such a decision.

1.3. When the preferences of the ward cannot be ascertained, a guardian is responsible for making
decisions which are in the best interests of the ward.

1.4. The guardian shall be cognizant of his or her own limitations of knowledge, shall carefully
consider the views and opinions of those involved in the treatment and care of the ward, and shall
also seek independent opinions when necessary.

" 1.5. The guardian must recognize that his or ber decisions are open to the scrutiny of other

interested parties and consequently, to criticism and challenge. Nonetheless, the guardian alone is
ultimately responsible for decisions made on behalf of the ward.

1.6. A guardian shall refrain from decision making in areas outside the scope of the guardianship
order and, when necessary, assist the ward by ensuring such decisions are made in an autonomous

fashion.

Relationship Between Guardian and Ward

THE GUARDIAN SHALL EXHIBIT THE HIGHEST DEGREE OF TRUST, LOYALTY,
AND FIDELITY IN RELATION TO THE WARD.

2.1. The guardian shall protect the personal and pecuniary interests of the ward and foster the
ward's growth, independence and self-reliance to the maximum degree.

2.2. The guardian shall scrupulously avoid conflict of interest and self-dealing in relations with the
ward.
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2.3. The guardian shall vigorously protect the rights of the ward against infringement by third
parties.

2.4. The guardian shall, whenever possible, provide all pertinent information to the ward unless
the guardian is reasonably certain that substantial harm will result from providing such
information.

Custody of the Person: Establishing a Place of Abode

RULE3. THE GUARDIAN SHALL ASSUME LEGAL CUSTODY OF THE WARD AND SHALL
ENSURE THE WARD RESIDES IN THE LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT

AVAILABLE.

3.1. The puardian shall be informed and aware of the options and alternatives available for
establishing the ward's place of abode.

3.2. The guardian shall make decisions in conformity with the preferences of the ward in
establishing the ward's place of abode unless the guardian is reasonably certain that such a
decision will result in substantial harm.

3.3, When the preferences of the ward cannot be ascertained or where they will result in
substantial harm, the guardian shall make decisions with respect to the ward's place of abode
which are in conformity with the best interests of the ward.

3.4. The guardian shall not remove the ward from his or her home or separate the ward from
family and friends unless such removal is necessary to prevent substantial harm. The guardian
shall make every reasonable effort to ensure the ward resides at home or in a community setting.

3.5. The guardian shall seek professional evaluations and assessments wherever necessary to
determine whether the current or proposed placement of the ward represents the least restrictive
environment available to the ward. The guardian shall work cooperatively with community based
organizations which may be available to assist in ensuring that the ward resides in a
noninstitutional environment.

" 3.6. The guardian shall have a strong preference against placement of the ward in an institution or
other setting which provides only custodial care,

3.7. The guardian shall monitor the placement of the ward on an ongoing basis to ensure its
continned appropriateness, and shall consent to changes as they become necessary or
advantageous for the ward.

3.8. In the event that the only available placement is not the most appropriate and least restrictive,
the guardian shall advocate for the ward's rights and negotiate a more desirable placement with a
minimum of delay, retaining legal counsel to assist if necessary.

RRT
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RULE 4.

RULE 5.

Custody of the Person: Consent to Care, Treatment and Services

THE GUARDIAN SHALL ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY TO PROVIDE INFORMED
CONSENT ON BEHALF OF THE WARD FOR THE PROVISION OF CARE,
TREATMENT AND SERVICES AND SHALL ENSURE THAT SUCH CARE,
TREATMENT AND SERVICES REPRESENTS THE LEAST RESTRICTIVE FORM OF
INTERVENTION AVAILABLE.

4.1. The guardian shall make decisions in conformity with the preferences of the ward when
providing consent for the provision of care, treatment and services, unless the guardian is
reasonably certain that such decisions will result in substantial harm to the ward.

4.2. When the preferences of the ward cannot be ascertained or will result in substantial harm, the
guardian shall make decisions with respect to care, treatment and services which are in conformity

with the best interests of the ward.

4.3. In the event the only available treatment, care or services is not the most appropriate and least
restrictive, the guardian shall advocate for the ward's right to a more desirable form of treatment,
care or services, retaining legal counsel to assist if necessary.

4.4. The guardian shall seek professional evaluations and assessments whenever necessary to
determine whether the current or proposed care, treatment and services represent the least
restrictive form of intervention available.

4.5. The guardian shall work cooperatively with individuals and organizations which may be
available to assist in ensuring the ward receives care, treatment and services which represent the
least restrictive form of intervention available and are consistent with the wishes or best interests

of the ward.

4.6. The guardian shall not consent to sterilization, electro-convulsive therapy, experimental
treatment, psychosurgery or other legally suspect forms of care, treatment or service without
sceking review by the court or the ward's attorney or other representative.

47. The guardian shall be familiar with the law of the state regardmg the withholding or
withdrawal of life-sustaining treatment.

4.8. The guardian shall monitor the care, treatment and services the ward is receiving to ensure its
continued appropriateness, and shall consent to changes as they become necessary or
advantageous to the ward.

Management of the Estate -

THE GUARDIAN OF THE ESTATE SHALL PROVIDE COMPETENT MANAGEMENT
OF THE PROPERTY AND INCOME OF THE ESTATE. IN THE DISCHARGE OF THIS
DUTY, THE GUARDIAN SHALL EXERCISE INTELLIGENCE, PRUDENCE AND
DILIGENCE AND AVOID ANY SELF-INTEREST.
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RULE 6.

5.1. Upon appointment, the guardian shall take steps to inform himself or herself of the statutory
requirements for managing a ward's estate.

5.2. The guardian shall manage the income of the estate with the primary goal of providing for the
needs of the ward, and in certain cases, the needs of the ward's dependents for support and

maintenance.

5.3. The guardian has a duty to exercise prudence in the investment of surplus funds of the estate.

5.4. Where the liquid estale of the ward is sufficient, the guardian may make such gifts as are
consistent with the wishes or past behavior of the ward, bearing in mind both the foreseeable
requirements of the ward and the tax advantages of such gifts.

5.5. There shall be no self-interest in the management of the estate by the guardian; the guardian
shall exercise caution to avoid even the appearance of self-interest.

Termination and Limitation of the Guardianship

THE GUARDIAN HAS AN AFFIRMATIVE OBLIGATION TO SEEK TERMINATION
OR LIMITATION OF THE GUARDIANSHIP WHENEVER INDICATED.

6.1. The guardian shall diligently seek out information which will provide a basis for termination
or limitation of the guardianship.

6.2. Upon indication that termination or limitation of the guardianship order is warranted, the
guardian shall promptly request court action, retaining legal counsel if necessary.

6.3. The guardian shall assist the ward in terminating or limiting the guardianship and arrange for
independent representation for the ward whenever necessary.

_RRT
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STANDARDS FOR GUARDIANSHIP
STANDARD NO. 1 - GENERAL PRINCIPLES
A. The guardian shall at all times maintain the confidential nature of the ward's affairs.

B. The guardian shall provide the ward with every opportunity to exercise those individual rights which the
ward might be capable of exercising as relates to the care of the ward's person.

C. The guardian shall refrain from decision making in areas outside of the guardianship order and, when
necessary, assist the ward by ensuring such decisions are made in an autonomous manner.

STANDARD NO. 2 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A. A guardian shall avoid even the appearance of a conflict of interest, or impropriety when dealing with the
needs of the ward. Impropriety or conflict of interest arises where the guardian has some personal or
agency interest which might be perceived as self-serving.or adverse to the position or the best interest of
the ward. Specific situations which may create an impropriety or conflict of interest include, but are not

limited to the following:

(1) A guardianship program shall not directly provide housing, medical, legal advocacy or direct
services to an individual if the program is also acting as guardian for that individual. The program
shall keep in mind that its duty is to coordinate and assure the provision of all necessary services
to the ward or beneficiary rather than to provide those services directly. To insure that the
guardian remains free to challenge inappropriate or poorly delivered services and to advocate
vigorously on behalf of the ward, the guardian should be independent from all service providers.
However, where a program can demonstrate unique circumstances indicating that no other entity
is available to act as guardian, or to provide needed direct services, a limited waiver with regard to
the provision of direct services may be granted by the funder, court, or other monitoring agency, as
to individual wards. Procedures for granting such waivers shall be designed by the granting
agency and shall require a showing of hardship to the ward if the waiver is not granted.

(2) A guardianship program shall be a free standing entity and shall not be subject to undue
influence. When the program is a part of a larger organization or governmental entity there must
be an arms length relationship with the larger organization or governmental entity, and
independent decision making ability.

(3) The guardian shall not be in a position of representing both the ward and the provider of
service.

(4) A professional guardian shall not be appointed as guardian in a case where he/she has served
as petitioner, guardian ad litem or as court appointed visitor or investigator. Guardians should not
be in a position to initiate or influence the appointment of their agencies as guardians. However, a
professional guardian may act as petitioner only when no other entity is available to act, provided
all other alternatives have been exhausted and the judge is advised of the appearance of a conflict
of interest. This standard shall not prohibit a program from advising families and other interested
petitioners, including the proposed ward, on the manner and procedure of petitioning for
guardianship.

(5) A guardian shall not commingle personal or program funds with the funds of a ward or
beneficiary. This standard does not prohibit a guardian from consolidating and maintaining a
ward's funds in joint accounts with the funds of other wards. However, if the guardian does so,
separate, accurate and complete accounting of each ward's funds shall be maintained by the
guardian. Where an individual or organization serves several individuals, it may be more efficient
and more cost cffective to combine the individuals' funds in a single account. In this manner,
banking fees and costs are distributed among the individuals, rather than being bome by each
separately. The use of such joint accounts should only be permitted where the guardian or
conservator has available the personnel and the expertise to keep accurate records of the exact
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amount of funds in the account, including allocation of interest and charges, which are attributable
to each individual ward.

(6) A guardian shall not sell, transfer, convey or encumber real or personal property any interest
therein to himself, a spouse, coworker, employee, member of the Board of the agency or corporate
guardian, an agent, or attorney, or any corporation or trust in which the guardian has a substantial
beneficial interest unless the transaction is approved by the court after notice to interested persons
and others as directed by the court. :

(7) A guardian shall not borrow funds from, or lend funds to, the ward unless the transaction is
approved by the court or the agency administering the client's benefits after notice to interested
persons and others as directed by the court or the agency. The Guardian may advance funds to a
ward provided there is no cost to the ward.

STANDARD NO. 3 - DECISION MAKING

A. Substituted judgment shall be the standard that guides the decision making of the guardian. Substituted
judgment entails making the decision the guardian believes the ward would make based on the ward's
previously expressed preferences. The doctrine of best interest of the ward shall be employed only in
those instances where no evidence of the ward's preference exists. When employing the doctrine of best
interest the guardian will determine what is in the best interest of the ward's health and welfare.

B. Decisions made by the guardian on behalf of the ward shall be reached after consideration of factors in the
following order:

L

(1) Any preferences of the ward, expressed prior to appointment of a guardian.

(2) The current wishes of the ward with regard to the decision. Although a court has determined
that such ward is incapable of making decisions, a ward may still be capable of expressing wishes.
If a ward is capable the guardian shall weigh those wishes in making decisions.

(3) Substituted judgment by the guardian for what the guardian believes the ward would have
wanted if able to make the decision.

(4) The perceived best interest of the ward. In determining the best interest of the ward the
guardian shall make an informed judgment and shall not consent until the following information
has been gathered: -

(a) the reason for and nature of the proposed action;
(b) the benefit/necessity of the decisions;

{(c) the possible risks and other consequences of the proposed action;  and
(d) alternatives that are available and their respective risks, consequences and
benefits.

(5) In making decisions the guardian shall utilize advice and information from all available
sources, including familial, legal, medical, ethical, and social service professionals.

.STANDARD NO. 4 - PERSONAL NEEDS

A. A guardian who is responsible for the person of the ward shall involve the ward, to the extent of the ward's
ability, in making decisions about the ward's housing, which shall be in the least restrictive environment
consistent with the ward's safety. The guardian shall ensure that the health care and daily maintenance
needs of the ward are provided from every available resource. Where appropriate and available, the
guardian shall apply for and secure for the benefit of the ward, medical, psychological, social services,
direct services, training, education and vocational opportunities to maximize as far as possible the ward's
potential for self-reliance and independence.

Contractor Initials: m
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B. The guardian shall file all reports on a timely basis with the court as required by law, not less than
annually, and shall provide thorough documentation of the ward's needs whenever necessary for the ward's
interest, carrying out any and all duties required by statute or regulation.

C. The guardian shall attempt maximize the self-reliance, autonomy and independence of the ward. The
guardian shall encourage the ward to participate to the maximum extent of his abilities, in all decisions
which affect him; to act on his own behalf in all matters in which he is able to do so; and to develop or
regain to the maximum extent possible, his capacity.

D. A guardian shall authorize a placement in a more restrictive living environment only after evaluating the
opinions of medical and health care providers and making an independent determination that the move is
the least restrictive alternative and in the best interest of the ward.

STANDARD NO. 5 - PERSONAL CONTACT AND ONGOING RESPONSIBILITIES
A. The guardian shall develop and monitor a written plan setting forth long and short term goals for the ward.

B. Guardians of the person, or their designee, shall have meaningful visits with their wards no less than once
a month. For the ward requiring medical assistances and residing in a restrictive environment, the
guardian, shall visit more often in circumstances where additional attention is required.

C. Responsible execution of a guardian's responsibility shall consist of, but not be limited to, the following:

(1) Communicate with the ward, making every effort to ascertain the comfort and satisfaction of
the ward in the present living environment and the current needs and desires of the ward, and
evaluating the present living environment in connection with the ward’s needs or any change in the
extent of the ward's disability or impairment which may dictate a need to change the ward's living
environment.

(2) Maintain substantive commmunication with service providers, caregivers or others attending to
the ward in the environment in which the ward is living. Where applicable, this may include
conferences with physicians, psychologists, nurses, social workers, physical or occupational
therapists, teachers and vocational rehabilitation instructors, and residence operators or managers.

(3) Participate in all care or planning conferences or staff briefings concerning the residential,
educational or rehabilitation program of the ward. The guardian shall require that each service
provider develop an appropriate service plan for the ward and shall take appropriate action to
insure that the applicable service plan is being implemented. The guardian shall be
knowledgeable of the ward's circumstances and shall be prepared to address any issues arising at
the conference or staffing.

(4) Regularly examine all services, charts, notes, logs, evaluations and writings regarding the
ward at the place of residence and at any program site.

(5) Assess the ward's physical appearance and the appropriateness of the ward's current living
situation, and the continuation of existing services; taking into consideration all aspects of social,
psychological, educational, direct services, and health and personal care needs as well as the need
for any additional services.

(6) Assess the apparent state of repair, cleanliness and safety of the residence, and adequacy of
the clothing and personal possessions of the ward.

STANDARD NO. 6 - MEDICAL SERVICES AND MEDICAL TREATMENT, INCLUDING MORE
RESTRICTIVE LIVING ENVIRONMENTS

A. The guardian has a duty to promote and monitor the ward's health and well being.
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B. Absent an emergency, a guardian having the appropriate authority shall not grant or deny authorization for
medical interventions until (s)he has given careful consideration to the factors listed in Standard Number

3.

C. In the case of emergency medical treatment, a guardian having proper authority shall grant or deny
authorization of medical treatment based on a reasonable assessment of the factors required by Standard
Number 3 within the time frame allotted by the emergency.

D. In extraordinary medical situations, in addition to all other factors and resources outlined in Standard
Number 3, the guardian shall utilize ethical, legal, and medical advice with particular attention to hospital
ethics committees.

E. The guardian has a responsibility to obtain a second medical opinion when a prudent person would do so.
The second opinion shall be from an independent physician,

F. The guardian shall speak directly with the treating or attending physician before authorizing or denying
any medical treatment. If State law provides for the performance of additional steps prior to granting or
denying authorization, the guardian shall undertake such additional steps.

G. A guardian shall authorize a placement in a more restrictive living environment for health reasons only
after evaluating the opinion's of medical and health care providers and making an independent
determination that the move is the least restrictive alternative in the best interest of the ward.

H. When a guardian considers involuntary or long term placement of a ward in a facility, the basis of the
decision shall be to minimize the risk of substantial harm to the ward and obtain the most appropriate
possible placement and treatment for the ward. All such placements of wards shall be subject to judicial,

administrative or other independent review.

STANDARD NO. 7- MANAGEMENT OF THE ESTATE OF THE WARD

A. The guardian of an incapacitated person shall provide competent management of the property, and shall
supervise all income and disbursements of the estate in compliance with all statutorily prescribed
procedures. The guardian shall exercise intelligence, prudence and diligence, avoiding any conflict of
interest or impropriety as addressed in Standard Number 2.

B. The guardian shall employ prudent accounting procedures when managing the estate of the ward in
compliance with applicable statutes, regulations and policies.

C. The guardian shall file with the court all reports as required by law, but no less than annually, and shall
thoroughly document management of the ward's estate, carrying out any and all duties required by statute
or regulation.

D. The guardian shall not dispose of property of a ward, either real or personal, unless such sale is subject to
judicial, administrative, or other independent review. '

E. Upon the termination of a guardianship the guardian shall facilitate the appropriate closing of the estate.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitie D;
41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

'ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This cartification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Wordkplace Actof 1988 (Pub.. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The.January
31, 1989 ragulstions were amerded and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register
{pagas:21881-21691), #nd require certification by grantees {and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to: award, that they will maintsin a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of
the regulation provides that a grentee {and by infarence, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a
State ‘may elect o mske one cartification to the: Department in each fedaral fiscal year in lieu of
certificates for each-grant diring tho federael fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate sat
out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards
the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of
payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment.
Contractors using this formy should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlied substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

{b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
{2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
{3) Any . available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance

programs; and
4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Inlfals: E g
Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements 5 /
January 2009 Date; 3 0
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{c}

(d)

{e)

(f)

Page 7 of =S
Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition
of employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1 Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a
criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days
after such conviction;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d}(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position
title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was
working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of
such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d}{2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action egainst such an employee, up to and
including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1873, as amended; or

{2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance
or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or
local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g} Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through

implementation of paragraphs (a), {b), (c}, {d}, {e}, and {f}.

(B) The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work
done in connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) {list each location)

Check [Jif there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

| Qffice of Public. Guardian

! Neontacior Namal - Paried Gover

Jo: §/302011

Reaer P. Jobin~ Ireasurer

{Name &

Te of Authorzed Conbector Ropresentatival

-

5/3]io

~{Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Inltials: m
Standard Exhibit D - Cerlification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements . 5 2o
Date;

January 2009
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compily with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs {indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Neady Famllies under Title IV-A
*Chiid Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social-Services Block Grant Program undsi Title XX
*Medicaid Program. under Title XIX

*Community: Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: 7/1/10 through 6/30/11

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:v

M

(2)

(3)

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behaif of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agréement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor).

If ‘any funds other than Federal appropfiated' funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for

influancing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or . employee of Congress, or an: smplo’
‘Federal contract, grant, loan, 'or tooperative agraement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-

yee of a Member of Congress in connection with this

eontractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-}.)

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements} and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for

‘each such failure.

P ukbm-._ Roger P Jobin, Treasorer

actor Representative Signature) ‘ {Authbrized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Office of Public Guardian 5 IS ,'I D

{Contractor Name) {Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials;

. RRS

Standard Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the
provisions of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76
regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the
Contractor's representative, as identlfied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the praspective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

2. The insbliity:of a person-to:-provide-the certification required below will:not necaessarlly
resuft in denial of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective
‘participant shall submit an-axplanation of why It cennot provide the certlfication, The
cartification -or explanation will be considered In connéction with the NH. Dgpartment of
Heaith and Human -Services’ {DHHS) determination whether to éniter into this
transaction. However, fallure: of the prospactive primary participant to: furnish a
‘cartification or an- explanation shall disqualify such person. from participation in. this
transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a materiai representation ot fact upon which reliance
was placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. if it is later
determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous
certification, in” addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS
may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The'prospective primary particlpant shall provide Immediate written notice to:the’ DHHS:
‘agency to -whom th osal (contract] Is_submitted {f ot eny. time the praspective:
primary pariicipent fearnis that its certification was éroneous when subtiitted or has:
becomae: erroneous by resgorn of changed circumstances.

5, The terms ‘“caversd trankaction,” ‘debyrred,’ 'suspended 7 *Ineligible,” - 'lowat' tler.
covered transaction,” ~“participant,” ““person,” pdmary covered 1 iction, ™
-"prln ‘,pal * “proposel,” -end “voluntarily: excluded,* as used in_this ‘clavgie; ‘have the.

: ot Ut In the. Definitians énd Eoverage setions-of the. rules Implementing.

Tneaiings
Exasutive Order 1254945 CER Part 78. Séo the attacted definitions:

‘8 The prospectivé niimary ;participant egrees by supmltt!ng this praposal {contract) that,
should: the préposed-coversd transaction be entered into, it shiall riot kng enter:
into any lower tier covered: transsction. with 2 person: wha is debared, -suspended,
‘dectared inellgible; or voluntarily extluded: trom’ participation In this covered n’am#(glgg.

unless authorized by
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor initials: E g
Standard Exhibk F —
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters ) , 0
January 2009 D?lﬂi___l__]____s '3'
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7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wilt
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier
covered transactions. -

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended,
ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that
the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by
which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a
system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this
clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that
which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordlnary course of business

dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a
participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federsl government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
{1} The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that

it and its principals:

{a} are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or

agency;

{b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract} been
convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud
or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public
transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making
false statements, or receiving stolen property;

are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses
enumerated in paragraph (I}{b) of this certification; and

{c

have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or

(d
more public transactions {Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements
in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this
proposal {contract). ) .

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: m-
Standard Exhibit F -

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsiblity Matters . 5 -3 / D
January 2009 Dpter;
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS ’
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal {contract), the prospective lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief
that it and Its principals:

{a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any
federal department or sgency.

{b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the
above, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
{contract}.

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract)
that it will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension,
Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without
modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier
covered transactions.

. T Reaer P. Jobin  Treasvrer

Y or Representative Signature) {Auth&ked Contractor Representative Name & Title]

| Office of Public Guardian 5 l 5 [ l 0 ¥ -
{Contractor Name} _ (Date) v 4
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: P'RY
Standard Exhiblt F ~
Certlfication Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responstbility Matters

January 2009
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the

Contractor’s representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to
execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990.

e T Roqer P._Jobin, Treasurer

\ctof: Représei’ﬁative Signature) " {Authbdtized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Office of Public Guardian v H I 3 l 1D
(Contractor Name) ’ {Date)
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: m

Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act

January 2009 Date: 5/3// 14




Page { of (

NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONVMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or
leased or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of heaith, day
care, education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by
Federal programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract,
loan, or loan guarantee., The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private
residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for
inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in
the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an
administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to
execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children
Act of 1994.

ﬂoc‘@/? Jo \DM ,Tf@agl)(’é’/

{Authorized Co_rimlctor Representative Name & Title)

Office of Public Guardian ‘5‘ ?Dl VO
{Contractor Name) (Date)
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: M

Standard Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke

January 2009 v Date: 5\ 17)‘ 10
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STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

0y

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Definitions.
“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.
13400.

“Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“Data_Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations’.’ in 45
CFR Section 164.501. '

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleX11, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associale Agreement Contractor Initials: w
September 2009
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“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Secretary " shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her

designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established

under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
1L As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
1. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the conﬁdcnt]ahty of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Buslness Associale Agreement Contractor Initials:, m
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

QObligations and Activities of Business Associate. '

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.

- 13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule. '

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: E
September 2009

Page 3 of 6 Date; 5 I b] ] D




h.

)

Page Lf’ of (v

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate dcstroy any or all PHI, the Business Assomate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHL

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHIL

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: WT
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Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the
Secretary. '

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A rcference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPA A, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or

destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Dept. of Health & Human Svs, Office of Public Guardian
The State Agency Name » ‘Name of the Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative

¢ of Authorized Representative

-
l _ | ety ¥.-Soboin
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Althorized Representative
Associate Commissioner ‘ ) _ | reaswred”
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
J’/”/D - £ 1)
Date Date

Cor{tractor tniﬁalsz_g_
Date: 5[3 l [ D
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES
BUREAU OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5000 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5000
Nancy L. Rollins Fax: 603-271-5058 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Associate Commissioner

May 11, 2011

His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch APPROVED BY

and the Honorable Executive Council

State House DATE é / )4 I I

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
PGE__ Y

REQUESTED ACTION 1mm#_____ \2G

1. Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, to
amend an agreement, Purchase Order number 102749, with the Office of Public Guardian (vendor code
166528), 2 Pillsbury St., Suite 400, Concord, NH 03301, to provide public' guardianship services by
increasing the price limitation by an amount not to exceed $912,797.29 from $878,656.80 to $1,791,454.09
and extending the completion date to June 30, 2012, effective July 1, 2011, or date of Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later. This agreement was originally approved by Governor and

“Executive Council on June 9, 2010, item number 106. Funds are anticipated to be available in the following
account in State Fiscal Year 2012 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget:

05-95-92-920010-7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:BEHAVIORAL HEALTH-DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUARDIANSHIP

SVCS
' Current Revised
Fiscal Modified Increase Modified
Year Class/Object Class Title Amount _Amount Amount
2011  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $878,656.80 $ 878,656.80

2012  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services b 0.00 $912.797.29 § 912,797.29
: $878,656.80 $912,797.29  $1,791,454.09

2. Authorize an advance payment up to a maximum of $145,667.23 of the contract price limitation.
EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to extend an agreement with the Office of Public Guardian to provide guardianship
and protection, on a statewide basis, to persons with mental illness and developmental impairments whose



His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council
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incapacities leave them at risk of substantial harm because of their inability to provide for their own food, shelter,
health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs. These services are needed to meet the State's statutory
obligations to safeguard incapacitated persons in the state institutions as well as in community mental health and
developmental service programs, It also carries out the requirements of RSA 135-C: 60, and RSA 171-A: 10, 1L
The Office of Public Guardian pursuant to RSA 547-B: 6 has been designated by the New Hampshire Supreme
Court as an approved organization for the purpose of providing guardianship and protection services pursuant to
RSA 464-A. This agreement will provide for guardianship services for up to 701 cases during the agreement
period. The emphasis in providing such services will be to ensure that the guardianships maintained and sought
will be limited in accordance with the standards embodied in RSA 464-A.

Using a public notice posted on the Department of Health and Human Services website on February 22, 2010, as
RFP Number 11-DCBCS-GPS-01, DCBCS requested proposals for providing public guardianship services in the
State. Five renewals of one year each are possible at the Department’s discretion. The Office of Public Guardian
responded by submitting a proposal to provide public guardianship services to people with a mental illness, or a
developmental disability who are eligible for State-funded services. The Office of Public Guardian was one of
two agencies to apply to provide public guardianship services.

A competitive review process was utilized to evaluate all proposals submitted by the deadline. Participants in the
review process included DHHS staff from the Bureau of Behavioral Health, the Bureau of Developmental
Services, and the Office of Client and Legal Services. This process involved an assessment of the proposal
submitted including an evaluation of scope of work, bidder background and experience, and the cost proposal.
Both proposals submitted for fiscal year 2011 scored over the required minimum.

Based on a favorable review of the above by the review team and because the Office of Public Guardian has in
previous agreements amply demonstrated its ability to provide high-level public guardianship services to clients
and the community served, the Division of Community Based Care Services requests this agreement be extended
for one year to allow the Office of Public Guardian to continue providing services.

The agreement for State Fiscal Year 2011 served up to 688 cases. In State Fiscal Year 2012 this agreement will
serve up to 701 cases, which includes the current caseload of 675, plus 13 cumrent pending cases and an
additional 13 cases. Based upon previous experience, it is anticipated that there will be a need for this agency to
assume these additional cases from the Bureau of Behavioral Health, or the Bureau of Developmental Services
this fiscal year. These additional slots will be filled over the course of the year. Hence, over the year there will
always be a certain number of vacant slots. The maximum contract amount includes a one and one-half (1 %)

percent reduction to reflect this vacancy rate.

This agreement also includes a line item for mentoring services and training. Mentoring services are provided to
family members who are willing to serve as guardian but who require a period of support. Providing this support
will obviate need for a public guardian in these cases and will thereby save the State from paying the cost of a
permanent public guardianship.

The total agreement price is $1,791,454.09, which is an increase of $912,797.12 from the contract price of
$878,656.80.

Attached is a copy of the previously approved letter to the Governor and Executive Council. Additionally the
Request for Proposal contained a provision allowing for five one year extensions at the Department’s discretion
and approval by the Governor and Executive Council.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request the Division of Community Based
Care Services would be out of compliance with the requirements of RSA 135-C: 60, and RSA 171-A: 10, II and
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persons with mental illness and developmental impairments whose incapacities leave them at risk of substantial
harm because of their inability to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their
personal affairs would be harmed.

Area served: statewide.

The source of funds for appropriation 7003 are 100% general funds.

Approved by: bt J\l\ A'.% '
Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

RSP/ik

Enclosures

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission Is to join conmunities and families in providing opportunities for citizens to
achieve health and independence.
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AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This Amendment to Agreement (hereinafter called the “Amendment”), dated this
st day of AZ'—"-(’ 2011, between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through
the Division of Community Based Care Services, and Office of Public Guardian, a
nonprofit organization organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire with a
place of business at 2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400, Concord, New Hampshire 03301
(hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”).

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2010, the Division of Community Based Care
Services issued a public notice for a Request For Proposal for "Guardianship and
Protective Services in New Hampshire" which cited the following:

"Contracted services shall commence on July 1, 2010 or on the Governor and
Executive Council approval date, whichever is later, and shall continue until June
30, 2011. Five renewals of one year each may be possible at the Department's
discretion", and

WHEREAS, the Contractor was one of two selected contractors, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Agreement approved on June 9, 2010, the Contractor
agreed to provide certain services upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Agreement, in consideration of payment by the Division of Community Based Care
Services of certain sums specified therein; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to paragraph 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be
amended, waived, or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
thereto and only after the approval of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the
Govemnor and Council of the State of New Hampshire;

WHEREAS, the Division of Community Based Care Services and the Contractor
have agreed to extend the Agreement for one year in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions contained in the Agreement and set forth herein, the parties do hereby agree as
follows:

1. Amendments and Modifications of Agreement

The contract is hereby amended as follows:

By deleting, in subparagraph 1.7. of the General Provisions the date June 30, 2011
and substituting therefore date June 30, 2012.

Contractor Initials: w
Date: _1-225°201)
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By deleting, in subparagraph 1.8. of the General Provisions the number
$878,656.80 and substituting therefore the number $1,791,545.09.

2. Amendment and Modification of Exhibit A, Scope of Work

2.1 Delete in sub-paragraph 1.2.2 the date August 1, 2010 and substituting therefore date
August 1, 2011.

-2.2. Change Paragraph 3.3. to read as follows:

3.3 The Contractor agrees to serve the current total of 675 persons receiving
guardianship and protection services, plus 13 pending cases, plus any new persons
referred in accordance with paragraphs 1.4 above. However, the Contractor shall
not be obligated to accept more than 701 cases during the contract period. While
-the Bureau shall provide the Contractor with letters of approval for each new case
assigned to the Contractor, the Contractor may not bill for services until the
Contractor is actually appointed as guardian by a probate court. In addition
payments under this contract constitute payment in full for guardianship over the
person services and the contractor shall not accept any additional payments from
the ward or from other funds of the ward.

2.3, Change Paragraph 3.4. to read as follows:

3.4 The Commencement date of this agreement shall be July 1, 2011, or the date
of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later.

3. Amendments and Modlﬁcatlons of Exhibit B, Methods of Payment

3.1. Change Paragraph 1. to read as follows

1. Subject to the availability of State funds; and in consideration for the
satisfactory completion of the services to be pe:formed under this Agreement, the
State shall pay the Contractor a per diem per case rate approved by the Office of
Client and Legal Services. However, regardless. of the number of persons served
by the Contractor during the program period, specified in paragraphs 3.1. and 3.2.
of the General Provisions of this Agreement, the State shall pay the Contractor a
minimum amount of $1,715,317.29 during the program period. The total of all
payments authorized or actually made hereunder shall not exceed the amount of
$1,791,545.09, the price limitation set forth in block 1.8. of the General
Provisions.

1.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of services to persons
served under this Agreement shall be:

Contractor Initials: ilP—T
Date: g--?.S*U”\
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$3.60 for up to 701 clients whose guardianship services are requested by the
Bureaus of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services;

1.2. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of technical assistance to
private guardians shall be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of $4,000.00.

1.3 The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training to area agency,
mental health and elderly and adult agency staff and probate court personnel
shall be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of $1,500.00.

3.2. Change Paragraph 2.1. to read as follows:

2.1. The State shall at the beginning of the Agreement period make a payment
of $145,667.23 the estimated fee for service payment due to the Contractor for
providing services for a period of two months.  Adjustments for
underpayments or overpayments will be made at the end of the first quarter of
the program period. This initial payment is the amount the State has
‘determined is necessary to initiate the services.

" 3.3. Change Paragraph 2.2. to read as follows:

2.2. A monthly payment equal to $72,883.62 will be made to the Contractor at
the beginning of September and continuing through the end of the agreement or
until the maximum amount of the contract has been reached. Adjustments for
underpayments or overpayments will be made at the end of the first quarter of
the program period and continue at the end of subsequent quarters through June
30, 2012. The per diem rate will be extended to the last day of the month
following the month in which the client dies or for whom the
guardianship/protection service is terminated.

3.4. Change Sub-paragraph 2.4 e. to read as follows:

e. Calculation of the total authorized payment due for the service quarter in
accordance with 2.3. above;

The first "Quarterly Payment Computation and Authorization, Office
of Public Guardian" report shall be submitted by no later than October
5, 2011 and the final report by July 10, 2012. Failure to submit such
reports shall constitute an Event of Defaulit.

3.5 Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.1. to read as follows:

2.5.1. The Contractor shall notify the State in its October "Quarterly
Payment and Computatxon Report, Office of Public Guardian" in the event that
ayment for services for the months of July through September is less thian
$428,829.32, whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for the
difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and $428,829.32.

Contractor Initials; P—PS

Date: 425221\
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3.6 Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.2 to read as follows:

2.5.2. The Contractor shall notify the State in its January "Quarterly
Payment and Computation Report, Office of Public Guardian" in the event that
payment for services for the months of July through December is less than
$857,658.64, whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for the
difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and $857,658.64.

3.7 Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.3. to read as follows:

2.5.3 The Contractor shall notify the State in its April "Quarterly Payment and
Computation Report, Office of Public Guardian” in the event that payment for
services for the months of July through March is less than $1,286,487.96,
whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for the difference
between the amount paid to the Contractor and $1, 286,487.96.

3.8 Change Paragraph 4. to read as follows:

4. This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund as follows:

Current Increase Revised
Modified (Decrease) Modified
Budget Amount Budget

NH General Fund: $878,656.80 $912,797.29 $1,791,454.09

5. Effective Date of Amendment: The effective date of this action is July 1,
2011, or the date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later.

6. Continuance of Agreement: Except as specifically amended and modified
by the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the Agreement and the
obligation of the parties hereunder shall remain in full force and effect in
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth therein,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partles have hereunto set their hands as of the day and
year written above.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DIVISION,OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

By: ,’ N1~ ] AU -
Nancy olling; Associate Commissioner

Office of Public Guardian

By: ?@me—————

( name & title of person f from OPG here)
ex V. Jobin, Treasvcer - -

Contractor Initials: RRJ

Date: §.25-2&11
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of __ Mexripatéa

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 45" 6%] day of
,2011, by V«,oc,u P. XA

Agci
\\\\n iy,
o
S § oy, "tz
=S I o oemy L 1gnature
: ,:;: ".‘?\'},m%@m 1,4,5 = -
2§ Andres L. Do
(Seal) /,,, i, ,,{:;,‘l-_(\;_\&:\ Name
(Notary Pubhc)”ﬂ e W Title: Notary Public/Justiceof tirePeace
Commission Expires: lllH}lZ_

Approved as to form, execution, and substance:
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Y ke Y2 feno, e
Assistant Attorney General V?AMC‘WQ

Date: 5//ﬁ/20 { )

By:

Contractor Initials: R‘RT

Date: J25 20 | |
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 56151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-680, Title V, Subtitle D;
41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.}, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 51561-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January
31, 1989 regulations were amended and published as Part ll of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register
{pages 21681-21691), and require certification by grantees {and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace: Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates
for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below
is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant.
False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grents, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using
this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

{A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
{a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distfibution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s

workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of ’
such prohibition;

{b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

{1 The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

{2) The grantee’s policy of mainteining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance
: programs; and

(4} The penalties thet may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor initals:_ {S R’-T
Standard Exhibit D - Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements 2G-2811
January 2009 : Date:
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{c}

{d)

{e)

{f)

poge Lot L

Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph {(a);

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a} that, as a condition
of employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

{2} Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a viplation of a
criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days
after such conviction;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d){2} from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such

" conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position

title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was
working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of
such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d){2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

{1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and
including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973, as amended; or

{2} Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance
or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or
local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

{g} Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through

implementation of paragraphs (a}, {b}, {c), {d}, (e}, and (f}.

(B} The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sitels} for the performance of work
done in connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stats, zip code} {list each location)

Check [] if there are workplaces on file that are not identified hera.

| Office of Public Guardlen:

e[ Deleted:

{Contractor Name)

Roaer ¥, Jobin Treagores

{Name & Titla.g) Authorized Contractor Reprefentative) -

‘4|'_7_f9\w\

{Date) - i
NH DHHS, Offia of Business Operations Contractor Inffials: E\T
Standard Exhiblt D ~ Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements dac-2o1
January 2009 Date; &=

Page 2 of 2
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1. 11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title 1V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: 7/1/11 through 6/30/12

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1)

(2)

(3)

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a.Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor).

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, - (Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.}

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S5. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each

such failure.

?&7)0(}\/)——-——‘-\ PeoerP. 2oy Treasorer

Standard Exhibit E ~ Certification Regarding Lobbying
January 2009

'(C?ﬂfgctor Representative Signature) {Authorized @ontractor Representative Name & Title)
Office of Public Guardian 4,25.20H

{Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: 'LP -

Date: 4'2'5 2001

Page 8 of 51
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the
provisions of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76
regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the
Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily
result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. lf necessary, the prospective
participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The
certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of
Health and Human Services’ (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a
certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this
transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representstion of fact upon which reliance
was placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later
determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous
certification, in addition to other remedies.available to the Federal Government, DHHS
may terminate this transaction for cause or dafault.

4, The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal {contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective
primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has
become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

6. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier
covered transaction,” “participant,” *person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,”
“proposal,” and “voluntarily axcluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out
in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order
12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that,
should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter
into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction,

unless authorized by DHHS.
NH DHHS, Office of Businass Operations Contractor Initials; RPI
Standard Exhibit F —
Cartificatlon Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Malters . 4‘ 15.201)
January 2009 Dale:,

Page 10of 3
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Page Zof 5

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wilt
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier
covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended,
ineligible, or invotuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that
the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by
which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the Nonprocurement List {of excluded parties). :

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a
system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this
clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that
which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business
dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a
participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

(2)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that
it and its principals:

{a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily exciuded from covered transactions by any Federal department or
agency;

{b} have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal {contract) been convicted
of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a
criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a
public {Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction;
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft,
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or
receiving stolen property; .

are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity {Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses
enumerated in paragraph {1)(b} of this certification; and

{c

{d} have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or
more public transactions {Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in
this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this
proposal (contract).

—
Contractor Initlals:. EPU

Standard Exhibit F -

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibliity Malters ) L}Zg 2840
January 2009 Date:.

Page20of 3
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal {contract), the prospective lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief
that it and its principals:

{a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any
federal department or agency.

{b} where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the
above, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
{contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal {contract)
that it will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension,
Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without
modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier
covered transactions.

sentative Signature) {Authorized Comtractor Representative Nathe & Title)
| Office of Public Guardian “1’ 25-261) . v or - Deleted: ,
{Contractor Name) {Date) i
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor initials: P:Pf
Standerd Exhlbit F -
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters ‘_‘,‘
January 2008 Date: 25201
Page3of 3
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to
execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract} the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990.

dgtor Representative Signature) ' {Authorized Caplractsr Representative Name & Title)

Office of Public Guardian 47-5 250\

{Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:; QPJ
Standard Exhibit G — Cenrtification Regarding the Amaericans With Disabilities Act

January 2009 i Date: 25201
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or
leased or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day
care, education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by
Federal programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract,
loan, or loan guarantee. The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private
residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for
inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in
the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an
administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor’'s representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to
execute the following certification: ‘

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children

Act of 1994.

, Y. Jobig Treasores

opfrictor Representative Signature) {Authari¢ell Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Office of Public Guardian 4’ X5 -201)

{Contractor Name) {Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor initials: RRT
Standard Exhibit H — Certlfication Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke : 4

January 2009 Date: ~25-20))
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT 1
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

)

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Definitions.
“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach™ in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.
13400.

“Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“Data_Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009,

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: BRT
September 2009 A
Page 1 of & Date: ‘]25 '29'!
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k. *“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

l.  “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

m. “Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee. ‘

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

@) Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a, Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
1L As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or

1L For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI unti]l Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: ij
September 2009
Page 2 of 6 Date: 425 Al
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.

13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI reccived from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business- Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: m
September 2009
o das.2en

Page 30of 6 Date;
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Business Associate shall document such’ disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

- In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from

the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shal! instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508. ‘

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associale Agreement Contractor Inlials: RPJ

September 2009
Page 4 of 6 Date: .25 2011
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Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the
Secretary.

. Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended. '

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of

this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: RR3

September 2009
Page 5 of 6 Date; 4'752"‘ !
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Dept. of Health & Human Svs, Office of Public Guardian

The State Agency Name - Name of the Contractor

A bt i 1) Dl P\Jb,..

Signature of Anthotize ﬁp&s'cntative ire of Authorized Representative

Nancy L. Rollins | ?)@ Yo i ? Jobi(/\

Name of Authorized Representative _ Name of Shthorized Representative

Associate Commissioner v T —"?‘ﬁﬂ%\) rey”

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
1—{'.29, 2010

Date _ " Date '

Standard Exhiblt | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: QPJ

September 2009

Page 6 of 6 Date: 4'25'20\1
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFAT A reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

?w»-? s — QO%L( . Jokin {Ww%urcf

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
OfRce o Tlic Gonrdian 4 25211
{Contractor Name) (Date)

Contractor initials: ?-P'-T
Date: F25-211 _
Page # L of Page#_Z-
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
. below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

‘/ NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?
NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4, The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: _ Amount:

Name: Amount: ____ .
Name; _____ ‘ Amount: ___
Name: ‘ Amount: .
Name: Amount:

Contractor initials: gP:F
Date: 252011

Page # 2 of Page # Z
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Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commisgsioner

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch

S b T-7

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BUREAU OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

106 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5000 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5000
Fax: 603-271-5058 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

May 1, 2012

and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 -

DATE

PAGE

TEM #

REQUESTED ACTION

APFROVED BY _

tafe
o

1. Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, to
amend an agreement, Purchase Order number 1009016, with the Office of Public Guardian (vendor code
166528), 2 Pillsbury St., Suite 400, Concord, NH 03301, to provide public guardianship services by
increasing the price limitation by $951,472.18 from $1,791,454.09 to an amount not to exceed $2,742,926.27
and extending the completion date to June 30, 2013, effective July 1, 2012, or date of Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later. This agreement was originally approved by Governor. and
Executive Council on June 9, 2010, item number 106, and subsequently amended on June 8, 2011 item
number 126. Funds are available in the following account:

05-95-92-920010-7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:BEHAVIORAL HEALTH-DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUARDIANSHIP

Revised
Increase Modified
Amount Amount

$ 878,656.80
$ 912,797.29
$951,472.18 $ 951,472.18

SVCS
Current
Fiscal Modified
Year  Class/Object Class Title Amount
2011 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $ 878,656.80
2012  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $ 912,797.29
2013 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services § _ 0.00
$1,791,454.09

$951,472.18  $2,742,926.27

2. Authorize an advance payment up to a maximum of $151,839.10 of the contract price limitation.



His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council

May 1, 2012

Page 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to extend an agreement with the Office of Public Guardian to provide guardianship
and protection, on a statewide basis, to persons with mental illness and developmental impairments whose
incapacities leave them at risk of substantial harm because of their inability to provide for their own food, shelter,
health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs. These services are needed to meet the State's statutory
obligations to safeguard incapacitated persons in the state institutions as well as in community mental health and
developmental service programs. It also carries out the requirements of RSA 135-C: 60, and RSA 171-A: 10, II.
The Office of Public Guardian pursuant to RSA 547-B: 6 has been designated by the New Hampshire Supreme
Court as an approved organization for the purpose of providing guardianship and protection services pursuant to
RSA 464-A. This agreement will provide for guardianship services for up to 710 cases during the agreement
period. The emphasis in providing such services will be to ensure that the guardianships maintained and sought
will be limited in accordance with the standards embodied in RSA 464-A.

Using a public notice posted on the Department of Health and Human Services website on February 22, 2010, as
RFP Number 11-DCBCS-GPS-01, the Division of Community Based Care Services requested proposals for
providing public guardianship services in the State. Five renewals of one year each are possible at the
Department’s discretion. The Office of Public Guardian responded by submitting a proposal to provide public
guardianship services to people with a mental illness, or a developmental disability who are eligible for State-
funded services. The Office of Public Guardian was one of two agencies to apply to provide public guardianship
services.

A competitive review process was utilized to evaluate all proposals submitted by the deadline. Participants in the
review process included Department staff from the Bureau of Behavioral Health, the Bureau of Developmental
Services, and the Office of Client and Legal Services. This process involved an assessment of the proposal
submitted including an evaluation of scope of work, bidder background and experience, and the cost proposal.
Both proposals submitted for fiscal year 2011 scored over the required minimum.

Based on a favorable review of the above by the review team and because the Office of Public Guardian has in
previous agreements amply demonstrated its ability to provide high-level public guardianship services to clients
and the community served, the Division of Community Based Care Services requests this agreement be extended
for one year to allow the Office of Public Guardian to continue providing services.

The agreement for State Fiscal Year 2012 served up to 701 cases. In State Fiscal Year 2013 this agreement will
serve up to 710 cases., Based upon previous experience, it is anticipated that there will be a need for this agency
to assume these additional cases from the Bureau of Behavioral Health, or the Bureau of Developmental Services
this fiscal year. These additional slots will be filled over the course of the year. Hence, over the year there will
always be a certain number of vacant slots. The maximum contract amount ingcludes a one and one-haif (1 %)
percent reduction to reflect this vacancy rate.

This agreement also includes a line item for mentoring services and training. Mentoring services are provided to
family members who are willing to serve as guardian but who require a period of support. Providing this support
will obviate need for a public guardian in these cases and will thereby save the State from paying the cost of a
permanent public guardianship.

Attached is a copy of the previously approved letter to the Governor and Executive Council. ‘Additionally, the
Request for Proposal contained a provision allowing for five one year extensions at the Department’s discretion
and approval by the Governor and Executive Council.



His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council

May 1, 2012

Page 3

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request the Division of Community Based
Care Services would be out of compliance with the requirements of RSA 135-C: 60, and RSA 171-A: 10, Il and
persons with mental illness and developmental impairments whose incapacities leave them at risk of substantial
harm because of their inability to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their
personal affairs would be harmed.

Area served: statewide.

Source of funds: 100% general funds.

Respectfully submitted,

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

Approved by: % \V\A&\ A’

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

RSP/pbr

Enclosures

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
In providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This Amendment to Agreement (hereinafter called the “Amendment”), dated this
15 day of Mayy, 2012, between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through
the Division of Cothmunity Based Care Services, and Office of Public Guardian, a
nonprofit organization organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire with a
place of business at 2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400, Concord, New Hampshire 03301
(hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor™).

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2010, the Division of Community Based Care
Services issued a public notice for a Request For Proposal for "Guardianship and
Protective Services in New Hampshire" which cited the following:

"Contracted services shall commence on July 1, 2010 or on the Governor and
Executive Council approval date, whichever is later, and shall continue until June
30, 2011. Five renewals of one year each may be possible at the Department's
discretion”, and ’ :

WHEREAS, the Contractor was one of two selected contractors, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Agreement approved on June 9, 2010, the Contractor
agreed to provide certain services upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Agreement, in consideration of payment by the Division of Community Based Care
Services of certain sums specified therein; and '

WHEREAS, pursuant to paragraph 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be
amended, waived, or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
thereto and only after the approval of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the
Governor and Council of the State of New Hampshire;

WHEREAS, the Division of Community Based Care Services and the Contractor
have agreed to extend the Agreement for one year in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions contained in the Agreement and set forth herein, the parties do hereby agree as
follows:

1. Amendments and Modifications of Ag[eementb

The contract is hereby amended as follows:

By deleting, in subparagraph 1.7. of the General Provisions the date June 30, 2012
and substituting therefore date June 30, 2013.

Contractor Initials: m
Date: 5115« W2
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By deleting, in subparagraph 1.8. of the General Provisions the number
$1,791,545.09 and substituting therefore the number $2,742,926.27.

2. Amendment and Modification of Exhibit A, Scope of Work

2.1 Delete in sub-paragraph 1.2.2 the date August 1, 2011 and substituting therefore date
August 1, 2012,

2.2. Change Paragraph 3.3. to read as follows:

3.3 The Contractor agrees to serve the current total of 682 persons receiving
guardianship and protection services plus any new persons referred in accordance
with paragraphs 1.4 above. However, the Contractor shall not be obligated to
accept more than 710 cases during the contract period. While the Bureau shall
provide the Contractor with letters of approval for each new case assigned to the
Contractor, the Contractor may not bill for services until the Contractor is actually
appointed as guardian by a probate court. In addition payments under this contract
constitute payment in full for guardianship over the person services and the
contractor shall not accept any additional payments from the ward or from other
funds of the ward.

2.3. Change Paragraph 3.4. to read as follows:

3.4 The Commencement date of this agreement shall be July 1, 2012, or the date
of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later.

3. Amendments and Modifications of Exhibit B, Methods of Payment

3.1. Change Paragraph 1. to read as follows:

1. Subject to the availability of State funds, and in consideration for the

- satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the
State shall pay the Contractor a per diem per case rate approved by the Office of
Client and Legal Services. However, regardless of the number of persons served
by the Contractor during the program period, specified in paragraphs 3.1. and 3.2.
of the General Provisions of this Agreement, the State shall pay the Contractor a
minimum amount of $2,626,351.90 during the program period. The total of all
payments authorized or actually made hereunder shall not exceed the amount of
$2,742,926.27, the price limitation set forth in block 1.8. of the General
Provisions.

1.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of services to persons
served under this Agreement shall be:

Contractor Initials: EP.\’
Date: [} pRe7 1Y Y
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$3.70 for up to 710 clients whose guardianship services are requested by the
Bureaus of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services;

1.2. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of technical assistance to
private guardians shall be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of $5,000.00.

1.3 The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training to area agency,
mental health and elderly and adult agency staff and probate court personnel
shall be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of $2,000.00.

3.2. Change Paragraph 2.1. to read as follows:

2.1. The State shall at the beginning of the Agreement period make a payment
of $151,839.10 the estimated fee for service payment due to the Contractor for
providing services for a period of two months.  Adjustments for
underpayments or overpayments will be made at the end of the first quarter of
the program period. This initial payment is the amount the State has
determined is necessary to initiate the services.

3.3. Change Paragraph 2.2. to read as follows:

2.2. A monthly payment equal to $75,919.55 will be made to the Contractor at
the beginning of September and continuing through the end of the agreement or
until the maximum amount of the contract has been reached. Adjustments for
underpayments or overpayments will be made at the end of the first quarter of
the program period and continue at the end of subsequent quarters through June
30,2012, The per diem rate will be extended to the last day of the month
following the month in which the client dies or for whom the
guardianship/protection service is terminated.

3.4. Change Sub-paragraph 2.4 e. to read as follows:

e. Calculation of the total authorized payment due for the service quarter in
accordance with 2.3. above;

The first "Quarterly Payment Computation and Authorization, Office
of Public Guardian" report shall be submitted by no later than October
5, 2012 and the final report by July 10, 2013. Failure to submit such
reports shall constitute an Event of Default.

3.5 Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.1. to read as follows:

2.5.1. The Contractor shall notify the State in its October "Quarterly
Payment and Computation Report, Office of Public Guardian" in the event that
payment for services for the months of July through September is less than
$656,587.97, whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for the
difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and $656,587.97.

Contractor Initials: 5 "5‘ 7—‘\2"
Date: _ppry
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3.6 Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.2 to read as follows:

2.5.2. The Contractor shall notify the State in its January "Quarterly
Payment and Computation Report, Office of Public Guardian" in the event that
payment for services for the months of July through December is less than
$1,313,175.94, whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for the
difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and $1,313,175.94.

3.7 Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.3. to read as follows:

2.5.3 The Contractor shall notify the State in its April "Quarterly Payment and
Computation Report, Office of Public Guardian" in the event that payment for
services for the months of July through March is: less than $1,969,763.92,
whereupon the State shall issue a supplemental check for the dlfferencc
between the amount paid to the Contractor and $1,969,763.92.

3.8 Change Paragraph 4. to read as follows:

4. This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund as follows:

Current Increase Revised
Modified (Decrease) Modified
Budget Amount Budget

NH General Fund: $1,791,454.09 $951,472.18 $2,742,926.27

5. Effective Date of Amendment: The effective date of this action is July 1,
2012, or the date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later.

6. Continuance of Agreement: Except as specifically amended and modified
by the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the Agreement and the
obligation of the parties hereunder shall remain in full force and effect in
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and
year written above.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

Nancy L. Ilms, Associate Commissioner

Office of Public Guardian

name & title of person from OPG here)

MP' Jzu’d Contractor Initials: r
e 20

TReASURER- S11S- 2L Date:




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of M&\’ Coma (¥

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this \'5ThL day of
Mo ,2012, by O\G%L.r T . Hpbin

) @rMbD\ =

g Signature
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Approved as to form, execution, and substance:
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

By: MUAST MAsetd
feanne P. Herrick
Attorney

Date: 22 /"&c_l,)_glq -y

Contractor Initials: m
Date: _s_‘j_s 209
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

L Aobert Welle , do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected Clerk of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (the
“Corporation™)

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the
Board of Directors of the Corporation duly held on
Maxdn 27,2012 ,

RESOLVED: That this corporation enter into a contract with the State of New
Hampshire, acting through the Division of Community Based Care Services, concerning
the following matter:

Guardianship Program

RESOLVED: That the Treasurer hereby is authorized on behalf of this corporation to
enter into said contract with the State of New Hampshire and to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications hereto as may be necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The foregoing resolutions haye not been amended or revoked and remain in full
force and effect as of MAuy 15 2002~ '
{ /
4, \jlfl is the duly elected Treasurer of this
Corporation. -
Cierk
State of New Hampshire

County of Megrizsy ""r Ll

The forc‘goixjg instrurnient was acknowledged before me on this
day of Mlé/ ,20(2




At Lese

Notary Public/Justi

My Commission Expires:

/
BRENDA M, BEER, Notary Public C Initials: '
My Qemmission Expires éepttearrry:ber 23,2014 ontmeter ;t)l:u: <0
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D;
41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.}, and further agrees to have the Contractor’'s representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January
31, 1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register
{pages 21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
. may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates
for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below
is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant.
False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using
this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlied substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance
programs; and »
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon emplayees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: Pﬂ_
Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements W
January 2009 Date;
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{c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph {a) that, as a condition
of employment under the grant, the employee wit!

{1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a
criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days
after such conviction;

(e} . Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d}{2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position
title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was
working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of
such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d){2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and
including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabllltatlon Act
of 1973, as amended; or :

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance
or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or
local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

{g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), {c), (d), {e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work
done in connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code)} (list each location)

Check []if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Ofce oFPulic Q\W&W\From '7/ i 7o 30/ 13

(Contractor Name) “{Period Covéted by this Certuhcatnon)

W? Jobin | regsurex”

{Name L&jTl'cle of Authorized Contracfor Representative)

Sk 012-

{Date}
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: w
Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements
January 2009 Date: 545 -
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS '
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title iV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XI1X

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: 7/1/12 through 6/30/13
The undersigned certifies, to.the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1} No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or:an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor).

{2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of -Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, atta‘ched and identified as Standard Exhibit. E-1.)

{3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans,-and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each

PW ' (PYBC:L/ P Jobiv TTreayuel

r Representative Signature) {Authorized ’Co_@ractor Representative Name & Title)

DfGCe of Yo (insdiay . suS 2N

{Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: Qf
Standard Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying :

January 2009 Date: SAS 12
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the
provisions of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76
regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the
Contractor’'s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract}, the prospective primary partncupant is
providing the certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily
result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. |f necessary, the prospective
participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The
certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of
Health and Human Services’ {(DHHS) determination whether to enter into this
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a
certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this
transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance
was placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction.. If it is later
determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous
certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS
may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective
primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has
become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” *“suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier
covered transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,”
“proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out
in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order

12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that,
should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter
into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction,
unless authorized by DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: m
Standard Exhibit F - ) .
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters W

January 2009
Page 10f 3
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The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier
covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended,
ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that
the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by
which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the Nonprocurement List {(of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a
system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this
clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that
which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business
dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a
participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default,

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that
it and its principals:

{a} are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or
agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted
of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a
criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a
public (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction;
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft,
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or
receiving stolen property;

{c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses
enumerated in paragraph {l}{b} of this certification; and

{d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or
more public transactions {Federal, State or local} terminated for cause or defaulit.

{2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in
this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this
proposal {contract).

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: D.PS-
Standard Exhibit F - -
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters 5 .'S. \3
January 2008 Date:
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief
that it and its principals:

{a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any
federal department or agency.

(b} where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the
above, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
(contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal {contract)
that it will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension,
Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without
modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier
covered transactions.

{Corftradtor Representative Signature) ‘ (Authorized _C,O'r@ai_:tp)r Representative Name & Title)
O 0@ ?OHLLGuM&EM ) 5:1S. 2012

{Contractor Name) {Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: w
Standard Exhibit F -

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters = 'S'.DIL
January 2009 Date; *
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to
execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990.

. IS - . - ——— . .,
P ot | Y. Sobin Treasrer
or Representative Signature) (Authorized €gntracter Representative Name & Title)

o of oblicloasdian 5.15-201%

{Contractor Name) {Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: P‘ﬁr
Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act -
January 2009 . Date: 5.1S.




Page l of

NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or
leased or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day
care, education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by
Federal programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract,
loan, or loan guarantee. The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private
residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for
inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in
the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an
administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to
execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children
Act of 1994,

Py P. Tobin Treasorer’

" (Authorized Conddactor Representative Name & Title)

Qe OF ?\)B(L (;ou,&_}m SiS w2

{Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: ’w
Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke 1S 12—
January 2009 Date: 5
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INH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

a) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.
13400.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

¢. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations™ in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164,

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g). '

j.  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

.
Standard Exhibit i — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: ﬁ-PJ

September 2009 5, 'S'.lpn—-
Page 10f 6 Date;
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k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

. “Reguired by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

(2) Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
11 As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or

IH. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials:,_ E .
September 2009 2213~
Page 2 of 6 Date; . 5.'5 ik
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€. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.

13402.

b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the PriVacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

C. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s

- intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

€. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

£ Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

g Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials; w
September 2009
Page 3 of 6 Date: 5,15 .01~
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h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shail make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

k.- Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall retun or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

b, Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standarg Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: m ‘
September 2009 12—
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(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the

Secretary.
(6) Miscellaneous
a, Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall

have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. ~ Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. '

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

€. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

- Standard Exhibit t — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: E
Seplember 2009 Py
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Dept. of Health & Human Svs. | ()CF—;L@ O(: FP\)\)‘:(_ é{)df&l:\aﬂ

The State Agency Name Name of the Contractor
Signature of Authtuized Representatwe ' Si f Authorized Representative
Nancy L. Rollins /"Z)CX'M ? Sob\ A
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Kthorized Representative
/
Associate Commissioner » : ( (€.a%V veA/

Title of Authorized Representative ' Title of Authorized Representative

Date ! ’ ' ' " Date
Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: R'?!)
September 2009 SIS 217
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT }

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the fundmg action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA rcqu:rcd data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-

252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

7 Jebin  lreasorer
(Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

O&e 63 ?o\)(« Coardian Si1S-2002

(Contractor Name) (Date)

Contractor initials: . J3

Date: SIS 22—
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. Thc DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

‘/ NO YES

If the answer to #2 aboeve is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount;

Name: _ Amount; .
Name: ____ A Amount;
Name: _ Amount;
Name: Amount:

Contractor initials: 283
Date: $11S. 281>~
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF COZMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES
BURE§4 U OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Nicholas A. Toumpas b
Commissioner 105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 %
603-271-5000 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5000 Q\\O\ \3
Nancy L. Rollins Fax: 603-?7;1-5058 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 \ \ 1

Associate Commissioner
May 15, 2013 »
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan ! _ : ; / /4
and the Honorable Council O ?? é 70 é{ e for
State House b .
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 i _ L/ / /, i
. of Z /4 [ 29/ [T~

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Authorize the Department of Health and Human Seririf:cs, Division of Community Based Care Services, to
amend an agreement, Purchase Order number 1009016, with the Office of Public Guardian (vendor code -
166528), 2 Pillsbury St., Suite 400, Concord, NH p3301, to provide public guardianship services by
increasing thé price limitation by $1,090,361.73 i from $2,742,926.27 to an amount not to exceed
$3,833,288.00 and extending the completion date t;;o{: June 30, 2014, effective July 1, 2013, or date of
Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. "];hls agreement was originally approved. by Governor
and Council on June 9, 2010, item number 106, and subsequently amended on June 8, 2011, item number
126, and June 20, 2012, item number 80. Funds are _L/nfiticipated to be available in the following accounts in
State Fiscal Year 2014 based upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget: e

05-95-92-920010-7002  HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERYIT.'CES,, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS:BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHN:V;IORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

) Fiscal I .' Current Increase Revised
——— Class/Object ' Class Title {i Modified - (Decrease) Modified
Year =200 1% -
E— P Budget Amount v Budget
2011 102-500731  Contracts for Program Services $ 878,656.80 $ 0.00 $ 878,656.80
2012 102-500731  Contracts for Program Services i L$ 912,797.29 $ 0.00 $ 912,797.29
2013 102-500731  Contracts for Program Services | |$  951,472.18  § 0.00 $ 95147218
2014 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services : '$ ' 000 $ 990,361.73 $ 990,361.73

05—9548-481610-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL ;SER:}V_%CES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS:ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal ; Current Increase Revised
<~ Class/Object Class Title 1 Modified {Decrease) Modified
Year ~ — i = 1. T
— e Budget Amount Budget
2014 102-500734  Contracts for Program Services; b 0.00 $ 100,000.00 $ 100,000.00

Total i $2,742,926.27 $1,090,361,73  §3,833,288.00

2.  Authorize an advance f)aymcnt up to a maximum of . $f'1 58,045 of the contract price limitation.




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to extend an agreement with the Office of Public Guardian to provide guardianship
and protection services, on a statewide basis, to persons \':vith mental illness, developmental impairments and
incapacitated adults who are abused, neglected or exploita'tcd whose incapacities leave them at risk of substantial
harm because of their inability to provide for their own; food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their
personal affairs. These services are needed to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard incapacitated
persons who are abused, neglected or exploitated, in state imstltutxons as well as in community mental health and
developmental service programs. It also carries out the rcqulrements of RSA 135-C: 60, RSA 171-A: 10, II and
RSA 161-F:52. The Office of Public Guardian pursuartjto RSA 547-B: 6 has been designated by the New
Hampshire Supreme Court as an approved organization for ithe purpose of providing guardianship and protection
services pursuant to RSA 464-A. This agreement will provxde for guardianship services for up to 752 cases
during the agreement period. The emphasis in providing' such services will be to ensure that the guardianships
maintained and sought will be limited in accordance with the standards embodied in RSA 464-A.

Using a public notice posted on the Department of Health and Human Services website on February 22, 2010, as
RFP Number 11-DCBCS-GPS-01, the Division of Commumty Based Care Services requested proposals for
providing public guardianship services in the State. Flve renewals of one year each are possible at the
Department’s discretion. The Office of Public Guardian: responded by submitting a proposal to provide public
guardianship services to people with a mental illness, or’a developmental disability who are eligible for State-
funded services. The Office of Public Guardian was one of two agencies to apply to provide public guardianship
services.

A competitive review process was utilized to evaluate all pfoposals submitted by the deadline. Participants in the
review process included Department staff from the Bureau of Behavioral Health, the Bureau of Developmental
Services, and the Office of Client and Legal Services. ‘Thls process involved an assessment of the proposal
submitted including an evaluation of scope of work, blddcr background and experience, and the cost proposal.
Both proposals submitted for fiscal year 2011 scored over tl}e required minimum.

Based on a favorable review of the above by the review ;cam and because the Office of Public Guardian has in
previous agreements amply demonstrated its ability to prov1dc high-level public guardianship services to clients
and the community served, the Division of Community Based Care Services requests this agreement be extended
for one year to allow the Office of Public Guardian to continuc providing services.

With respect to the Agreement to purchase guardlanshlp and protection services for incapacitated adults who are
abused, neglected or exploitated, an application for fundmg was released to the Office of Public Guardian on
March 22, 2013. The application was reviewed and the fun'dmg and number of slots were negotiated. Since there
are only two public guardianship agencies that have beenI approved by the New Hampshire Supreme Court, there
were no other agencies seeking approval, and since the Department contracts with both of these agencies, a
Request for Proposals would not be productive or nccessary

The agreement for State Fiscal Year 2013 served up to 7'1(3) cases. In State Fiscal Year 2014 this agreement will
serve up to 752 cases based upon previous experience, it isanticipated that there will be a need for this-agency to
assume these additional cases from the Bureau of Beha\{idra] Health, or the Bureau of Developmental Services
this fiscal year. These additional slots will be filled over th¢ course of the year.

This agreement also includes a line item for mentoring serv1ces and training. Mentoring services are provided to
family members who are willing to serve as guardian but ‘who require a period of support. Providing this support
will obviate need for a public guardian in these cases and’ will thereby save the State from paying the cost of a
permanent public guardianship.
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Her Excellency, Govermnor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 !

Attached is a copy of the previously approved letter to thé Govemor and Council. Additionally, the Request for
Proposal contained a provision allowing for five one-year bxtenswns at the Department’s discretion and approval
by the Governor and Council. :

Should Governor and Council determine not to approve this request the Division of Community Based Care
Services would be out of compliance with the requirements of RSA 135-C: 60, RSA 171-A: 10, 11, and RSA 161-
F:52 and persons with mental illness, developmental 1mpa1rments and incapacitated adults who are abused,
neglected or exploitated, whose incapacities leave them at nsk of substantial harm because of their inability to
provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or té manage thieir personal affairs would be harmed.

Area served: statewide.

Source of funds: 96% General Funds and 4% Federal I'unds;

; Respectfully submitted,
. Nancy L. Rollins

Associate Commissioner

i

Approved by: % ‘LL * \

i+ Nicholas A. Toumpas
:  Commissioner

RSP/pbr/s] .

Enclosures

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to Jjoin communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.

co
P!

'
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AMENDMENT T@ AGREEMENT

This Amendment to Agreement (hereinafter called the “Am'e!ndment”) dated this 3"/ day of May, 2013, between
the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the D1v131on of Community Based Care Services, and Office of
Public Guardian, a nonprofit organization organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire with a place of
business at 2 Plllsbury Street, Suite 400, Concord, New Hampshire 03301 (heremafter referred to as the
“Contractor™). :

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2010, the Division of Commumty Based Care Services issued a public notice
for a Request For Proposal for "Guardlanshlp and Protectlve Services in New Hampshire" which cited the
following: ]
"Contracted services shall commence on July 1, 2;010 or on the Governor and Council approval date,
whichever is later, and shall continue until June 30 2011 Five renewals of one year each may be possible
at the Department's discretion”, and ;

i
t
i
i

WHEREAS, the Contractor was one of two select< d contractors, and
é
.
WHEREAS, pursuant to an Agreement approvéd% on June 9, 2010, the Contractor agreed to provide
certain services upon the terms and conditions specified{in the Agreement, in consideration of payment by the

Division of Community Based Care Services of certain sums:specified therein; and
o

WHEREAS, pursuant to paragraph 17 of the Agrecment the Agreement may be amended, waived, or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by Ehe parties thereto and only after the approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Counc11 of the State of New Hampshire;

3

H

WHEREAS, the Division of Community Based Carc Services and the Contractor have agreed to extend
the Agreement for one year in certain respects; j 5.

_NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foré:éoing and of the covenants and conditions contained in
the Agreement and set forth herein, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendments and Modifications of Agreement

The contract is hereby amended as follows:

By deleting, in subparagraph 1.7. of the General Provisions the date June 30, 2013 and substituting
therefore date June 30, 2014. z'

By de]etmg, in subparagraph 1.8. of the Gcnera] Prov1sxons the number $2,742,926.27 and substltutmg

therefore the number $3,833,288. ‘ ;

3
]

2. Amendment and Modification of Exhibit A, Scope of Work, Provisions Applicable to All Services

2.1.  Amend paragraph 1.1. by inserting “RSA 1@ 1-F:52” following “RSA 135-C:60.”

]

Contractor Initials: z m—
Date: 5'23' 'j

U



2.2.  Delete in sub-paragraph 1.2.2. the date August 1, 2011 and substituting therefore date August 1,
2014.

2.3.  Amend paragraph 1.4. by deleting the first lés{'ejntence of the paragraph and inserting:

The Contractor shall not accept or agree to provide services to any person under the Agreement
without the prior approval of the State through the Office of Client and Legal Services or the
Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services AduitTProtectrve Services Administrator or designee of the
Department. ; i

24. Amend paragraph 1.4.1. by msertmg or Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services” following “the
Office of Client and Legal Services.” :

2.5. Amend paragraph 14.1.1. by 1nsertmg or .Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services” following “the
Office of Client and Legal Services.” ; t

2,6, Amend paragraph 1.4.1.1. by deleting "and" after RSA 135-C:60 and inserting "and RSA 161-
F:52." after "RSA 171-A:10, II".

2.7. Amend paragraph 1.6. by deleting "Probate Court" and substituting "Circuit Court-Probate
Division". , ;

2.8.  Insert new paragraph 1.8. and renumber remarmng paragraphs 1.9.-1.13. The new paragraph 1.8. to

read as follows: f : :

: 1

1.8. The State agrees that the case management function regarding all referrals involving

Bureau of Elderly & Adult Sewrces clients will be supported by the BEAS Adult

Protection Social Workers and the Contractor agrees to work closely with the BEAS APS

Social Workers for a period of months to be determined by the level of need following a

referral. !

2.9. In the newly renumbered paragraph l.lC.,{ insert “or Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services”
following “the Office of Client and Legal Services”.

Amendment and Modification of Exhjbit A, Scope ofWor Description of Guardianshi

3.1. Amend paragraph 2.1. by deleting "Probate Court" and substituting "Circuit Court-Probate
Division".

32. Amend paragraph 2.1.7. by deleting "Probate Court" and substituting "Circuit Court-Probate
Division." i :

3.3.  Insert new paragraph 2.1.8. to read as follov%'

2.1.8. If guardian of the estate, being avarlable to make all decisions as required by RSA 464-
A:26

Amendment and Modification of Exhibit A, Scope of :"WorL Guardianship and Protection Services
f

4.1. Amend paragraph 3.2. by inserting “or Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services.” following “the
Office of Client and Legal Services”

4.2.  Amend paragraph 3.3. by inserting the followmg as an introductory phrase to the first sentence in
the paragraph:

‘ Contractor Initials: g S
| Date: _CA1>)



3.3.

For persons referred to Contractor by the Office of Client and Legal Services pursuant to
RSA 135-C:60 and RSA 171-A: 10 H

4.3.  Amend paragraph 3.3. by inserting "by the .fﬁce of Client and Legal Services," after "each new
case assigned by the Contractor" in the third } sentence of the paragraph.

44.  Amend paragraph 3.3. by deleting "a probate Court" and substituting "the Circuit Court-Probate
Division." (

4.5. Amend Paragraph 3.3. to read as follows: .

3.3.

The Contractor agrees to serve the cunent total of 678 persons receiving guardianship and
protection services plus any new persons referred in accordance with paragraphs 1.4 above.
However, the Contractor shall not be obligated to accept more than 710 cases during the
contract period. While the Bureau shall provide the Contractor with letters of approval for
each new case assigned to the Con ractor the Contractor may not bill for services until the
Contractor is actually appointed as |guard1an by the Circuit Court-Probate Division. In
addition payments under this contract constitute payment in full for guardianship over the
person services and the contractor >ha11 not accept any additional payments from the ward
or from other funds of the ward.

!
5 i

4.6.  Insert new paragraph 3.4. and renumber n]ext paragraph 3.5. The new paragraph 3.4. to read as

follows:

34.

Ly

.For persons referred to Contractor 'by the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services pursuant to

RSA 161-F:52, the Contractor agrees to provide guardlansth and protection services for
no more than forty-two (42) 1nd1v;duals at any point in time during the contract period.
While the Department shall prowde the Contractor with letters of approval for each new
case assigned to the Contractor by ;:he Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services, the Contractor
may not bill for services until the Contractor is actually appointed as guardlan by the
Circuit Court-Probate Division. ; !'

4/7.  Amend Paragraph 3.5. to read as follows:

3.5,

The Commencement date of this aéreement shall be July 1, 2013, or the date of Governor
and Council approval, whichever is{l4ter.

! {

i
I
.

I o
5. Amendments and Modifications of Exhibit B, Methods of Payment

b

5.1.  Amend Paragraph l. to read as follows: ,

1.

Subject to the ava11ab111ty of State funds, and in consideration for the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State shall pay the
Contractor a per diem per case rate approved by the Office of Client and Legal Services
for all BBH & BDS clients and th Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services for all BEAS
clients. However, regardless of thi number of persons served by the Contractor during
the program period, specified in paragraphs 3.1. and 3.2. of the General Provisions of this
Agreement, the State shall pay the;Contractor a minimum amount of $3,670,373 during
the program period. The total of* all payments authorized or actually made hereunder
shall not exceed the amount of $3, 833 288, the price limitation set forth in block 1.8. of
thé General Provisions. ,

1.1.  The per diem relmbursement rate for the provision of services to persons served
under this Agreement shall Ibe $3.81 for up to 710 clients whose guardianship
services are requested by the Bureaus of Behavioral Health and Developmental
Services; » !

% Contractor Initials: RPJ—

Date: 'K
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5.2

5.3.

54.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

The hourly reimbursement ratc for the provision of technical assistance to private
guardians shall be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of §1,500.

The hourly relmburscmcnt rate for the provision of training to area agency,
mental health and elderly and adult agency staff and probate court personnel shall
be $60.00, not to exceed thc |amount of §1,500.

The per diem relmbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the
person services or the promsmn of guardianship over the estate services to
persons served under this lsAgreement shall be $6.29 for up to 42 clients whose
guardianship services are requested by the Bureau of Eldcrly & Adult Services.
The State shall reimburse Contractor separately for services provided as guardian
over the person and guardlan over the estate.

For clients referred for guardxanshlp services by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services, the actual cost: pald by Contractor for expenses incurred in the
performance of Contractors duties under this Agreement including, but not
limited, to filing fees, borid’ costs and appraisal fees where no other source of
reimbursement exists, not to ‘exceed $5,000.00.

. . i .. . . L
Amend paragraph 2. by inserting " for thejprovision of services to clients whose guardianship
services are approved by the Bureaus of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services" after

"Payment to the Contractor".

Change Paragraph 2.1. to read as follows: =

2.1.  The State shall at the begmmng of the Agreement period make a payment of $158,045 the
estimated fee for service payment due to the Contractor for providing services for a
period of two months. This initial payment is the amount the State has determined is
necessary to initiate the services. | * ,

Change Paragraph 2.2. to read as follows: i

2.2, A monthly payment equal to $79, 023 will be made to the Contractor at the beginning of
September and continuing through the end of the agreement or until the maximum amount
of the contract has been reached. The per diem rate will be extended to the last day of the
month following the month in which the client dies or for whom the
guardianship/protection service is términated. '

Change Sub-paragraph 2.4 ¢. to read as follovfrs:

2.4 e. Calculation of the total authorized payment due for the service quarter in accordance with
2.3. above:

The first "Quarterly Payment Computatlon and Authorization, Office of Public Guardian"
report shall be submitted by no later than October 5, 2013 and the final report by July 10,
2014. Failure to submit such reports shall constitute an Event of Default.

Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.1. to read as follows

2.5.1. The Contractor shall notify the State in its October "Quarterly Payment and Computation
Report, Office of Public Guardlan"‘m the event that payment for services for the months
of July through September is less than $893,656, whereupon the State shall issue a
supplemental check for the dlfference between the amount paid to the Contractor and

$893,656.

Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.2 to read as follci\is:

—
Contractor Initials: PJ A
Date:



2.5.2. The Contractor shall notify the State in its January "Quarterly Payment and Computation
Report, Office of Public Guardlan"' in the event that payment for services for the months
of July through December is less than 31,787,312, whereupon the State shall issue a
supplemental check for the dlfference between the amount paid to the Contractor and
$1,787,312. i

5.8.  Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.3. to read as folloivs‘

2.5.3. The Contractor shall notify the State in its April "Quarterly Payment and Computation
Report, Office of Public Guardian” in the event that payment for services for the months
of July through March is less than $2,680,967, whereupon the State shall issue a
supplemental check for the dxfference between the amount paid to the Contractor and
$2,680,967. i

i

5.9. Insert new paragraphs 3. and 3.1. - 3.3. and renumber remaining paragraphs 4. - 5. The new
paragraphs 3. and 3.1. - 3.3 toread as fOllOWS

3. Payment to the Contractor for the prowsmn of services to clients whose guardianship
services are requested by the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services will be made on a
monthly basis subject to the followlng conditions:

31. The Contractor shall Sl.lbl!mt invoices on a monthly basis in accordance with
procedures and instructions established by the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services
and prov1ded to the Conti'actor The Contractor shall submit with the monthly
invoice a list of clients se}ved during the month for which the invoice is being
submitted. The Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services shall pay the Contractor by
multiplying the per diem gate times the total number of days for each service
provided during the month 'fol’ each eligible client under this Agreement.

3.2.  Invoices shall be due by the 15" of the month following the month in which
services are provided. !

3.3.  The Contractor shall revie\fﬂtthe BEAS cases monthly and move individuals to a
different funding mechani§m, if possible, to allow more openings for additional
referrals. In all cases wherejalternate funding becomes available, the Contractor
shall transfer the ward from BEAS funded slot within sixty (60) days.

B |

6.0.  Change Paragraph 5. to read as follows:

5. This contract is funded by the New f;H;ampshire General Fund as follows:

Current - Increase Revised
Modified ( ! (Decrease) _ Modified
Budget - ! Amount Budget
f
NH General Fund: $2,742, 926 27 $1,090,361.73 $3,833,288

Effective Date of Amendment: The effective date of this action is July 1, 2013, or the date of Governor
and Council approval, whichever is later.

.

- i
Continuance of Agreement: Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of
the Agreement, the Agreement and the obligation oflthe parties hereunder shall remain in full force and

effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth therein.
Contractor [nitials: p:)_
Date: &« N
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set thelr hands as of the day and year written above.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE .
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BYWM - /ée—ééfm-i

Nancy L. Rdllins, Associate Commissioner
l

OFFICE OFrPUBLIC GUARDIAN
i r

By:

typ . name & title of person from OPG here)
% ; P JoaN, Trssuns2—

{

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Mm{{ ‘[ Mﬂd(.
The foregomg instrument was acknowledged before e this é‘fél day of 2013, by
RoateZ P Soon - = 3

S ‘ Signature i |

_. [ Y

ey Hu-,‘.
7 !

Print Name: |

Ga) - -
(Ntary-Public) Title: Notary Public/fusticcof thePeace
I Commission},Expircs:
‘ . MARY K. RAULSTON, Notary Public
i My Commission Expires July 13; 2016
Approved as to form, execution, and substance: .

!
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
N i'
By: o BN~
Jeanne P. Herrick
Attc rney

Date: 4‘ ./gn-c, 2012

i
v

i
i
i
{
i
i
¥
¥
i

Contractor Initials: g?j

Date:
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

L, 5D5 AN J‘%?( ‘ ., do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected Clerk of the Office of Public C;hi‘_ardian, Inc. (the “Corporation”).

2, The following are true copies of two resolutions duly, adopted ata meetmg of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation duly held on Moy A 3 .

RESOLVED: That this corporation enter mto a contract with the State of New
Hampshire, acting through the Division éf Commumty Based Care Services,
concerning the following matter: .

Guardianship Program.

li
RESOLVED: That the 1T CASLICY” hereby is authorized on
behalf of this corporation to enter into éald contract with the State of New
Hampshire and to execute any and alli documents agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revxswds’ or modifications hereto as may be

necessary, desirable or appropriate. o

Contractor Initials: @J
Date: 5,2# J 3
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3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended (i)r revoked and remain in full force and effect as of

a4 2013 9
0 ¥ o

4. @ OCOVM/ EYOb \\ V] is the duly el';eéted lyeaxv ey of this Corporation.

Clc%k’;s Signature
H

3
H
¢
H

STATE OF NEW HAMPziIIRE P
County of : k

1
t

]
i

|
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged beforc;rr;xe this ;_)/f% day of May, 2013, by

‘\Suéﬁm 1/’0’)(

|
|

Clerk

(Seal) e Namet | M @rot I TRam\ston
(Notary Public) - Title: Notary Public/Justicgbfthe-Peace
=TI - : MARY K. RAULSTON, Notary Public
R $ My Commission Expires July 13,2016

AR Commission [Expires:
; P E
|

t

_ , o
Approved as to form, execution, and substance. :

OFFICE OF m ATTORNEY GENERAL

By:

Jeanne P. Herrick, Attorney

i
Date: |
i

1

Contractor Initials: 3
Date: Il 13
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NH Department of HeaItI;t fand Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FhEE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General‘Prowsrons agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D;
41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foillowing Certification:

H K

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIy]DUALS

3
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVIC!;ES: - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS '
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations lmplementlng Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtltle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January
31, 1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register
{pages 21681-21691), and require certification by grantees {and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee {and by inference, sub -grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates
for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below
is a material representation of fact upon which rehance is placed when the agency awards the grant.
False certification or violation of the certification »shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wude suspension or debarment. Contractors using

this form should send it to: P

i
Commissioner
NH Department of Health. and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301 6505

{A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue ;to provide a drug-free workplace by:

{a) Publishing a statement notifying employees 'that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workptace and specifying the actions that w1|| be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition; i

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awaﬁeness program to inform employees about
{1) The dangers of drug abuse in thé workplace;
{2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
{3) Any available drug counsellng, rehabilitation, and employee assistance
) programs; and . r
{4) The penalties that may be rmpos,ed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;

. gPJ

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations s Contractor Initials:
Standard Exhibit D — Centification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Reguitements I! ’ } 3
January 2009 i L Date; S :

i
H
!

Page 1 of 2



Page_ 2 _of Il

(c) Making it a requirement that each emponee to be engaged in the performance of the
grant be given a copy of the statement requnred by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition
of employment under the grant, the employee will

(nm Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writirig: of his or her conviction for a violation of a
criminal drug statute occurrmg m the workplace no later than five calendar days
after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
-subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position
title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was

"~ working, uniess the Federal agency has designated a central point-for the receipt of
such notices. Notice shall include the |dent|flcat|on number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, wnthln 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d}(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted
(1) Taking appropriate personnel, actlon against such an employee, up to and
including termination, con5|stent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973, as amended; or i
(2) Requiring such employee to part:cnpate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance

or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or
local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to contmue' to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b}, (c), (d) (e), and (f).

The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work

‘ done in connection with the specific grant. S

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stéte, zip code) (list each location)

o
Check [] if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Office of Public Guardian From: 7/;1 ;2013 To: 6/30/2014

(Contractor Name} (Period Covered by this Cc}rit'ification)

Keco P Jornd . Toesanen

(Name & Title of Authorized Contractor Representative)

PN 5.24.3

(Cotor Representative Signature) N l (Date)
i

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations ; Contractor Initials: pm—.
Standard Exhibit D - Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Reqmrements 4 12
January 2009 ; Date: 5.2
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NH Department of Health a:nd Human Services

STANDARD E)j(HIBIT E

CERTIFICATION REGA'RiDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General’ Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide .Gu:dance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’ s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certnzlcatlon

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - {'JONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS i
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS .

Programs {indicate applicable program covered):

*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A

*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D

*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX

*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI .
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV ‘

Contract Period: 07-01-13 through 06-30-14

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowleczige and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wiAIl':be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence a:nﬁofﬁcer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or aniemployee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, contmua'tlon renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated fund$ have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or ér‘hployee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and subrr{n Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attacﬁe‘id and identified as Standard Exhibit E-.)

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts,.s,iub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients sh"all certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon" which reliance was piaced when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certlflcat'lo'n is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each
such failure.

2&&? Joows |, Teessunm. %PW

{Contractor Representative Signature) ' {Author @ntractor Representative Name & Titie)

Office of Public Guardian 5 ‘l’-‘ -1 3

{Contractor Name) {Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations : Contractor Initials: '2') ‘T
Standard Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying ' 5 )_,7( 13
January 2008 ; Date: el A
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NH Department of Healthi zi'and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING D'lEBARMENT; SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS
1

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Géneral Provisions agrees to comply with the

prOVlSlonS

of Executive Office of the President, Executlve Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76

regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Respon:;:lblllty Matters, and further agrees to have the
Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sectlons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification: !

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

v

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospectlve primary participant is

providing the certification set out below.: |
t

The inability of a person to provide the certlflcauon required below will not necessarily
result in denial of participation in this covqred transaction. If necessary, the prospective
participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The
certification or explanation will be consndered in connection with the NH Department of
Health and Human Services’ (DHHS} [determination whether to enter into this
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a
certification or an explanation shall dlsq'uallfy such person from partucnpatlon in this
transaction. !

(
The certification in this clause is a materlal representation of fact upon which reliance
was placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later

" determined that the prospective primary [participant knowingly rendered an erroneous ‘

certification, in addition to other remedi:ef available to the Federal Government, DHHS
may terminate this transaction for cause ';olr default.

The prospective primary participant shall érovide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective
primary participant learns that its certlfixcatlon was erroneous when submitted or has
become erroneous by reason of changed-cxrcumstances

The terms “covered transaction,” "debarred ¥ *suspended,” ”mehglble," "lower tier
covered transaction,” “participant,” perso‘_n," “primary covered transaction,” “principal,”
"proposal,” and "voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out
in the Definitions and Coverage sectlons of the rules implementing Executive Order
12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached’ definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that,
should the proposed covered transactlon&be entered into, it shail not knowingly enter
into any lower tier covered transactiori with a person who is debarred, suspended,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction,

unless authorized | by DHHS.
i -

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor [nitials: RQ’)—

Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other ResponSIblllty Matters 5 21, ' b
Date: er

January 2009
Page 1 of 3

i
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The prospective primary participant furthe;r agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covere'd Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactlons and in all solicitations for lower tier
covered transactions. ‘

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transactlon that it is not debarred, suspended,
ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that
the certification is erroneous. A pamcnpant may decide the method and frequency by
which it determines the eligibility of its fprmcnpals Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the Nonprocurement Lis:t (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a
system of records in order to render m,good faith the certification required by this
clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that
which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business
dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a
participant in a covered transaction knowmgly enters into a lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is suspended debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, ln addition to other remedies available to the
Federal government, DHHS may termmate.thls transaction for cause or default.

9
P

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS S

m

The prospective primary participant certlfles to the best of its knowledge and belief, that
it and its principals: '

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from covered: transactions by any Federal department or.
agency; : : t

(b} have not within a three-year period pre"ceding this proposal {(contract) been convicted
of or had a civil judgment rendered t'against them for commission of fraud or a
criminal offense in connection with obtalnlng, attempting to obtain, or performing a
public (Federal, State or local) transac|t|on or a contract under a public transaction;
violation of Federal or State antitrust 'statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft,
forgery, bribery, falsification or destructlon of records, making false statements, or
receiving stolen property;

{c) are not presently indicted for otherWIse criminally - or civilly charged by a
governmental entity (Federal, State or{local) with commission of any of the offenses
enumerated in paragraph {I)(b) of this certlflcatlon and

(d) have not within a three-year period: precedlng this application/proposal had one or

more public transactions {Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.
I

{2) Where the prospective primary participant Es unable to certify to any of the statements in
this certification, such prospective partuc:pant shall attach an explanation to this
.proposal {contract). : =
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:_ERJ_____
Standard Exhibit F —-
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsubnhty Matters S, 7)”‘- 13
January 2009 Date:

Page 2 of 3
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal {(contract), the prospective lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certlfles to the best of its knowledge and belief
that it and its principals: i

(a) are not presently debarred, sgsf"pended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded ifrom participation in this transaction by any
federal department or agency. { :

(b} where the prospective lower tier jparticipant is unable to certify to any of the
above, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
{contract). B

The prospective lower tier participant furthérlagrees by submitting this proposal (contract)
that it will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension,
Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lc'ower Tier Covered Transactions,” without
modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier

covered transactions.

(Co ractor Representative Signature) (Au,tliaonzed Contractor Representative Name & Title)

g2y

Office of Public Guardian

(Contractor Name) {Datb)

{
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations : Contractor Initials: R‘ J
Standard Exhibit F -
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsnblmy Matters 5.2_\.' g3
January 2009 Date:

Page 3 of 3



Page 7of 16
NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION&FIEGARDING

THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE
I

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Sections I1 11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to
execute the following certification: :

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contr;act) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
- efforts to comply with all applicable prov:s:ons of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990. :
ac r Representative Signature) (Authquzed Contractor Representatxve Name & Title)
o OV
Office of Public Guardian : 5 L\I 3
{Contractor Name) (Date) |
!
|
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations : Contractor Initials:_E'P_ﬂ__
Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Dlsabxlmes Act 5. Z"I‘ S
January 2009 i Date:




NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FI EATA} COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and asﬁocrated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.

If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reportmg requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Informanon) the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reportmg requirements:

1) Name of entity |
2) Amount of award i
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source

6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the fun(ilmg action

7) Location of the entity o

+
'

8) Principle place of performance :
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues’ are from the Federal government, and those
' revenues are greater than $25M a.nnually, and
b. Compensation information is not already{ available through reporting to the SEC. -

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which

the award or award amcndmcnt is made. ,

f’
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Pfovisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency /Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and }%'xiecutive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification: "

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed mfoxmanon as outlined above to the NH
Departinent of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. -

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
- . i

CFECE o B Copidinn | D213

(Contractor Name) (Date) ‘

Contractor initials: R?J-
Date: _ S 24>
Page# {5 of Page # [@
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NH Department of Heal’th:F é!md Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H
i

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIR'(%NMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE
i
i
i
Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco ’Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children-Act of
1994 {Act), requires that smoking not be permltted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or
leased or contracted for by an entity and used routlnely or regularly for the provision of health, day
care, education, or library services to children underithe age of 18, if the services are funded by
Federal programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract,
loan, or loan guarantee. The law does not appl‘y to children’s services provided in private
residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medlcald funds, and portions of facilities used for
inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in
the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up tfo $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an
administrative compliance order on the responsible enﬁity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the G'e‘neral Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Sectlong ﬂ 11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to

execute the following certification: :
¥

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Con‘tractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children
Act of 1994, f i

@P Joein | Treasuper

(Authonzed Contractor Répresentatlve Name & Title)

Office of Public Guardian

|

1
(Contractor Name) " {Date)

i

i

j
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations f Contractor initials: EPJ
Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke s 2_4 15

January 2009 i Date:
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NH Department of Healtfhg'and Human Services

STANDARD

l

XHIBIT 1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIA

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of

TE AGREEMENT

fhe General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountablhty Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identxﬁable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable ta’) business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or

have access to protected health information under

thllS Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the

State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

;1
He term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.
I

b

“Business Associate” has the meaning given _Sé‘»uch term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

l.

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of T1tle 45, Code of

egf}neaning as the term “designated record set” in 45

|

eaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR

eimcaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
f
l

n' ‘Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
1can Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

ablhty and Accountablhty Act of 1996, Public Law
arnd Security of Individually Identifiable Health

1s the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501

;’personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
l

(8] Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as
13400.

b.
Federal Regulations.

c.
Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set ” shall have the sam
CFR Section 164.501.

_e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same n

Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the sam
CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Informatio
TitleXTII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the Ameri

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Port;
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164. !

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning
and shall include a person who qualifies as ia
Section 164. SOl(g)

j-

“anacy Rule” shall mean the Standards’ for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health

Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, i promulgated under HIPAA by the United States

Department of Health and Human Services. |

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 1 of 6

i

BT

Contractor Initials:,

G.2Y.13

Date:
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, i
“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, llrmted to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on bebalf of Covelred Entity.
} |

“Required by Law” shall have the same meamng as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. Pl

“Secretary " shall mean the Secretary of the D:ei')artment of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee. i

i ¥

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” mea_ns protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protef"t'ed health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals énd is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by Lhe Amencan National Standards Institute.

deﬁned herein shall have the meaning established
1ended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise
" under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as an

(.
F

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Infc:matlon.

@

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to pl'(l)VldC the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, 'namtam or transmit PHI in any manner that would

constitute a violation of the Privacy and Secuaty Rule.
|

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and ¢
1. As required by law, pursuant to t!
1L For data aggregation purposes for

i
i

dnnmstratmn of the Business Associate;
1e terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or

the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is perrmtted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prtor to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PI—H will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the urpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party fo! notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402f0f any breaches of the conﬁdentlahty of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach
‘ |

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busmcss Associate shall refrain from disclosing the

PHI unti]l Covered Entity has exhausted all remedles
Contractor Initials: g :_S

[
5.2Y.1%

Standard Exhibit { — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009

Page 2 0of 6 Date:
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Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 3 of 6

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business As
by additional restrictions over and above thos
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule,

Page 11 of 16

sociate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
eiuses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
the Business Associate shall be bound by such

additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards

Obligations and Activities of Business Asso ‘

I
cmte

Business Associate shall report to the design

nad Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,

any use or disclosure of PHI in violation o
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance
13402.

f. the Agreement, including any security incident
w1th the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sectlons of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part {,iSec. 13401 and Sec.13404.
|

Business Associate shall make available all ‘of its internal policies and procedures, books and

records relating to the use and disclosure ofl

PHI received from, or created or received by the

Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entlty to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its bu

nless associates that receive, use or have access to

d adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on

PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing
the use and disclosure of PHI contained hereir

), }mcludmg the duty to return or destroy the PHI as

provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herem} IThe Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s Lbusmess associate agreements with Contractor’s

intended business associates, who will be rec

1‘vmg PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights

of enforcement and indemnification from sdlch business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected

health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of
Associate shall make available during normsz
agreements, policies and procedures relating
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered En:
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a D
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual
Section 164.524.

af; written request from Covered Entity, Business
1liﬁbusiness hours at its offices all records, books,
to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
tity to determine Business Associate’s compliance

~
a! written request from Covered Entity, Business

esxgnated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
ﬁ) order to meet the requxrements under 45 CFR

Within ten (10) business days of rece1v1ng la written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an mdlv’ldual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI av’axlable to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obhgatlons under 45 CFR

Section 164.526.

ot e bt e e

Contractor Initials: m
5.24.3

Date:
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Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Assoclate Agreement ) Contractor Initials:

Page 12 of 16

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entlty to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accorda nce with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrltten request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Busmess Assomate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may requxre to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordanlce with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Assoc1alie shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entlty ;shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding] the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Assocu}te to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as SpeClﬁCd by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the A eement to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes th?.t ‘make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHL! If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or;a‘ll PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Assocxa;te of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the

extent that such change or limitation may affect Busmess Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Busmess Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by 1n€lhvxduals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall prompfly notify Busmess Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

% 2X)

September 2009 !
Page 4 of 6 P Date: 5 L"’- g
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Termination for Cause

1
i
{
.
i
i

In addition to standard provision #10 of thls Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entlty s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth l}erem as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or proYlde an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified: by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines

that neither termination nor cure is fea51b]e Covered Entity shall report the violation to the
Secretary. i :
Miscellaneous b

P
i
P

Definitions and Regglatog References. All ter!ms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Prlvacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in th‘e ‘Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule nlleans the Section as in effect or as amended.

‘ .
Amendment. Covered Entity and Business ASSocmte agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as xs necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Prlvacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law. i

: |
Data Qwnership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with

respect to the PHI provided by or created on bc’:half of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any amb;gulty in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the anacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this F)éhlblt I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such mvahdlly‘ shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condmon to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable. :

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regax{iing the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and; standard contract provision #13, shall survive the

termination of the Agreement. i

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement . ' Contractor Initials: P«PJ
September 2009 i
i 5‘9’4\ ] 3

Page 50f 6 i Date:
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IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have dul:y executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Community Based Care Services

Office of Public Guardian

The State Agency Name

%Xﬂ%i

Name of the Contractor

Signature of Authofized Representative

Nancy L. Rollins

re of Authorized Representative

B)éea— P Q;_Bm

Name of Authorized Representative

Associate Commissioner

Name of Authorized Representative

Trreasupee_

Title of Authorized Representative

3/ Moy LO/3

Title of Authorized Representative

52413

Date [/ i

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 6 of 6
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Date -

Contractor Initials: R’ )
Date:, 5 7—\} '3




NH Department of Healtih iand Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your cntity is: ngga%‘j N-J+

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and5(2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants! subgrants and/or cooperative agreements?

\/ NO .'YES

If the answer to #2 abévfe is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2-above is YES f)lease answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensatlon of the executives in your business -
or organization through periodic reports filed under sechon 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 abové is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, p’}ease answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compenséted officers in your business or
organization are as follows: :

H

Amount:

Name:

Name: _ . Amount:
Name: _ | i . Amounf:___
Name: _ ‘ ! Amount:
Name: | i Amount:

Contractor initials: &‘ G
Date: _ 5-24 -2
Page# [le ofPage# l(o
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BUREAU OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner
105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Diane Langley 603-271-5000 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5000 . ,‘;\:_
Director Fax: 603-271-5058 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 ([ \ (@ “‘i qle
Sheri Rockburn
Director
May 28, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, to
amend an agreement, Purchase Order number 1009016, with the Office of Public Guardian (vendor code
166528), 2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400, Concord, New Hampshire 03301, to provide public guardianship
services by increasing the price limitation by $1,103,319.00 from $3,833,288.00 to an amount not to exceed
$4,936,607.00 and extending the completion date to June 30, 2015, effective July 1, 2014, or date of
Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. This agreement was originally approved by Governor
and Council on June 9, 2010, item number 106, and subsequently amended on June 8, 2011, item number
126, and June 20, 2012, item number 80, and on June 19, 2013, item number 112. Funds are available in the

following accounts in State Fiscal Year 2015: . q / 70 (79/\2/ i Fu rl) / fﬂ/{ Fe d\’f‘t/f chls

05-95-92-920010-7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS:BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Fiscal Class/Object Class Title Current Increase Revised

2011 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $ 878,656.80 $% 0.00 $ 878,656.80
2012 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $ 912,797.29 $ 0.00 $ 912,797.29
2013 102-500731  Contracts for Program Services $ 95147218 % 0.00 $ 951,472.18
2014 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $ 990,361.73 $ 0.00 $ 990,361.73
2015 102-500731  Contracts for Program Services 3 0.00  $1.003,319.00  $1.003.319.00

Sub-total  $3,733,288.00  $1,003,319.00  $4,736,607.00

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS:ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Fiscal Class/Qbject Class Title Current Increase Revised
2014 102-500734 Contracts for Program Services $ 100,000.00 $ 0.00 $ 100,000.00
2015 102-500734 Contracts for Program Services A 0.00 $ 100.000.00 $ 100,000.00

Sub-total  §_100,000.00  §..100,000.00  $ 200,000.00
Total  $3,833,288.00  $1,103,319.00  $4,936,607.00

2. Contingent upon approval of Requested Action #1, authorize an advance payment up to a maximum of
$160,112.99 of the contract price limitation.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

May 28,2014
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to extend an agreement with the Office of Public Guardian to provide
guardianship and protection services, on a statewide basis, to persons with mental illness, developmental
impairments and incapacitated adults who are abused, neglected or exploited whose incapacities leave them at
risk of substantial harm because of their inability to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to
manage their personal affairs. These services are needed to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard
incapacitated persons who are abused, neglected or exploited, in state institutions as well as in community mental
health and developmental service programs. It also carries out the requirements of RSA 135-C: 60, RSA 171-A:
10, I and RSA 161-F:52. The Office of Public Guardian pursuant to RSA 547-B: 6 has been designated by the
New Hampshire Supreme Court as an approved organization for the purpose of providing guardianship and
protection services pursuant to RSA 464-A. This agreement will provide for guardianship services for up to 767
cases during the agreement period. The emphasis in providing such services will be to ensure that the
guardianships maintained and sought will be limited in accordance with the standards embodied in RSA 464-A.

The advance payment shall allow the Office of Public Guardian to meet its operating obligations while
providing services during the initial two months of this agreement.

_ Using a public notice posted on the Department of Health and Human Services website on February 22,

2010, as RFP Number 11-DCBCS-GPS-01, the Division of Community Based Care Services requested proposals
for providing public guardianship services in the State. Five renewals of one year each are possible at the
Department’s discretion. The Office of Public Guardian responded by submitting a proposal to provide public
guardianship services to people with a mental illness, or a developmental disability who are eligible for State-
funded services. The Office of Public Guardian was one of two agencies to apply to provide public guardianship
services.

A competitive review process was utilized to evaluate all proposals submitted by the deadline. Participants
in the review process included Department staff from the Bureau of Behavioral Health, the Bureau of
Developmental Services, and the Office of Client and Legal Services. This process involved an assessment of the
proposal submitted including an evaluation of scope of work, bidder background and experience, and the cost
proposal. Both proposals submitted for fiscal year 2011 scored over the required minimum.

Based on a favorable review of the above by the review team and because the Office of Public Guardian has
in previous agreements amply demonstrated its ability to provide high-level public guardianship services to
clients and the community served, the Division of Community Based Care Services requests this agreement be
extended for one year to allow the Office of Public Guardian to continue providing services. This will serve as
the fourth renewal allowed under this contract.

With respect to the Agreement to purchase guardianship and protection services for incapacitated adults
who are abused, neglected or exploited, an application for funding was released to the Office of Public Guardian
on March 22, 2013. The application was reviewed and the funding and number of slots were negotiated. Since
there are only two public guardianship agencies that have been approved by the New Hampshire Supreme Court,
there were no other agencies seeking approval, and since the Department contracts with both of these agencies, a
Request for Proposals would not be productive or necessary.

In State Fiscal Year 2015 this agreement will serve up to 752 cases. Based upon previous experience, it is
anticipated that there will be a need for this agency to assume this amount of cases from the Bureau of Behavioral
Health, or the Bureau of Developmental Services this fiscal year. These additional slots will be filled over the

course of the year.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
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This agreement also includes a line item for mentoring services and training. Mentoring services are
provided to family members who are willing to serve as guardian but who require a period of support. Providing
this support will obviate need for a public guardian in these cases and will thereby save the State from paying the

cost of a permanent public guardianship.

Should Governor and Council determine not to approve this request the Division of Community Based Care
Services would be out of compliance with the requirements of RSA 135-C: 60, RSA 171-A: 10, 1], and RSA 161-
F:52 and persons with mental illness, developmental impairments and incapacitated adults who are abused,
neglected or exploited, whose incapacities leave them at risk of substantial harm -because of their inability to
provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs would be harmed.

Area served: statewide.

Source of funds: 91% General Funds and 9% Federal Funds, Social Services Block Grant.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds shall not be requested to

support these programs.
Respectfully submitted,

Lot —

Shen L. Rockbum
Director

Approved by: D m

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

RSP/pbr/sl

Attachments

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This Amendment to Agreement (hereinafter called the “Amendment”), dated this girA day of May, 2014, between
the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the Division of Community Based Care Services, and Office of
Public Guardian, a nonprofit organization organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire with a place of
business at 2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400, Concord, New Hampshire 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
“Contractor”).

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2010, the Division of Community Based Care Services issued a public notice
for a Request For Proposal for "Guardianship and Protective Services in New Hampshire" which cited the
following: :

"Contracted services shall commence on July 1, 2010, or on the Governor and Council approval date,
whichever is later, and shall continue until June 30, 2011. Five renewals of one year each may be possible
at the Department's discretion", and

WHEREAS, the Contractor was one of two selected contractors, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Agreement approved on June 9, 2010, the Contractor agreed to provide
certain services upon the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement, in consideration of payment by the
Division of Community Based Care Services of certain sums specified therein; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Paragraph 17. of the Agreement, the Agreement may be amended, waived, or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties thereto and only after the approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State of New Hampshire;

WHEREAS, the Division of Community Based Care Services and the Contractor have agreed to extend
the Agreement for one year in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions contained in
the Agreement and set forth herein, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

1 Amendments and Modifications of Agreement

The contract is hereby amended as follows:

1.1. By deleting, in subparagraph 1.7. of the General Provisions the date June 30, 2014 and substituting
therefore date June 30, 2015.

1.2.  Bydeleting, in subparagraph 1.8. of the General Provisions the number $3,833,288 and substituting
therefore the number $4,936,607.00.

Contractor Initials: M

Date:



Amendment and Modification of Exhibit A, Scope of Work, Provisions Applicable to All Services

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

Delete in sub-paragraph 1.2.2. the datc August 1, 2014 and substitute the date August 1, 2015.

Insert new Paragraph 1.5.1. to read as follows:

1.5.1.

In the instance of a ward who is out of the State of New Hampshire for an extended
period of time and it would not be feasible for the guardian to see the ward face-to-face
on the basis outline in sub-paragraph 1.5 above, guardian shall attempt to have a video
conference with the ward on the above-noted basis. If the technology for a video

" conference is not available, the guardian shall at least have telephone contact with the

ward on the above-noted basis.

Insert new Paragraph 1.5.2. to read as follows:

1.5.2.

In the instance of a ward who is aggressive to the point of physical harm to the guardian,
the face-to-face visits required in sub-paragraph 1.5. above may be suspended until an
alternative plan can be developed for the guardian to meet with the ward while
maintaining personal safety. '

Amendment and Modification of Exhibit A, Scope of Work, Guardianship and Protection Services

3.1.

3.2

Amend Paragraph 3.3. to read as follows:

3.3.

For persons referred to Contractor by the Office of Client and Legal Services pursuant to
RSA 136-C:60 and RSA 171-A:10, II the Contractor agrees to serve the current total of
664 persons receiving guardianship and protection services, plus 8 pending cases, plus -
any new persons referred in accordance with paragraph 1.4. above. However, the
Contractor shall not be obligated to accept more than 710 cases during the contract
period. The Department shall provide the Contractor with letters of approval for each
new case assigned to the Contractor by the Office of Client and Legal Services.

Amend Paragraph 3.5. to read as follows:

3.5.

The Commencement Date of this Agreement shall be July 1, 2014, or the date of Governor
and Council approval, whichever is later.

Amendments and Modifications of Exhibit B, Methods of Payment

4.1.

Amend Paragraph 1. to read as follows:

1.

Subject to the availability of State funds, and in consideration for the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State shall pay the
Contractor a per diem per case rate approved by the Office of Client and Legal Services
for all BBH & BDS clients and the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services for all BEAS
clients. However, regardless of the number of persons served by the Contractor during
the program period, specified in paragraphs 3.1. and 3.2. of the General Provisions of this
Agreement, the State shall pay the Contractor a minimum amount of $4,726,801.20
during the program period. The total of all payments authorized or actually made
hereunder shall not exceed the amount of $4,936,607.00, the Price Limitation set forth in
block 1.8. of the General Provisions.

Contractor Initials: .
Date:



4.2,

4.3.

44.

L1.  The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of services to persons served
under this Agreement shall be $3.86 for up to 710 clients whose guardianship
services are requested by the Bureaus of Behavioral Health, and Developmental
Services;

1.2.  The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of technical assistance to private
guardians shall be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of $1,500.

1.3.  The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training to area agency,
mental health and cldcrly and adult agency staff and probate court personnel shall
be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of $1,500.

1.4.  The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the
person services or the provision of guardianship over the estate services to
persons served under this Agreement shall be $6.29 for up to 42 clients whose
guardianship services are requested by the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services.
The State shall reimburse Contractor separately for services provided as guardian
over the person and guardian over the estate.

1.5.  For clients referred for guardianship services by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services, the actual cost paid by Contractor for expenses incurred in the
performance of Contractors duties under this Agreement including, but not
limited, to filing fees, bond costs and appraisal fees where no other source of
reimbursement exists, not to exceed $5,000.00.

Change Paragraph 2.1. to read as follows:

2.1.  The State shall at the beginning of the Agreement period make a payment of $160,112.99
the estimated fee for service payment due to the Contractor for providing services for a
period of two months. This initial payment is the amount the State has determined is
necessary to initiate the services.

Change Paragraph 2.2. to read as follows:

2.2, A monthly payment equal to $80,056.50 will be made to the Contractor at the beginning of
September and continuing through the end of the agreement or until the maximum amount
of the contract has been reached. The per diem rate will be extended to the last day of the
month following the month in which the client dies or for whom the guardianship/
protection service is terminated.

Change Sub-paragraph 2.4. e. to read as follows:

2.4. e. Calculation of the total authorized payment due for the service quarter in accordance with
2.3. above:

The first "Quarterly Payment Computation and Authorization, Office of Public Guardian"

report shall be submitted by no later than October 5, 2014 and the final report by July 10,
2015. Failure to submit such reports shall constitute an Event of Default.

Contractor Initials:
Date: &£



4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.1. to read as follows:

2.5.1.

The Contractor shall notify the State in its October "Quarterly Payment and Computation
Report, Office of Public Guardian" in the event that payment for services for the months
of July through September is less than $1,133,825.49, whereupon the State shall issue a
supplemental check for the difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and
$1,133,825.49.

Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.2 to read as follows:

2.5.2,

The Contractor shall notify the State in its January "Quarterly Payment and Computation
Report, Office of Public Guardian" in the event that payment for services for the months
of July through December is less than $2,267,650.97, whereupon the State shall issue a
supplemental check for the difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and
$2,267,650.97.

Change Sub-paragraph 2.5.3. to read as follows:

2.53.

The Contractor shall notify the State in its April "Quarterly Payment and Computation
Report, Office of Public Guardian” in the event that payment for services for the months
of July through March is less than $3,401,475.46, whereupon the State shall issue a
supplemental check for the difference between the amount paid to the Contractor and
$3,401,475.46. '

Change Paragraph 5. to read as follows:

5.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund as follows:

Current Increase Revised
Modified (Decrease) Modified
Budget Amount Budget

NH General Fund: $3,833,288.00 $1,103,319.00 $4,936,607.00

Effective Date of Amendment: The Effective Date of this action is July 1, 2014, or the date of Governor

and Council approval, whichever is later.

Continuance of Agreement: vExccpt as specifically amended-and modified by the terms and conditions of

the Agreement, the Agreement and the obligation of the parties hereunder shall remain in full force and
effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth therein.

Date:

Contractor Initials:M



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year written above.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

S

<SHeri L. RocKburn, Director

OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

vy i Fo

(type name & title of person from OPG here)

P/\esm&—n%— of Shae Boar

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Y imA

rd
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this &3 day of May, 2014, by
SUSam ) .

\’MWC’ Qaulvxu.-—

Signa
z ancdlgﬁavb/\éﬂ

(Seal) Print Name:

(Notary Public) Title: Notary Public/
Commission Expires:

YC: , Notary Public
My Commission Expires October 26, 2016

Approved as to form, execution, and substance:
OF17E OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1/( K/V]

Date: S /Z 29//”,7

Contractor Initials:
Date: /



State of Nefo Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that OFFICE OIF PUBLIC GUARDIAN is a New Hampshire nonprolit corporation
formed July 14, 1983. 1 further certily that it is in good standing as far as this oflice is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOL, I hereto
sel my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New lHampshire,
this 10" day of April A.D. 2014

Z, Bk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, @OLC)\LZ 4 ? JO bl\ V1 , do hereby certify that;

1. I am the duly elected €terk of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (the “‘Corporation”).
“Treasurev
2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation duly held on Mo.xj 23 20id
t j

RESOLVED: That this corporation enter into a contract with the State of New
Hampshire, acting through the Division of Community Based Care Services,
concerning the following matter:

Guardianship Program.

RESOLVED: That the tresdeut of Board  hereby is authorized on
behalf of this corporation to enter into said contract with the State of New
Hampshire and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications hereto as may be
necessary, desirable or appropriate.

Contractor Initials;

2 Z o



3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and effect as of

Maw, 29 2014
J

4, 505&% ‘FO’)( is the duly elected ?re‘a\c\,ud Crl[; &J«WJ of this Corporation.

?%? M T

s Signature
ao( (8

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of _ MexvimieK.

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this &Elm day of May, 2014, by

@o%f? Jobi "\
Name of Clerk—
Treasuprct

| . Shhe
1gnature ;
(Seal) - Print Name: Maru K %M[S‘b\/)

(Notary Public) Title: Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
MARY K. RAULSTON, Notary Public
My Commission Expires July 13, 2016

Commission Expires:

Approved as to form, execution, and substance.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

By:/(/ll li'ln)"/\/\

Date: SZHZI L’{

Contractor Initials: —
Date: o



ACORD.

Client#: 63457

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

OFFIC1

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
02/05/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
Davis Towle Morrill & Everett

115 Airport Road
P O Box 1260
Concord, NH 03302-1260

PR, £xy. 603 225-6611

CONTACT
NAME :

{AlC, No): 603-225-7935

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC &

INSURER A : Covmgton Specualty Insurance

INSURED

Office of Public Guardian, Inc.
2 Pillsbury Street, Suite #400
Concord, NH 03301

INSURER B : 1OTUs Spec:alty insurance Co.

INSURER C - YWesco Insurance Company

INSURER D :

INSURERE:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
L_EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

SR ADDL] POLICY EFF_|_POLICY EXP
iy TYPE OF INSURANCE _{INsr B POLICY NUMBER (MMDD/YYYY) | (MMIDOYYYY) UMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY VBA201769 01/05/2014(01/05/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE s1,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY A O eronncs) | 850,000
CLAIMS-MADE | X| ocCUR MED EXP (Any one person) 5
PERSONAL 8 ADVINJURY |§
. GENERAL AGGREGATE $1,000,000
GEN' AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | §
PoLICY iond Loc s
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY C(E O neckiont )s INGLE LT [
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED .
Aros SHED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
1 NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident)
5
B UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR 83731E141ALI 01/05/2014]01/05/2015 £ACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
X| EXCESS UAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 51,000,000
DED ] RETENTION § s
WORKERS COMPENSATION C STATU: OTH-
C | AND EMPLOYERS® LIABILITY . WWC3064354 08/30/2013(08/30/2014 X ITQBY LIMITS lER
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNEREXECUTIVE | - E£.L. EACH ACCIDENT 500,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA
(Mandatory in NH) £.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
N yes, describe und
DESCRIPHION OF OPERATIONS below £.1. DISEASE - POLICY LMIT | $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
** Workers Comp Information **

Proprietors/Partners/Executive Officers/Members Excluded:

Robert Wells, President
Roger Jobin, Treasurer
Michael Fuerot, Secretary
WC State: NH

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

DHHS - Bureau of Community Based

Care Services

BBH, DEAS, BDAS, 105 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

M{?A/f/

ACORD 25 {2010/05) 1

#5154521/M154520
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Key Personnel List

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Community Based Care Services

OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN
GUARDIANSHIP AND PROTECTIVE SERVICES IN NEW HAMPSHIRE
JULY 1, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016

Executive Director Linda Mallon, JD, NMG 3
Associate Director Darcy Johnson, BS, NCG $
Business Manager Andrea Sisson, CPA $
Fiduciary Services Director Cindy Flanagan, NCG 3

Staff Attomey Tracy Culberson, Esq, NCG 5

107,579.00
84,150.00
71,400.00
71,400.00

76,000.00




